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PART I

Special Note Regarding Forward-Looking Statements
This  report and some documents  incorporated herein by reference include estimates, projections, s tatements  relating to our bus iness  plans, objectives ,

and expected operating results  that are "forward-looking statements" within the meaning of the Private Securi ties  Li tigation Reform Act of 1995, Section 27A of
the Securi ties  Act of 1933 and Section 21E of the Securi ties  Exchange Act of 1934. We use words  such as  "anticipates ," "bel ieves," "estimates," "may," "intends,"
"expects ," and s imi lar express ions  to identi fy forward-looking statements . Discuss ions  containing forward-looking statements  may be found in the materia l  set
forth under "Bus iness", "Management's  Discuss ion and Analys is  of Financial  Condition and Results  of Operations", and in other sections  of the report. Al l
forward-looking statements  are inherently uncertain as  they are based on our expectations  and assumptions  concerning future events . Any or a l l  of our
forward-looking statements  in this  report may turn out to be inaccurate. We have based these forward-looking statements  largely on our current expectations
and projections  about future events  and financial  trends  that we bel ieve may affect our financial  condition, results  of operations, bus iness  strategy, and
financial  needs. They may be affected by inaccurate assumptions  we might make or by known or unknown risks  and uncertainties , including the risks ,
uncertainties  and assumptions  described in the section enti tled "Item 1A. Risk Factors" and elsewhere in this  report. In l ight of these risks , uncertainties  and
assumptions, the forward-looking events  and ci rcumstances  discussed in this  report may not occur as  contemplated, and our actual  results  could di ffer
materia l ly from those anticipated or impl ied by the forward-looking statements . Al l  forward-looking statements  in this  report are made as  of the date hereof,
based on information avai lable to us  as  of the date hereof, and we assume no obl igation to update any forward-looking statement.

This  annual  report includes  website addresses  and references  to additional  materia ls  found on those websites . These websites  and information contained
on or access ible through these websites  are not incorporated by reference into, and do not form a part of, this  Annual  Report or any other report or document we
fi le with the SEC, and any references  to any websites  are intended to be inactive textual  references  only.

ITEM 1. BUSINESS

General

lululemon athletica inc. i s  principal ly a  des igner, distributor, and retai ler of technical  athletic apparel , footwear, and accessories . We have a vis ion to
create transformative products  and experiences  that bui ld meaningful  connections, unlocking greater poss ibi l i ty and wel lbeing for a l l . Since our inception, we
have fostered a distinctive corporate culture; we promote a set of core values  in our bus iness  which include taking personal  responsibi l i ty, acting with courage,
valuing connection and inclus ion, and choosing to have fun. These core values  attract pass ionate and motivated employees  who are driven to achieve personal
and profess ional  goals , and share our purpose "to elevate human potentia l  by helping people feel  their best."

In this  Annual  Report on Form 10-K for the fiscal  year ended January 28, 2024, lululemon athletica inc. (together with i ts  subs idiaries) i s  referred to as
"lululemon," "the Company," "we," "us ," or "our." We refer to the fiscal  year ended January 28, 2024 as  "2023," the fiscal  year ended January 29, 2023 as  "2022,"
and the fiscal  year ended January 30, 2022 as  "2021." Our next fi scal  year ends  on February 2, 2025 and is  referred to as  "2024."

Components  of this  discuss ion of our bus iness  include:
• Our Products
• Our Markets  and Segments
• Integrated Marketing
• Product Des ign and Development
• Sourcing and Manufacturing
• Distribution Faci l i ties
• Competition
• Seasonal i ty
• Human Capital
• Intel lectual  Property
• Securi ties  and Exchange Commiss ion Fi l ings

Our Products

We offer a  comprehensive l ine of performance apparel , footwear, and accessories  marketed under the lululemon brand. Our apparel  assortment includes
items such as  pants , shorts , tops, and jackets  des igned for a  healthy l i festyle including
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athletic activi ties  such as  yoga, running, tra ining, and most other activi ties . We also offer apparel  des igned for being on the move and fi tness-inspired
accessories . We expect to continue to broaden our merchandise offerings  through expansion across  these product areas.

Our des ign and development team continues  to source technical ly advanced fabrics , with new feel  and fi t, and craft innovative functional  features  for our
products . Through our vertical  retai l  s trategy and direct connection with our customers, whom we refer to as  guests , we are able to col lect feedback and
incorporate unique performance and fashion needs into our des ign process . In this  way, we bel ieve we are better pos itioned to address  the needs of our guests ,
helping us  advance our product l ines  and di fferentiate us  from our competitors .

During 2023, our women's  range represented 64% of net revenue and our men's  range represented 23% of net revenue. Our comprehensive men's  l ine is  a
key pi l lar of our strategic growth plans. We bel ieve net revenue from our men's  range is  growing as  more guests  discover the technical  rigor and premium
qual i ty of our men's  products , and are attracted by our distinctive brand.

We continue to innovate and introduce new products  for our guests . This  includes  introducing new product categories  and expanding our accessories
assortment. We bel ieve this  i s  another way in which we can attract new guests  and enable them to experience our products . Net revenue from our other product
categories  represented 13% of net revenue in 2023.

Our Markets and Segments

We operate in over 25 countries  around the world and organize our operations  into four regional  markets : Americas , China Mainland, As ia  Paci fic
("APAC"), and Europe and the Middle East ("EMEA").

We report three segments , Americas , China Mainland, and Rest of World, which is  comprised of the APAC and EMEA regions  on a combined bas is .

During the fourth quarter of 2023, we revised the financial  information which our Chief Executive Officer, who is  our chief operating decis ion maker
("CODM"), uses  to evaluate performance and al locate resources. This  resulted in a  change in our identi fied operating segments . As  we have further executed on
our omni-channel  retai l  s trategy, and continued to expand our operations  in international  markets , our performance reviews and resource al location decis ions
have evolved to be made on a regional  market bas is . Our segment results  have been recast to reflect our regional  market-based structure. Historical ly, our
segments  were based on sel l ing channel . We continue to monitor our revenue performance by our sel l ing channels  which are further described below.

We operate an omni-channel  retai l  model  and aim to efficiently and effectively serve our guests  in the ways  most convenient to them. We continue to
evolve and integrate our digi ta l  and phys ical  channels  in order to enrich our interactions  with our guests , and to provide a seamless  omni-channel  experience.
We have invested in technologies  which enable our omni-channel  retai l ing model . Our capabi l i ties  di ffer by market and include:

• Buy online pick-up in store - guests  can purchase our products  via  our website or digi ta l  app and then col lect that product from a retai l  location;

• Back-back room - our store educators  can access  inventory located at our other locations  and have product shipped directly to a  guest's  address  or a
store;
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• Ship from store – we are able to ful fi l l  e-commerce orders  by access ing inventory at both our distribution centers  and at our retai l  locations, expanding
the pool  of access ible inventory;

• Returns processing – e-commerce guests  are able to return products  ei ther onl ine or in-store; and

• One inventory pool – we are able to view and al locate the product held at our distribution centers  to ei ther our phys ical  retai l  locations, or make i t
avai lable to ful fi l l  onl ine demand.

We operate a  combination of phys ical  retai l  locations  and e-commerce services  via  our websites , other region-speci fic websites , digi ta l  marketplaces,
and mobi le apps. Our phys ical  retai l  locations  remain a  key part of our growth strategy and we view them as  a  valuable tool  in helping us  bui ld our brand and
product l ine as  wel l  as  enabl ing our omni-channel  capabi l i ties . We plan to continue to expand square footage and open new company-operated stores  to
support our growth objectives .

Americas

We have operated in the Americas  for over 25 years . We opened our fi rst ever store in Vancouver, Canada in 1998. In 2023, the net revenue we generated
in the Americas  represented 79% of our total  net revenue.

2023 2022 2021
(In thousands)

Ne t re ve nue $ 7,631,647 $ 6,817,454 $ 5,299,906 

Ne t re ve nue  growth 11.9 % 28.6 % 40.3 %

Our operations  in the Americas  are core to our bus iness  and we aim to continue to grow our net revenue in this  market through ongoing product
innovation and by bui lding brand awareness . We also plan to continue to invest in our omni-channel  capabi l i ties , to open new retai l  locations, and to relocate,
optimize, and renovate our existing locations  as  needed.

We generate net revenue in the Americas  through our lululemon branded retai l  locations  which include di fferent s izes  of company-operated stores ,
outlets , pop-ups, other temporary locations, and stores  operated by a  third-party under a  supply and l icense agreement in Mexico. We also serve our guests  via
our e-commerce website www.lululemon.com, our mobi le app, our “Like New” re-commerce program, and through certain wholesale arrangements  including
certain yoga and fi tness  studios , univers i ty campus retai lers , and other select partners .

China Mainland

We opened our fi rst s tore in China Mainland in fi scal  2014. In 2023, the net revenue we generated in China Mainland represented 10% of our total  net
revenue.

2023 2022 2021
(In thousands)

Ne t re ve nue $ 963,760 $ 576,503 $ 434,261 

Ne t re ve nue  growth 67.2 % 32.8 % 80.3 %

We have experienced s igni ficant net revenue growth in China Mainland and bel ieve that as  we continue to expand our operations  and bui ld our brand
awareness , net revenue wi l l  continue to increase in this  market. We bel ieve China Mainland net revenue growth wi l l  drive an increase in our overal l
international  net revenue. We plan to continue to invest in China Mainland and expect that the majori ty of our company-operated store openings  in 2024 wi l l  be
in this  market.

We operate lululemon branded retai l  locations  in China Mainland in a  variety of di fferent formats  including di fferent s izes  of company-operated stores ,
outlets , pop-ups, and other temporary locations. We also serve our guests  via  our WeChat store and on third party marketplaces  such as  T-Mal l  and JD.com.
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Rest of World

In 2023, the net revenue we generated in APAC and EMEA represented 11% of our total  net revenue.

2023 2022 2021
(In thousands)

Ne t re ve nue $ 1,023,871 $ 716,561 $ 522,450 

Ne t re ve nue  growth 42.9 % 37.2 % 36.3 %

We have experienced s igni ficant net revenue growth in APAC and EMEA and intend to continue to invest in these markets  to bui ld brand awareness . Where
we identi fy growth opportunities , we plan to open new retai l  locations, including in new markets  across  the EMEA and APAC regions.

We operate lululemon branded retai l  locations  in these markets  in a  variety of di fferent formats  including di fferent s izes  of company-operated stores ,
outlets , pop-ups, and stores  operated by third-parties  under supply and l icense agreements  in the Middle East and Israel . We also serve our guests  via  our
country speci fic websites , our mobi le app, and through third party regional  marketplaces, such as  Zalando, Lazada, and SSG.

Our Selling Channels

We conduct our bus iness  through a number of di fferent channels  in each market:

Company-operated stores: In addition to serving as  a  venue to sel l  our products , our stores  give us  a  direct connection to our guests , which we view as  a
valuable tool  in helping us  bui ld our brand and product l ines  as  wel l  as  enabl ing our omni-channel  capabi l i ties . Our retai l  s tores  are located primari ly on
street locations, in l i festyle centers , and in mal ls . Our sales  per square foot was  $1,609, $1,580, and $1,443 for 2023, 2022, and 2021 respectively.

Number of company-operated stores by market January 28, 2024 January 29, 2023
Uni te d Sta te s 367 350 
Ca na da 71 69 
Ame ri ca s 438 419 

Chi na  Ma i nl a nd 127 99 

Aus tra l i a 33 32 
South Kore a 19 16 
Hong Kong SAR 9 9 
Ja pa n 8 7 
Ne w Ze a l a nd 8 8 
Ta i wa n 8 7 
Si nga pore 7 8 
Ma l a ys i a 3 2 
Ma ca u SAR 2 2 
Tha i l a nd 1 — 
APAC 98 91 
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Number of company-operated stores by market January 28, 2024 January 29, 2023
Uni te d Ki ngdom 20 20 
Ge rma ny 9 10 
Fra nce 6 4 
I re l a nd 4 4 
Spa i n 3 3 
Ne the rl a nds 2 1 
Swe de n 2 2 
Norwa y 1 1 
Swi tze rl a nd 1 1 
EMEA 48 46 

Tota l  compa ny-ope ra te d s tore s 711 655 

E-commerce: We bel ieve e-commerce is  convenient for our guests  and also a l lows us  to reach and serve guests  in markets  beyond where our phys ical  retai l
locations  are based. We bel ieve this  channel  i s  effective in bui lding brand awareness , especial ly in new markets . We serve our guests  via  our e-commerce
websites , other country and region-speci fic websites , digi ta l  marketplaces, and mobi le apps. E-commerce net revenue includes  our buy onl ine pick-up in store,
back-back room, and ship from store omni-channel  retai l ing capabi l i ties .

Other channels: We also use certain other distribution channels , general ly with the goal  of bui lding brand awareness  and providing broader access  to our
products . These other channels  include:

• Temporary locations - Our seasonal  stores  and pop-ups  are typical ly opened for a  short period of time enabl ing us  to serve guests  during peak shopping
periods  in markets  where we do not ordinari ly have a phys ical  location, or to expand access  in markets  where we see high demand at our existing
locations.

• Wholesale - We sel l  to partners  that offer convenient access  for both core and new guests , including yoga and fi tness  studios , univers i ty campus
retai lers , and other select partners .

• Outlets - We uti l i ze outlets  to sel l  s lower moving inventory and inventory from prior seasons  at discounted prices . As  of January 28, 2024, we operated
47 outlets , the majori ty of which were in the Americas .

• Like New - Our re-commerce program al lows guests  to exchange their gently used lululemon products  for merchandise credit. Those products  are then
veri fied and qual i ty checked before being resold onl ine at l ikenew.lululemon.com. We bel ieve this  program is  a  step towards  a  ci rcular eco-system and
helps  reduce our environmental  footprint.

• License and supply arrangements - We enter into l icense and supply arrangements  when we bel ieve i t wi l l  be to our advantage to partner with third
parties  with s igni ficant experience and proven success  in certain target markets . Under these arrangements  we have granted certain third parties  the
right to operate lululemon branded retai l  locations  and to sel l  lululemon products  on websites  in speci fic countries .

Number of retail locations operated by third parties by market January 28, 2024 January 29, 2023
Me xi co 15 12 
Uni te d Ara b Emi ra te s 8 7 
Sa udi  Ara bi a 6 3 
Is ra e l 3 — 
Kuwa i t 3 1 
Qa ta r 3 3 
Ba hra i n 1 — 
Tota l  l oca ti ons  ope ra te d by thi rd pa rti e s  unde r l i ce ns e  a nd s uppl y a rra nge me nts 39 26 
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Integrated Marketing

We bel ieve that our brand awareness  is  relatively low, especial ly outs ide of the Americas , and also with our male guests . This  represents  an opportunity
for us  and we have a multi -faceted strategy to bui ld brand awareness , affini ty, and guest loyalty. This  strategy is  des igned to leverage owned and paid channels ,
our ambassador network, brand partners , events , and content – to drive awareness , cons ideration, engagement, convers ion, and ultimately loyalty and
engagement at the global , regional , and local  levels .

Product Design and Development

Our product des ign and development efforts  are led by a  team of researchers , scientists , engineers , and des igners . Our team is  comprised of athletes  and
users  of our products  who embody our des ign phi losophy and dedication to premium qual i ty. Our des ign and development team identi fies  trends  based on
market intel l igence and research, proactively seeks  the input of our guests  and our ambassadors , and broadly seeks  inspiration cons istent with our goals  of
function, style, and technical  superiori ty.

As  we strive to continue to provide our guests  with technical ly advanced fabrics , our team works  closely with our suppl iers  to incorporate the latest in
technical  innovation, bringing particular speci fications  to our products . We partner with independent inspection, veri fication, and testing companies , who
conduct a  variety of tests  on our fabrics , testing performance characteristics  including pi l l ing, shrinkage, abras ion res istance, and colorfastness . We develop
proprietary fabrics  and col laborate with leading fabric and trims suppl iers  to manufacture fabrics  and trims that we general ly seek to protect through
agreements , trademarks, and as  trade-secrets .

Sourcing and Manufacturing

We do not own or operate any manufacturing faci l i ties . We rely on a l imited number of suppl iers  to provide fabrics  for, and to produce, our products . The
fol lowing statistics  are based on cost.

We work with a  group of approximately 49 vendors  that manufacture our products , five of which produced 55% of our products  in 2023, with the largest
manufacturer producing 17%. During 2023, 42% of our products  were manufactured in Vietnam, 16% in Cambodia, 11% in Sri  Lanka, 10% in Indonesia, and 8%
in Bangladesh, and the remainder in other regions.

We work with a  group of approximately 67 suppl iers  to provide the fabrics  for our products . In 2023, 52% of our fabrics  were produced by our top five
fabric suppl iers , with the largest manufacturer producing 19%. During 2023, 40% of our fabrics  originated from Taiwan, 26% from China Mainland, and 12%
from Sri  Lanka, and the remainder from other regions.

We also source other raw materia ls  which are used in our products , including i tems such as  content labels , elastics , buttons, clasps, and drawcords  from
suppl iers  located predominantly in APAC and China Mainland.

We have developed long-standing relationships  with a  number of our vendors  and take care to ensure that they share our commitment to qual i ty and
ethics . We do not, however, have any long-term contracts  with the majori ty of our suppl iers  or manufacturing sources  for the production and supply of our
fabrics  and garments , and we compete with other companies  for fabrics , raw materia ls , and production. We require that a l l  of our suppl iers  and manufacturers
adhere to our Vendor Code of Ethics  regarding socia l  and environmental  sustainabi l i ty practices . Our product qual i ty and sustainabi l i ty teams closely assess
and monitor each suppl ier's  compl iance with appl icable laws and our Vendor Code of Ethics , including by partnering with leading inspection and veri fication
fi rms.

Distribution Facilities

We operate and distribute finished products  from our distribution faci l i ties  in the United States , Canada, and Austral ia . We own our distribution center in
Groveport, Ohio, and lease our other distribution faci l i ties . We also uti l i ze third-party logistics  providers  in a  number of countries  in which we operate to
warehouse and distribute finished products  from their warehouse locations. We regularly evaluate our distribution infrastructure and consol idate or expand
our distribution capacity as  we bel ieve appropriate for our operations  and to meet anticipated needs.

Competition

Competition in the athletic apparel  industry is  based principal ly on brand image and recognition as  wel l  as  product qual i ty, innovation, style,
distribution, and price. We bel ieve we successful ly compete on the bas is  of our premium brand image and our technical  product innovation. We also bel ieve
our abi l i ty to introduce new product innovations, combine function and fashion, and connect through in-store, onl ine, and community experiences  sets  us  apart
from our competition. In
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addition, we bel ieve our vertical  retai l  distribution strategy and community-based marketing di fferentiates  us  further, a l lowing us  to more effectively control
our brand image and connect with our guests .

The market for athletic apparel  i s  highly competitive. It includes  increas ing competition from establ ished companies  that are expanding their production
and marketing of performance products , as  wel l  as  from frequent new entrants  to the market. We are in direct competition with wholesalers  and direct sel lers  of
athletic apparel  and footwear, such as  Nike, Inc., adidas  AG, PUMA, Under Armour, Inc., and Columbia Sportswear Company. We also compete with retai lers  who
have expanded to include women's  athletic apparel  including The Gap, Inc. (including the Athleta brand), Victoria 's  Secret with i ts  sport and lounge offering, and
Urban Outfi tters , Inc.

Seasonality

Our bus iness  is  affected by the general  seasonal  trends  common to the retai l  apparel  industry. Our annual  net revenue is  typical ly weighted more heavi ly
toward our fourth fiscal  quarter, reflecting our historical  s trength in sales  during the hol iday season in the Americas , whi le our operating expenses  are
general ly more equal ly distributed throughout the year. As  a  result, a  substantia l  portion of our operating profi ts  are typical ly generated in the fourth quarter of
our fiscal  year. For example, we generated approximately 43% of our ful l  year operating profi t during the fourth quarter of 2023.

Human Capital

Our Impact Agenda sets  out our socia l  and environmental  goals  and strategy across  three pi l lars  - Be Human, Be Wel l , and Be Planet. Detai ls  can be found
in our Impact Report on our website (https://corporate.lululemon.com/our-impact).

Included within our Impact Agenda is  a  goal  to invest a  total  of $75.0 mi l l ion to advance equity in wel l -being by the end of 2025. As  of January 28, 2024,
we have invested a total  of $44.8 mi l l ion  towards  this  goal .

The Be Human pi l lar of our Impact Agenda sets  out our focus  areas  with respect to human capital , including:

• Inclus ion, Divers i ty, Equity, and Action (“IDEA”);

• Employee empowerment; and

• Fair labor practices  and the wel l -being of the people who make our products .

Inclusion, Diversity, Equity and Action

We bel ieve IDEA is  fundamental  for shaping and bui lding our company, industry, and communities , and for creating a  shared sense of respect and
belonging. By continuously striving to be an inclus ive, diverse, and equitable organization, we aim to reflect a  variety of perspectives  and meet the needs of the
global  communities  we serve. We are proud that as  of January 28, 2024, approximately 50% of our board of directors , 70% of our senior executive leadership
team, and 50% of our vice pres idents  and above are women, whi le approximately 75% of our overal l  workforce are women.

 We have contributed $44.8 million to lululemon's Centre for Social Impact, $32.4 million of which has been contributed directly to social impact organizations. The remaining $12.4
million primarily consists of contributions toward a donor-advised fund for future grant making.

 While we track male and female genders, we acknowledge this is not fully encompassing of all gender identities.
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We use an annual  voluntary global  survey to help us  understand the demographics  of our employee base and provide us  with access  to tangible metrics
to help us  understand our employees’ sense of inclus ion and belonging.  In 2023, the participation rate was  approximately 85%. Our overal l  goal  i s  to reflect
the racia l  divers i ty  of the communities  we serve and in which we operate.

 

We seek to maintain 100% gender pay equity within our entire global  employee population, meaning equal  pay for equal  work across  genders , by
geography. We have achieved ful l  pay equity, including gender and race, in the United States , which is  the only country where we currently col lect individual ly
attributable race data.

We offer a l l  employees  IDEA education, tra ining, and guided conversations  on a variety of topics , including anti -racism, anti -discrimination, and
inclus ive leadership behaviors . We have establ ished People Networks , which are employee resource groups for employees  who have marginal ized and
historical ly underrepresented identi ties . We see s igni ficant engagement in IDEA education and training across  our global  employee base. We aim to foster a
culture of inclus ion by making IDEA part of our everyday conversation, and frequently review our pol icies , programs, and practices  to identi fy ways  to be more
inclus ive and equitable.

Employee Empowerment

We bel ieve our people are key to the success  of our bus iness . As  of January 28, 2024 we employed approximately 38,000 people worldwide. We strive to
foster a  distinctive culture rooted in our core values  that attracts  and retains  pass ionate and motivated employees  who are driven to achieve personal  and
profess ional  goals . We bel ieve our people succeed because we create an environment that fosters  growth and is  diverse and equitable.

 The voluntary demographic survey results presented above relate to all of our employees in the Americas, Europe, Australia, and New Zealand.

 "Racial diversity" is used to measure the non-white population.
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We assess  our performance and identi fy opportunities  for improvement through an annual  employee engagement survey. In 2023, the participation rate
was approximately 85% and our employee engagement score exceeded the retai l  industry average.  Our engagement score suggests  our people are proud to
work for lululemon, they are motivated to contribute to work that a l igns  with their purpose, and they recommend lululemon as  a  great place to work.

We understand that health and wealth programs need to offer choice at a l l  s tages  of l i fe. Our current offerings  support our goal  of becoming the number
one place where people come to develop and grow as  inclus ive leaders , and we regularly use feedback to inform opportunities  to support this  goal . These
offerings  include, among other things:

• Competitive compensation which rewards  exceptional  performance;

• A Fund your Future program for el igible employees  which offers  partia l  contribution matches  to a  pens ion plan and employee share purchase plan;

• An annual  paid VALUES (Volunteer, Awareness , Li fe, Unity, Empowerment, Support) Day, competitive paid time off, and s ick leave;

• An employee discount program, which includes  a  l i fetime discount to celebrate the contribution of our long-tenured employees  to keep them within our
col lective, even when they have moved on to pursue goals  outs ide of lululemon;

• Reimbursement programs which reward phys ical  activi ty;

• A parenthood program which is  a  gender-neutral  benefi t that provides  a l l  el igible employees  up to s ix months  of paid leave;

• An employee ass istance program which provides  free confidentia l  support to a l l  our employees  and their fami l ies  in a  variety of areas  from mental
wel l -being to financial  services  to advice for new parents ; and

• Training and development of a l l  of our employees  including, but not l imited to, mentorship programs, IDEA internships , leadership development, vis ion
and goals , and coaching.

Fair Labor Practices and the Well-Being of the People who Make our Products

We work with suppl iers  who we bel ieve share our values  and col laborate with us  to uphold robust standards, address  systemic chal lenges, and support
the wel l -being of people who make our products . Our Responsible Supply Chain program is  bui l t on three pi l lars :

• Monitoring - Assess ing and improving working conditions  in factories .

• Integration - Integrating responsible purchas ing practices  across  enterprise strategies , processes , and tools .

• Collaboration - Working with multi -stakeholder organizations, industry, suppl iers , and brands to support systemic change and impact.

Our Vendor Code of Ethics  outl ines  our commitment to respect human and labor rights , and promote safe and fa ir working conditions  for people in our
supply chain. The code, which is  based on international  standards, sets  the minimum standards  for our suppl ier partners  and is  a  component of our suppl ier
and manufacturer agreements . Our finished goods and fabric suppl iers  are assessed against the Vendor Code of Ethics  prior to forming a bus iness  relationship,
and regularly thereafter; we work with factories  that can uphold our strict requirements .

Our Foreign Migrant Worker Standard sets  out our minimum requirements  for what we bel ieve are the appropriate and ethical  recruitment, employment,
and repatriation of foreign migrant workers .

Intellectual Property

We have trademark rights  on many of our products  and bel ieve having distinctive marks  that are readi ly identi fiable is  an important factor in bui lding
our brand image and in distinguishing our products  from the products  of others . We cons ider our lululemon and wave des ign trademarks  to be among our most
valuable assets . In addition, we own many other trademarks  for the names of several  of our brands, s logans, fabrics  and products . We own registered and
pending U.S. and foreign uti l i ty and des ign patents , industria l  des igns  in Canada, and registered community des igns  in Europe that protect our product
innovations, distinctive apparel , and accessory des igns.

 Based on an industry benchmark provided by the third party that administers this survey to our employees.
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Securities and Exchange Commission Filings

Our website address  is  www.lululemon.com. We provide free access  to various  reports  that we fi le with, or furnish to, the United States  Securi ties  and
Exchange Commiss ion, or the SEC, through our website, as  soon as  reasonably practicable after they have been fi led or furnished. These reports  include, but are
not l imited to, our annual  reports  on Form 10-K, quarterly reports  on Form 10-Q, current reports  on Form 8-K, and any amendments  to those reports . Our SEC
reports  can also be accessed through the SEC's  website at www.sec.gov. Also avai lable on our website are printable vers ions  of our Global  Code of Bus iness
Conduct and Ethics  and charters  of the standing committees  of our board of directors . Information contained on or access ible through our websites  is  not
incorporated into, and does  not form a part of, this  Annual  Report or any other report or document we fi le with the SEC, and any references  to our websites  are
intended to be inactive textual  references  only.

ITEM 1A. RISK FACTORS

In addition to the other information contained in this Form 10-K, the following risk factors should be considered in evaluating our business. Our business,
financial condition, or results of operations could be materially adversely affected as a result of any of these risks.

Risks related to our business and industry

Our success depends on our ability to maintain the value and reputation of our brand.

The lululemon name is  integral  to our bus iness  as  wel l  as  to the implementation of our expansion strategies . Maintaining, promoting, and pos itioning our
brand wi l l  depend largely on the success  of our marketing and merchandis ing efforts  and our abi l i ty to provide a cons istent, high qual i ty product, and guest
experience. We rely on socia l  media, as  one of our marketing strategies , to have a pos itive impact on both our brand value and reputation. Our brand and
reputation could be adversely affected i f we fa i l  to achieve these objectives , i f our publ ic image was to be tarnished by negative publ ici ty, which could be
ampl i fied by socia l  media, i f we fa i l  to del iver innovative and high qual i ty products  acceptable to our guests , or i f we face or mishandle a  product recal l . Our
reputation could a lso be impacted by adverse publ ici ty, whether or not val id, regarding al legations  that we, or persons  associated with us  or formerly
associated with us , have violated appl icable laws or regulations, including but not l imited to those related to safety, employment, discrimination, harassment,
whistle-blowing, privacy, corporate ci tizenship, improper bus iness  practices , or cybersecuri ty. Certain activi ties  on the part of stakeholders , including
nongovernmental  organizations  and governmental  insti tutions, could cause reputational  damage, distract senior management, and disrupt our bus iness .
Additional ly, whi le we devote cons iderable effort and resources  to protecting our intel lectual  property, i f these efforts  are not successful  the value of our brand
may be harmed. Any harm to our brand and reputation could have a materia l  adverse effect on our financial  condition.

Changes in consumer shopping preferences, and shifts in distribution channels could materially impact our results of operations.

We operate an omni-channel  retai l  model  and aim to efficiently and effectively serve our guests  in the ways  most convenient to them. We operate a
combination of phys ical  retai l  locations  and e-commerce services  via  our websites , other region-speci fic websites , digi ta l  marketplaces, and mobi le apps. Our
phys ical  retai l  locations  remain a  key part of our growth strategy and we view them as  a  valuable tool  in helping us  bui ld our brand and product l ine as  wel l  as
enabl ing our omni-channel  capabi l i ties . We plan to continue to expand square footage and open new company-operated stores  to support our growth
objectives . The divers ion of sales  from our company-operated stores  could adversely impact our return on investment and could lead to impairment charges
and store closures , including lease exit costs . We could have di fficulty in recreating the in-store experience through direct channels . Our fa i lure to successful ly
integrate our digi ta l  and phys ical  channels  and respond to these risks  might adversely impact our bus iness  and results  of operations, as  wel l  as  damage our
reputation and brand.

If any of our products have manufacturing or design defects or are otherwise unacceptable to us or our guests, our business could be harmed.

We have occas ional ly received, and may in the future receive, shipments  of products  that fa i l  to comply with our technical  speci fications  or that fa i l  to
conform to our qual i ty control  s tandards. We have also received, and may in the future receive, products  that are otherwise unacceptable to us  or our guests .
Under these ci rcumstances, unless  we are able to obtain replacement products  in a  timely manner, we risk the loss  of net revenue resulting from the inabi l i ty to
sel l  those products  and related increased administrative and shipping costs . Additional ly, i f the unacceptabi l i ty of our products  i s  not discovered unti l  after
such products  are sold, our guests  could lose confidence in our products  or we could face a  product recal l  and our results  of operations  could suffer and our
business , reputation, and brand could be harmed.
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Our lululemon Studio subs idiary offers  complex hardware and software products  and services  that can be affected by des ign and manufacturing defects .
Sophisticated operating system software and appl ications, such as  those offered by lululemon Studio, often have issues  that can unexpectedly interfere with the
intended operation of hardware or software products . Defects  may also exist in components  and products  that we source from third parties . Any defects  could
make our products  and services  unsafe and create a  risk of environmental  or property damage or personal  injury and we may become subject to the hazards
and uncertainties  of product l iabi l i ty cla ims and related l i tigation. The occurrence of real  or perceived defects  in any of our products , now or in the future,
could result in additional  negative publ ici ty, regulatory investigations, or lawsuits  fi led against us , particularly i f guests  or others  who use or purchase our
lululemon Studio products  are injured. Even i f injuries  are not the result of any defects , i f they are perceived to be, we may incur expenses  to defend or settle any
cla ims and our brand and reputation may be harmed.

We operate in a highly competitive market and our competitors may compete more effectively than we can, resulting in a loss of our market share and a decrease
in our net revenue and profitability.

The market for technical  athletic apparel  i s  highly competitive. Competition may result in pricing pressures , reduced profi t margins  or lost market share,
or a  fa i lure to grow or maintain our market share, any of which could substantia l ly harm our bus iness  and results  of operations. We compete directly against
wholesalers  and direct retai lers  of athletic apparel , including large, divers i fied apparel  companies  with substantia l  market share, and establ ished companies
expanding their production and marketing of technical  athletic apparel , as  wel l  as  against retai lers  speci fical ly focused on women's  athletic apparel . We also
face competition from wholesalers  and direct retai lers  of traditional  commodity athletic apparel , such as  cotton T-shirts  and sweatshirts . Many of our
competitors  are large apparel  and sporting goods companies  with strong worldwide brand recognition. Because of the fragmented nature of the industry, we
also compete with other apparel  sel lers , including those special izing in yoga apparel  and other activewear. Many of our competitors  have s igni ficant
competitive advantages, including longer operating histories , larger and broader customer bases, more establ ished relationships  with a  broader set of
suppl iers , greater brand recognition and greater financial , research and development, store development, marketing, distribution, and other resources  than we
do. Our competitors  may be able to achieve and maintain brand awareness  and market share more quickly and effectively than we can.

We may fa i l  to acknowledge or react appropriately to the entry or growth of a  viable competitor or disruptive force, and could struggle to continue to
innovate, di fferentiate, and sustain the growth of our brand. The increas ing dominance and presence of our brand may also drive guests  towards  a l ternative
emerging competitors .

In addition, because we hold l imited patents  and exclus ive intel lectual  property rights  in the technology, fabrics  or processes  underlying our products ,
our current and future competitors  are able to manufacture and sel l  products  with performance characteristics , fabrication techniques, and styl ing s imi lar to
our products .

Our sales and profitability may decline as a result of increasing costs and decreasing selling prices.

Our bus iness  is  subject to s igni ficant pressure on costs  and pricing caused by many factors , including intense competition, constrained sourcing capacity
and related inflationary pressure, the avai labi l i ty of qual i fied labor and wage inflation, pressure from consumers  to reduce the prices  we charge for our
products , and changes  in consumer demand. These and other factors  have, and may in the future, cause us  to experience increased costs , reduce our prices  to
consumers  or experience reduced sales  in response to increased prices , any of which could cause our operating margin to decl ine i f we are unable to offset
these factors  with reductions  in operating costs  and could have a materia l  adverse effect on our financial  condition, operating results , and cash flows.

If we are unable to anticipate consumer preferences and successfully develop and introduce new, innovative, and differentiated products, we may not be able to
maintain or increase our sales and profitability.

Our success  depends on our abi l i ty to identi fy and originate product trends  as  wel l  as  to anticipate and react to changing consumer demands in a  timely
manner. Al l  of our products  are subject to changing consumer preferences  that cannot be predicted with certainty. If we are unable to introduce new products  or
novel  technologies  in a  timely manner or our new products  or technologies  are not accepted by our guests , our competitors  may introduce s imi lar products  in a
more timely fashion, which could hurt our goal  to be viewed as  a  leader in technical  athletic apparel  innovation. Our new products  may not receive consumer
acceptance as  consumer preferences  could shi ft rapidly to di fferent types  of athletic apparel  or away from these types  of products  a l together, and our future
success  depends in part on our abi l i ty to anticipate and respond to these changes. Our fa i lure to anticipate and respond in a  timely manner to changing
consumer preferences  could lead to, among other things , lower sales  and excess  inventory levels . We may not have relevant data to effectively understand and
react to consumer preferences  and expectations. Even i f we are successful  in anticipating consumer preferences, our abi l i ty to adequately react to and address
those preferences  wi l l  in part depend upon our continued abi l i ty to develop and introduce innovative, high-qual i ty products . Our fa i lure to effectively introduce
new products  that are accepted by consumers  could

11



Table of Contents

result in a  decrease in net revenue and excess  inventory levels , which could have a materia l  adverse effect on our financial  condition.

Our results of operations could be materially harmed if we are unable to accurately forecast guest demand for our products.

To ensure adequate inventory supply, we must forecast inventory needs and place orders  with our manufacturers  based on our estimates  of future
demand for particular products . Our abi l i ty to accurately forecast demand for our products  could be affected by many factors , including an increase or
decrease in guest demand for our products  or for products  of our competitors , our fa i lure to accurately forecast guest acceptance of new products , product
introductions  by competitors , unanticipated changes  in general  market conditions  (for example, because of global  economic concerns  such as  inflation, an
economic downturn, or delays  and disruptions  resulting from local  and international  shipping delays  and labor shortages), and weakening of economic
conditions  or consumer confidence in future economic conditions  (for example, because of inflationary pressures , or because of sanctions, restrictions, and
other responses  related to geopol i tical  events). If we fa i l  to accurately forecast guest demand, we may experience excess  inventory levels  or a  shortage of
products  avai lable for sale in our stores  or for del ivery to guests .

Inventory levels  in excess  of guest demand may result in inventory write-downs or write-offs  and the sale of excess  inventory at discounted prices , which
would cause our gross  margin to suffer and could impair the strength and exclus ivi ty of our brand. Conversely, i f we underestimate guest demand for our
products , our manufacturers  may not be able to del iver products  to meet our requirements , and this  could result in damage to our reputation and guest
relationships .

Our limited operating experience and limited brand recognition in new international markets and new product categories may limit our expansion and cause our
business and growth to suffer.

Our future growth depends in part on our expansion efforts  outs ide of the Americas . We have l imited experience with regulatory environments  and market
practices  international ly, and we may not be able to penetrate or successful ly operate in any new market. In connection with our expansion efforts  we may
encounter obstacles  we did not face in the Americas , including cultural  and l inguistic di fferences, di fferences  in regulatory environments , labor practices  and
market practices , di fficulties  in keeping abreast of market, bus iness  and technical  developments , and international  guests ' tastes  and preferences. We may also
encounter di fficulty expanding into new international  markets  because of l imited brand recognition leading to delayed acceptance of our technical  athletic
apparel  by guests  in these new international  markets . Our fa i lure to develop our bus iness  in new international  markets  or disappointing growth outs ide of
existing markets  could harm our bus iness  and results  of operations.

In addition, our continued growth depends in part on our abi l i ty to expand our product categories  and introduce new product l ines . We may not be able to
successful ly manage integration of new product categories  or the new product l ines  with our existing products . Sel l ing new product categories  and l ines  wi l l
require our management to test and develop di fferent strategies  in order to be successful . We may be unsuccessful  in entering new product categories  and
developing or launching new product l ines , which requires  management of new suppl iers , potentia l  new customers, and new business  models . Our management
may not have the experience of sel l ing in these new product categories  and we may not be able to grow our bus iness  as  planned. For example, in July 2020, we
acquired MIRROR, an in-home fi tness  company with an interactive workout platform that features  l ive and on-demand classes . If we are unable to effectively
and successful ly further develop these and future new product categories  and l ines , we may not be able to increase or maintain our sales  and our operating
margins  may be adversely affected. This  may also divert the attention of management and cause additional  expenses.

We may, from time to time, evaluate and pursue other strategic investments  or acquis i tions. These involve various  inherent risks  and the benefi ts  sought
may not be real ized.

If we continue to grow at a rapid pace, we may not be able to effectively manage our growth and the increased complexity of our business and as a result our
brand image and financial performance may suffer.

If our operations  continue to grow at a  rapid pace, we may experience di fficulties  in obtaining sufficient raw materia ls  and manufacturing capacity to
produce our products , as  wel l  as  delays  in production and shipments , as  our products  are subject to risks  associated with overseas  sourcing and
manufacturing. We could be required to continue to expand our sales  and marketing, product development and distribution functions, to upgrade our
management information systems and other processes  and technology, and to obtain more space for our expanding workforce. This  expansion could increase
the strain on our resources, and we could experience operating di fficulties , including di fficulties  in hiring, tra ining, and managing an increas ing number of
employees. These di fficulties  could result in the eros ion of our brand image which could have a materia l  adverse effect on our financial  condition.
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We are subject to risks associated with leasing retail and distribution space subject to long-term and non-cancelable leases.

We lease the majori ty of our stores  under operating leases  and our inabi l i ty to secure appropriate real  estate or lease terms could impact our abi l i ty to
grow. Our leases  general ly have ini tia l  terms of between two and 15 years , and general ly can be extended in increments  between two and five years , i f at a l l . We
general ly cannot cancel  these leases  at our option. If an existing or new store is  not profi table, and we decide to close i t, as  we have done in the past and may
do in the future, we may nonetheless  be committed to perform our obl igations  under the appl icable lease including, among other things , paying the base rent for
the balance of the lease term. Simi larly, we may be committed to perform our obl igations  under the appl icable leases  even i f current locations  of our stores
become unattractive as  demographic patterns  change. In addition, as  each of our leases  expire, we may fa i l  to negotiate renewals , ei ther on commercial ly
acceptable terms or at a l l , which could require us  to close stores  in des irable locations.

We also lease the majori ty of our distribution centers  and our inabi l i ty to secure appropriate real  estate or lease terms could impact our abi l i ty to del iver
our products  to the market.

Our future success is substantially dependent on the service of our senior management and our ability to maintain our culture and to attract, manage, and retain
highly qualified individuals.

The performance of our senior management team and other key employees  may not meet our needs and expectations. Also, the loss  of services  of any of
these key employees, or any negative publ ic perception with respect to these individuals , may be disruptive to, or cause uncertainty in, our bus iness  and could
have a negative impact on our abi l i ty to manage and grow our bus iness  effectively. Such disruption could have a materia l  adverse impact on our financial
performance, financial  condition, and the market price of our stock.

If we are unable to successful ly maintain and evolve our unique culture, offer competitive compensation and benefi ts , and a des irable work model , we
may be unable to attract and retain highly qual i fied individuals  to support our bus iness  and continued growth. Our work model  may not meet the needs and
expectations  of our employees  and may not be perceived as  favorable compared to other companies . Unionization efforts  or other employee organizing
activi ties  could lead to higher people costs  or reduce our flexibi l i ty to manage our employees  which may negatively disrupt our operations. We also face risks
related to employee engagement and productivi ty which could result in increased headcount and lead to increased labor costs .

Our business is affected by seasonality, which could result in fluctuations in our operating results.

Our bus iness  is  affected by the general  seasonal  trends  common to the retai l  apparel  industry. Our annual  net revenue is  typical ly weighted more heavi ly
toward our fourth fiscal  quarter, reflecting our historical  s trength in sales  during the hol iday season, whi le our operating expenses  are more equal ly distributed
throughout the year. This  seasonal i ty, a long with other factors  that are beyond our control , including weather conditions  and the effects  of cl imate change,
could adversely affect our bus iness  and cause our results  of operations  to fluctuate.

Risks related to our supply chain

Disruptions of our supply chain could have a material adverse effect on our operating and financial results.

Disruption of our supply chain capabi l i ties  due to trade restrictions, pol i tical  instabi l i ty, severe weather, natural  disasters , publ ic health crises , war,
terrorism, product recal ls , labor supply shortages  or stoppages, the financial  or operational  instabi l i ty of key suppl iers  and carriers , changes  in diplomatic or
trade relationships  (including any sanctions, restrictions, and other responses  such as  those related to current geopol i tical  events), or other reasons  could
impair our abi l i ty to distribute our products . To the extent we are unable to mitigate the l ikel ihood or potentia l  impact of such events , there could be a materia l
adverse effect on our operating and financial  results .

We rely on international suppliers and any significant disruption to our supply chain could impair our ability to procure or distribute our products.

We do not manufacture our products  or raw materia ls  and rely on suppl iers  and manufacturers  located predominantly in APAC and China Mainland. We
also source other materia ls  used in our products , including i tems such as  content labels , elastics , buttons, clasps, and drawcords, from suppl iers  located
primari ly in this  region. Based on cost, during 2023:

• Approximately 42% of our products  were manufactured in Vietnam, 16% in Cambodia, 11% in Sri  Lanka, 10% in Indonesia, and 8% in Bangladesh, and
the remainder in other regions.
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• Approximately 40% of the fabric used in our products  originated from Taiwan, 26% from China Mainland, 12% from Sri  Lanka, and the remainder from
other regions.

The entire apparel  industry, including our company, could face supply chain chal lenges  as  a  result of the impacts  of global  publ ic health crises , pol i tical
instabi l i ty, inflationary pressures , macroeconomic conditions, and other factors , including reduced freight avai labi l i ty and increased costs , port disruption,
manufacturing faci l i ty closures , and related labor shortages  and other supply chain disruptions.

Our supply chain capabi l i ties  may be disrupted due to these or other factors , such as  severe weather, natural  disasters , war or other mi l i tary confl icts ,
terrorism, labor supply shortages  or stoppages, the financial  or operational  instabi l i ty of key suppl iers  or the countries  in which they operate, or changes  in
diplomatic or trade relationships  (including any sanctions, restrictions, and other responses  to geopol i tical  events). Any s igni ficant disruption in our supply
chain capabi l i ties  could impair our abi l i ty to procure or distribute our products , which would adversely affect our bus iness  and results  of operations.

A relatively small number of vendors supply and manufacture a significant portion of our products, and losing one or more of these vendors could adversely affect
our business and results of operations.

Many of the special ty fabrics  used in our products  are technical ly advanced texti le products  developed and manufactured by third parties  and may be
avai lable, in the short-term, from only one or a  l imited number of sources. We have no long-term contracts  with any of our suppl iers  or manufacturers  for the
production and supply of our raw materia ls  and products , and we compete with other companies  for fabrics , other raw materia ls , and production. During 2023,
we worked with approximately 49 vendors  to manufacture our products  and 67 suppl iers  to provide the fabric for our products . Based on cost, during 2023:

• Approximately 55% of our products  were manufactured by our top five vendors , the largest of which produced approximately 17% of our products ; and

• Approximately 52% of our fabrics  were produced by our top five fabric suppl iers , the largest of which produced approximately 19% of fabric used.

We have experienced, and may in the future experience, a  s igni ficant disruption in the supply of fabrics  or raw materia ls  and may be unable to locate
alternative suppl iers  of comparable qual i ty at an acceptable price, or at a l l . In addition, i f we experience s igni ficant increased demand, or i f we need to replace
an existing suppl ier or manufacturer, we may be unable to locate additional  suppl ies  of fabrics  or raw materia ls  or additional  manufacturing capacity on terms
that are acceptable to us , or at a l l , or we may be unable to locate any suppl ier or manufacturer with sufficient capacity to meet our requirements  or fi l l  our
orders  in a  timely manner. Identi fying a  suitable suppl ier i s  an involved process  that requires  us  to become satis fied with i ts  qual i ty control , responsiveness
and service, financial  s tabi l i ty, and labor and other ethical  practices . Even i f we are able to expand existing or find new manufacturing or fabric sources, we
may encounter delays  in production and added costs  as  a  result of the time i t takes  to train our suppl iers  and manufacturers  in our methods, products , and
qual i ty control  s tandards.

Our supply of fabric or manufacture of our products  could be disrupted or delayed by economic or pol i tical  or global  health conditions, and the related
government and private sector responsive actions  such as  closures , restrictions  on product shipments , and travel  restrictions. Delays  related to suppl ier
changes  could a lso arise due to an increase in shipping times i f new suppl iers  are located farther away from our markets  or from other participants  in our
supply chain. In addition, freight capacity i ssues  continue to pers ist worldwide as  there is  much greater demand for shipping and reduced capacity and
equipment. Any delays , interruption, or increased costs  in the supply of fabric or manufacture of our products  could have an adverse effect on our abi l i ty to
meet guest demand for our products  and result in lower net revenue and income from operations  both in the short and long term.

Our business could be harmed if our suppliers and manufacturers do not comply with our Vendor Code of Ethics or applicable laws.

While we require our suppl iers  and manufacturers  to comply with our Vendor Code of Ethics , which includes  labor, health and safety, and environment
standards, we do not control  their operations. If suppl iers  or contractors  do not comply with these standards  or appl icable laws or there is  negative publ ici ty
regarding the production methods of any of our suppl iers  or manufacturers , even i f unfounded or not speci fic to our supply chain, our reputation and sales
could be adversely affected, we could be subject to legal  l iabi l i ty, or could cause us  to contract with a l ternative suppl iers  or manufacturing sources.
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The fluctuating cost of raw materials could increase our cost of goods sold.

The fabrics  used to make our products  include synthetic fabrics  whose raw materia ls  include petroleum-based products . Our products  a lso include s i lver
and natural  fibers , including cotton. Our costs  for raw materia ls  are affected by, among other things , weather, consumer demand, speculation on the
commodities  market, the relative valuations  and fluctuations  of the currencies  of producer versus  consumer countries , and other factors  that are general ly
unpredictable and beyond our control . Any and al l  of these factors  may be exacerbated by global  cl imate change. In addition, pol i tical  instabi l i ty, trade
relations, sanctions, inflationary pressure, or other geopol i tical  or economic conditions  could cause raw materia l  costs  to increase and have an adverse effect
on our future margins . Increases  in the cost of raw materia ls , including petroleum or the prices  we pay for s i lver and our cotton yarn and cotton-based texti les ,
could have a materia l  adverse effect on our cost of goods sold, results  of operations, financial  condition, and cash flows.

If we encounter problems with our distribution system, our ability to deliver our products to the market and to meet guest expectations could be harmed.

We rely on our distribution faci l i ties  for substantia l ly a l l  of our product distribution. Our distribution faci l i ties  include computer control led and
automated equipment, which means their operations  may be subject to a  number of risks  related to securi ty or computer vi ruses , the proper operation of
software and hardware, electronic or power interruptions, or other system fai lures . In addition, our operations  could a lso be interrupted by labor di fficulties ,
pandemics , the impacts  of cl imate change, extreme or severe weather conditions  or by floods, fi res , or other natural  disasters  near our distribution centers . If
we encounter problems with our distribution system, our abi l i ty to meet guest expectations, manage inventory, complete sales , and achieve objectives  for
operating efficiencies  could be harmed.

Increasing labor costs and other factors associated with the production of our products in South Asia and South East Asia could increase the costs to produce our
products.

A s igni ficant portion of our products  are produced in South As ia  and South East As ia  and increases  in the costs  of labor and other costs  of doing bus iness
in the countries  in this  area could s igni ficantly increase our costs  to produce our products  and could have a negative impact on our operations  and earnings.
Factors  that could negatively affect our bus iness  include labor shortages  and increases  in labor costs , labor disputes , pandemics , the impacts  of cl imate
change, di fficulties  and additional  costs  in transporting products  manufactured from these countries  to our distribution centers  and s igni ficant revaluation of
the currencies  used in these countries , which may result in an increase in the cost of producing products . Also, the imposition of trade sanctions  or other
regulations  against products  imported by us  from, or the loss  of "normal  trade relations" status  with any country in which our products  are manufactured,
could s igni ficantly increase our cost of products  and harm our bus iness .

Risks related to information security and technology

We may be unable to safeguard against security breaches which could damage our customer relationships and result in significant legal and financial exposure.

As part of our normal  operations, we receive confidentia l , proprietary, and personal ly identi fiable information, including credit card information, and
information about our customers, our employees, job appl icants , and other third parties . Our bus iness  employs  systems and websites  that a l low for the storage
and transmiss ion of this  information. However, despite our safeguards  and securi ty processes  and protections, securi ty breaches  could expose us  to a  risk of
theft or misuse of this  information, and could result in l i tigation and potentia l  l iabi l i ty.

The retai l  industry, in particular, has  been the target of many recent cyber-attacks . We may not have the resources  or technical  sophistication to be able
to anticipate or prevent rapidly evolving types  of cyber-attacks . Attacks  may be targeted at us , our vendors  or customers, or others  who have entrusted us  with
information. In addition, despite taking measures  to safeguard our information securi ty and privacy environment from securi ty breaches, our customers  and
our bus iness  could sti l l  be exposed to risk. Actual  or anticipated attacks  may cause us  to incur increas ing costs  including costs  to deploy additional  personnel
and protection technologies , tra in employees  and engage third party experts  and consultants . Advances  in computer capabi l i ties , new technological  discoveries
or other developments  may result in the technology used by us  to protect transaction or other data being breached or compromised. Measures  we implement to
protect against cyber-attacks  may also have the potentia l  to impact our customers ' shopping experience or decrease activi ty on our websites  by making them
more di fficult to use.

Data and securi ty breaches  can also occur as  a  result of non-technical  i ssues  including intentional  or inadvertent breach by employees  or persons  with
whom we have commercial  relationships  that result in the unauthorized release of personal  or
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confidentia l  information. Any compromise or breach of our securi ty could result in a  violation of appl icable privacy and other laws, s igni ficant legal  and
financial  exposure, and damage to our brand and reputation or other harm to our bus iness .

In addition, the increased use of employee-owned devices  for communications  as  wel l  as  work-from-home arrangements  present additional  operational
risks  to our technology systems, including increased risks  of cyber-attacks . Further, l ike other companies  in the retai l  industry, we have in the past experienced,
and we expect to continue to experience, cyber-attacks , including phishing, and other attempts  to breach, or gain unauthorized access  to, our systems. To date,
these attacks  have not had a materia l  impact on our operations, but they may have a materia l  impact in the future.

Privacy and data protection laws increase our compliance burden.

We are subject to a  variety of privacy and data protection laws and regulations  that change frequently and have requirements  that vary from jurisdiction
to jurisdiction. For example, we are subject to s igni ficant compl iance obl igations  under privacy laws such as  the General  Data Privacy Regulation ("GDPR") in
the European Union, the Personal  Information Protection and Electronic Documents  Act (“PIPEDA”) in Canada, the Cal i fornia  Consumer Privacy Act ("CCPA")
modified by the Cal i fornia  Privacy Rights  Act (“CPRA”), and the Personal  Information Protection Law (“PIPL”) in the People's  Republ ic of China ("PRC") . Some
privacy laws prohibit the transfer of personal  information to certain other jurisdictions. We are subject to privacy and data protection audits  or investigations
by various  government agencies . Our fa i lure to comply with these laws subjects  us  to potentia l  regulatory enforcement activi ty, fines , private l i tigation
including class  actions, and other costs . Our efforts  to comply with privacy laws may compl icate our operations  and add to our compl iance costs . A s igni ficant
privacy breach or fa i lure or perceived fa i lure by us  or our third-party service providers  to comply with privacy or data protection laws, regulations, pol icies  or
regulatory guidance might have a materia l ly adverse impact on our reputation, bus iness  operations  and our financial  condition or results  of operations.

Disruption of our technology systems or unexpected network interruption could disrupt our business.

We are increas ingly dependent on technology systems and third-parties  to operate our e-commerce websites , process  transactions, respond to guest
inquiries , manage inventory, purchase, sel l  and ship goods on a timely bas is , and maintain cost-efficient operations. The fa i lure of our technology systems to
operate properly or effectively, problems with trans itioning to upgraded or replacement systems, or di fficulty in integrating new systems, could adversely affect
our bus iness . In addition, we have e-commerce websites  in the United States , Canada, and international ly. Our technology systems, websites , and operations  of
third parties  on whom we rely, may encounter damage or disruption or s lowdown caused by a  fa i lure to successful ly upgrade systems, system fai lures , vi ruses ,
computer "hackers", natural  disasters , or other causes. These could cause information, including data related to guest orders , to be lost or delayed which could,
especial ly i f the disruption or s lowdown occurred during the hol iday season, result in delays  in the del ivery of products  to our stores  and guests  or lost sales ,
which could reduce demand for our products  and cause our sales  to decl ine. The concentration of our primary offices , several  of our distribution centers , and a
number of our stores  a long the west coast of North America could ampl i fy the impact of a  natural  disaster occurring in that area to our bus iness , including to
our technology systems. In addition, i f changes  in technology cause our information systems to become obsolete, or i f our information systems are inadequate
to handle our growth, we could lose guests . We have l imited back-up systems and redundancies , and our technology systems and websites  have experienced
system fai lures  and electrical  outages  in the past which have disrupted our operations. Any s igni ficant disruption in our technology systems or websites  could
harm our reputation and credibi l i ty, and could have a materia l  adverse effect on our bus iness , financial  condition, and results  of operations.

Our technology-based systems that give our customers the ability to shop with us online may not function effectively.

Many of our customers  shop with us  through our e-commerce websites  and mobi le apps. Increas ingly, customers  are us ing tablets  and smart phones to
shop onl ine with us  and with our competitors  and to do comparison shopping. We are increas ingly us ing socia l  media and proprietary mobi le apps  to interact
with our customers  and as  a  means to enhance their shopping experience. Any fa i lure on our part to provide attractive, effective, rel iable, user-friendly e-
commerce platforms that offer a  wide assortment of merchandise with rapid del ivery options  and that continual ly meet the changing expectations  of onl ine
shoppers  could place us  at a  competitive disadvantage, result in the loss  of e-commerce and other sales , harm our

 PRC includes China Mainland, Hong Kong SAR, Taiwan, and Macau SAR.
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reputation with customers, have a materia l  adverse impact on the growth of our e-commerce bus iness  global ly and could have a materia l  adverse impact on our
business  and results  of operations.

Risks related to environmental, social, and governance issues

Climate change, and related legislative and regulatory responses to climate change, may adversely impact our business.

There is  increas ing concern that a  gradual  rise in global  average temperatures  due to increased concentration of carbon dioxide and other greenhouse
gases  in the atmosphere wi l l  cause s igni ficant changes  in weather patterns  around the globe, an increase in the frequency, severi ty, and duration of extreme
weather conditions  and natural  disasters , and water scarci ty and poor water qual i ty. These events  could adversely impact the cultivation of cotton, which is  a
key resource in the production of our products , disrupt the operation of our supply chain and the productivi ty of our contract manufacturers , increase our
production costs , impose capacity restraints  and impact the types  of apparel  products  that consumers  purchase. These events  could a lso compound adverse
economic conditions  and impact consumer confidence and discretionary spending. As  a  result, the effects  of cl imate change could have a long-term adverse
impact on our bus iness  and results  of operations. In many countries , governmental  bodies  are enacting new or additional  legis lation and regulations  to reduce
or mitigate the potentia l  impacts  of cl imate change. If we, our suppl iers , or our contract manufacturers  are required to comply with these laws and regulations,
or i f we choose to take voluntary steps  to reduce or mitigate our impact on cl imate change, we may experience increased costs  for energy, production,
transportation, and raw materia ls , increased capital  expenditures , or increased insurance premiums and deductibles , which could adversely impact our
operations. Inconsistency of legis lation and regulations  among jurisdictions  may also affect the costs  of compl iance with such laws and regulations. Any
assessment of the potentia l  impact of future cl imate change legis lation, regulations  or industry standards, as  wel l  as  any international  treaties  and accords, i s
uncertain given the wide scope of potentia l  regulatory change in the countries  in which we operate.

Increased scrutiny from investors and others regarding our environmental, social, governance, or sustainability, responsibilities could result in additional costs or
risks and adversely impact our reputation, employee retention, and willingness of customers and suppliers to do business with us.

Investor and pol i tical  advocacy groups, certain insti tutional  investors , investment funds, other market participants , s tockholders , and customers  have
focused increas ingly on the environmental , socia l  and governance ("ESG") practices  of companies , including those associated with cl imate change and socia l
responsibi l i ty. These parties  have placed increased importance on the impl ications  of the socia l  cost of their investments . If our ESG practices  do not meet
customer, investor, employee, or other stakeholder expectations  or do not a l ign with their opinions  or values, our brand, reputation, employee retention, and
business  may be negatively impacted. Any sustainabi l i ty report that we publ ish or other ESG disclosures  we make may include our pol icies  and practices  on a
variety of socia l  and ethical  matters , including corporate governance, environmental  compl iance, employee health and safety practices , human capital
management, product qual i ty, supply chain management, and workforce inclus ion and divers i ty. It i s  poss ible that stakeholders  may not be satis fied with our
ESG pol icies  or practices , including i f we overstate the impact of our ESG practices , and this  could reduce demand for our products  and lead to regulatory
enforcement that could restrict our abi l i ty to market and sel l  our products . We could a lso incur additional  costs  and require additional  resources  to monitor,
report, and comply with various  ESG practices . Also, our fa i lure, or perceived fa i lure, to meet the standards  included in any sustainabi l i ty disclosure could
negatively impact our reputation, employee retention, and the wi l l ingness  of our customers  and suppl iers  to do bus iness  with us .

Risks related to global economic, political, and regulatory conditions

An economic recession, depression, downturn, periods of inflation, or economic uncertainty in our key markets may adversely affect consumer discretionary
spending and demand for our products.

Many of our products  may be cons idered discretionary i tems for consumers. Some of the factors  that may influence consumer spending on discretionary
items include general  economic conditions, high levels  of unemployment, pandemics , higher consumer debt levels , reductions  in net worth based on market
decl ines  and uncertainty, home foreclosures  and reductions  in home values, fluctuating interest and foreign currency exchange rates  and credit avai labi l i ty,
government austeri ty measures, fluctuating fuel  and other energy costs , fluctuating commodity prices , inflationary pressure, tax rates  and general  uncertainty
regarding the overal l  future economic environment. Global  economic conditions  are uncertain and volati le, due in part to the potentia l  impacts  of increas ing
inflation, the potentia l  impacts  of geopol i tical  uncertainties , and any potentia l  sanctions, restrictions  or responses  to those conditions. For example, the PRC
market presents  a  number of risks , including changes  in laws and regulations, currency fluctuations, increased competition, and changes  in economic
conditions, including the risk of an economic downturn or recess ion, trade embargoes, restrictions  or other barriers , as  wel l  as  other conditions  that may
adversely impact consumer spending, any of which could cause us  to fa i l  to achieve anticipated growth. As  global  economic conditions  continue to be volati le
or economic uncertainty remains, trends  in consumer discretionary
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spending also remain unpredictable and subject to reductions  due to credit constraints  and uncertainties  about the future. Unfavorable economic conditions
may lead consumers  to delay or reduce purchases  of our products . Consumer demand for our products  may not reach our targets , or may decl ine, when there is
an economic downturn or economic uncertainty in our key markets . Our sens itivi ty to economic cycles  and any related fluctuation in consumer demand may
have a materia l  adverse effect on our financial  condition.

Our financial condition could be adversely affected by global or regional health events such as the COVID-19 pandemic and related government, private sector,
and individual consumer responsive actions.

The COVID-19 pandemic negatively impacted the global  economy, disrupted consumer spending and global  supply chains , and created s igni ficant
volati l i ty and disruption of financial  markets . The COVID-19 pandemic and related government, private sector, and individual  consumer responsive actions
negatively impacted our bus iness  operations, s tore traffic, employee avai labi l i ty, supply chain, financial  condition, l iquidity, and cash flows.

The occurrence or resurgence of global  or regional  health events  such as  the COVID-19 pandemic, and the related governmental , private sector and
individual  consumer responses, could contribute to a  recess ion, depress ion, or global  economic downturn, reduce store traffic and consumer spending, result
in temporary or permanent closures  of retai l  locations, offices , and factories , and could negatively impact the flow of goods. Such events  could cause health
officia ls  to impose restrictions  and recommend precautions  to mitigate the health cris is  such as  the temporary closure of our stores , l imitations  on the number
of guests  a l lowed in our stores  at any s ingle time, minimum phys ical  distancing requirements , and l imited operating hours . A health event such as  the COVID-19
pandemic could a lso negatively impact our employees, guests , and brand by reducing consumer wi l l ingness  to vis i t s tores , mal ls , and l i festyle centers , and
employee wi l l ingness  to staff our stores . A global  or regional  health event may also cause long-term changes  to consumer shopping behavior, preferences  and
demand for our products  that may have a materia l  adverse effect on our bus iness .

A global  or regional  health event such as  the COVID-19 pandemic could s igni ficantly and adversely impact our supply chain i f the factories  that
manufacture our products , the distribution centers  where we manage our inventory, or the operations  of our logistics  and other service providers  are disrupted,
temporari ly closed, or experience worker shortages.

Global economic and political conditions could adversely impact our results of operations.

Uncertain or chal lenging global  economic and pol i tical  conditions  could impact our performance, including our abi l i ty to successful ly expand
international ly. Global  economic conditions  could impact levels  of consumer spending in the markets  in which we operate, which could impact our sales  and
profi tabi l i ty. Pol i tical  unrest, such as  the turmoi l  related to current geopol i tical  events  and the related sanctions, restrictions, or other responses, could
negatively impact our guests  and employees, reduce consumer spending, and adversely impact our bus iness  and results  of operations.

We may be unable to source and sell our merchandise profitably or at all if new trade restrictions are imposed or existing restrictions become more burdensome.

The United States  and the countries  in which our products  are produced or sold have imposed and may impose additional  quotas , duties , tari ffs , or other
restrictions  or regulations, or may adversely adjust prevai l ing quota, duty, or tari ff levels . The results  of any audits  or related disputes  regarding these
restrictions  or regulations  could have an adverse effect on our financial  s tatements  for the period or periods  for which the appl icable final  determinations  are
made. Countries  impose, modify, and remove tari ffs  and other trade restrictions  in response to a  diverse array of factors , including global  and national
economic and pol i tical  conditions, which make i t imposs ible for us  to predict future developments  regarding tari ffs  and other trade restrictions. Trade
restrictions, including tari ffs , quotas , embargoes, safeguards, and customs restrictions, could increase the cost or reduce the supply of products  avai lable to
us, could increase shipping times, or may require us  to modify our supply chain organization or other current bus iness  practices , any of which could harm our
business , financial  condition, and results  of operations.

We are dependent on international  trade agreements  and regulations. The countries  in which we produce and sel l  our products  could impose or increase
tari ffs , duties , or other s imi lar charges  that could negatively affect our results  of operations, financial  pos ition, or cash flows.

Adverse changes  in, or withdrawal  from, trade agreements  or pol i tical  relationships  between the United States  and the PRC, Canada, or other countries
where we sel l  or source our products , could negatively impact our results  of operations  or cash flows. General  geopol i tical  instabi l i ty and the responses  to i t,
such as  the poss ibi l i ty of sanctions, trade restrictions, and changes  in tari ffs , including sanctions  against the PRC, tari ffs  imposed by the United States  and the
PRC, and the poss ibi l i ty of additional  tari ffs  or other trade restrictions, could adversely impact our bus iness . It i s  poss ible that further tari ffs  may be
introduced, or increased. Such changes  could adversely impact our bus iness  and could increase the costs  of sourcing our
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products  from the PRC as  wel l  as  other countries , or could require us  to source our products  from di fferent countries . The Uyghur Forced Labor Prevention Act
and other s imi lar legis lation may lead to greater supply chain compl iance costs  and delays  to us  and to our vendors .

Changes in tax laws or unanticipated tax liabilities could adversely affect our effective income tax rate and profitability.

We are subject to the income tax laws of the United States , Canada, and several  other international  jurisdictions. Our effective income tax rates  could be
unfavorably impacted by a  number of factors , including changes  in the mix of earnings  amongst countries  with di ffering statutory tax rates , changes  in the
valuation of deferred tax assets  and l iabi l i ties , changes  in tax laws, new tax interpretations  and guidance, the outcome of income tax audits  in various
jurisdictions  around the world, and any repatriation of unremitted earnings  for which we have not previous ly accrued appl icable U.S. income taxes  and
international  withholding taxes.

Repatriations  from our Canadian subs idiaries  are not subject to Canadian withholding taxes  i f such distributions  are made as  a  return of capital . The
extent to which the accumulated earnings  of our Canadian subs idiaries  can be repatriated as  a  return of capital  i s  dependent on, among other things , the
amount of paid-up-capital  in our Canadian subs idiaries  and transactions  undertaken by our exchangeable shareholders .

Prior to 2022, we had not accrued for Canadian withholding taxes  because the accumulated earnings  of, or 'net investment' in, our Canadian subs idiaries
was ei ther indefini tely reinvested or could be repatriated as  a  return of capital  without the payment of withholding taxes.

Since 2022, the net investment in our Canadian subs idiaries , which was not indefini tely reinvested, exceeded the paid-up capital  and therefore we
recognized Canadian withholding taxes  on the portion of our net investment which we are unable to repatriate free of withholding tax.

In 2024, assuming there are no exchange transactions  by our exchangeable shareholders , we wi l l  continue to recognize Canadian withholding taxes  on
the accumulated earnings  of our Canadian subs idiaries  which are not indefini tely reinvested.

We engage in a  number of intercompany transactions  across  multiple tax jurisdictions. Although we bel ieve that these transactions  reflect the accurate
economic a l location of profi t and that proper transfer pricing documentation is  in place, the profi t a l location and transfer pricing terms and conditions  may be
scrutinized by local  tax authori ties  during an audit and any resulting changes  may impact our mix of earnings  in countries  with di ffering statutory tax rates . At
the end of 2020, our Advance Pricing Arrangement ("APA") with the Internal  Revenue Service and the Canada Revenue Agency expired. This  APA stipulated the
al location of certain profi ts  between the U.S. and Canada. We are currently in the process  of negotiating the renewal  of this  arrangement and the final  agreed
upon terms and conditions  thereof could impact our effective tax rate.

Current economic and pol i tical  conditions  make tax rules  in any jurisdiction, including the United States  and Canada, subject to s igni ficant change.
Changes  in appl icable U.S., Canadian, or other international  tax laws and regulations, or their interpretation and appl ication, including the poss ibi l i ty of
retroactive effect, could affect our income tax expense and profi tabi l i ty, as  they did in fi scal  2017 and fiscal  2018 upon passage of the U.S. Tax Cuts  and Jobs
Act, and in 2020 with the passage of the Coronavirus  Aid, Rel ief, and Economic Securi ty Act. Certain provis ions  of the Inflation Reduction Act passed in 2022,
including a  15% corporate a l ternative minimum tax, as  wel l  as  the s imi lar 15% global  minimum tax under the Organization for Economic Cooperation and
Development's  Pi l lar Two Global  Anti -Base Eros ion Rules , may impact our income tax expense, profi tabi l i ty, and capital  a l location decis ions.

Our failure to comply with trade and other regulations could lead to investigations or actions by government regulators and negative publicity.

The label ing, distribution, importation, marketing, and sale of our products , as  wel l  as  components  of our products , including chemicals , are subject to
extens ive regulation by various  regulatory bodies . These include federal  agencies  such as  the Federal  Trade Commiss ion, Consumer Product Safety Commiss ion
and state attorneys  general  in the United States , the Competition Bureau and Health Canada in Canada, the State Administration for Market Regulation of the
PRC, General  Administration of Customs of the PRC, as  wel l  as  other federal , s tate, provincia l , local , and international  regulatory authori ties  in the countries  in
which our products  are distributed or sold. If we fa i l  to comply with any of these regulations, we could become subject to enforcement actions  or the imposition
of s igni ficant penalties  or cla ims, which could harm our results  of operations  or our abi l i ty to conduct our bus iness . In addition, any audits  and inspections  by
governmental  agencies  related to these matters  could result in s igni ficant settlement amounts , damages, fines , or other penalties , divert financial  and
management resources, and result in s igni ficant legal  fees . An unfavorable outcome of any particular proceeding could have an adverse impact on our
business , financial  condition, and results  of operations. In addition, the adoption of new regulations
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or changes  in the interpretation of existing regulations  may result in s igni ficant compl iance costs  or discontinuation of product sales  and could impair the
marketing of our products , resulting in s igni ficant loss  of net revenue.

Our international  operations  are a lso subject to compl iance with the U.S. Foreign Corrupt Practices  Act ("FCPA") and other anti -bribery laws appl icable to
our operations. In many countries , particularly in those with developing economies, i t may be a local  custom that bus inesses  operating in such countries
engage in bus iness  practices  that are prohibited by the FCPA or other U.S. and international  laws and regulations  appl icable to us . As  we expand our operations
across  multiple jurisdictions, we could be subject to confl icting laws, or di ffering consumer sentiment on appl ication of laws, that could lead to non-
compl iance which could have an adverse effect on our operations. Although we have implemented procedures  des igned to ensure compl iance with the FCPA and
simi lar laws, some of our employees, agents , or other partners , as  wel l  as  those companies  to which we outsource certain of our bus iness  operations, could
take actions  in violation of our pol icies . Any such violation could have a materia l  and adverse effect on our bus iness .

As  we expand international ly, we are subject to complex employee regulations, and i f we fa i l  to comply with these regulations, we could be subject to
enforcement actions  or negative employee relations  which could harm our results  of operations.

Because a significant portion of our net revenue and expenses are generated in countries other than the United States, fluctuations in foreign currency exchange
rates have affected our results of operations and may continue to do so in the future.

The functional  currency of our international  subs idiaries  i s  general ly the appl icable local  currency. Our consol idated financial  s tatements  are presented
in U.S. dol lars . Therefore, the net revenue, expenses, assets , and l iabi l i ties  of our international  subs idiaries  are trans lated from their functional  currencies  into
U.S. dol lars . Fluctuations  in the value of the U.S. dol lar affect the reported amounts  of net revenue, expenses, assets , and l iabi l i ties . Foreign currency exchange
differences  which arise on trans lation of our international  subs idiaries ' balance sheets  into U.S. dol lars  are recorded as  other comprehensive income (loss), net
of tax in accumulated other comprehensive income or loss  within stockholders ' equity.

We also have exposure to changes  in foreign currency exchange rates  associated with transactions  which are undertaken by our subs idiaries  in
currencies  other than their functional  currency. Such transactions  include intercompany transactions  and inventory purchases  denominated in currencies  other
than the functional  currency of the purchas ing enti ty. As  a  result, we have been impacted by changes  in foreign currency exchange rates  and may be impacted
for the foreseeable future. The potentia l  impact of currency fluctuation increases  as  our international  expansion increases.

Although we use financial  instruments  to hedge certain foreign currency risks , these measures  may not succeed in ful ly offsetting the negative impact of
foreign currency rate movements .

We are exposed to credit-related losses  in the event of nonperformance by the counterparties  to forward currency contracts  used in our hedging
strategies .

Risks related to intellectual property

Our fabrics and manufacturing technology generally are not patented and can be imitated by our competitors. If our competitors sell products similar to ours at
lower prices, our net revenue and profitability could suffer.

The intel lectual  property rights  in the technology, fabrics , and processes  used to manufacture our products  general ly are owned or control led by our
suppl iers  and are general ly not unique to us . Our abi l i ty to obtain intel lectual  property protection for our products  i s  therefore l imited. We hold l imited patents
and exclus ive intel lectual  property rights  in the technology, fabrics  or processes  underlying our products . As  a  result, our current and future competitors  are
able to manufacture and sel l  products  with performance characteristics , fabrics  and styl ing s imi lar to our products . Because many of our competitors  have
s igni ficantly greater financial , distribution, marketing, and other resources  than we do, they may be able to manufacture and sel l  products  based on our fabrics
and manufacturing technology at lower prices  than we can. If our competitors  sel l  products  s imi lar to ours  at lower prices , our net revenue and profi tabi l i ty
could suffer.

Our failure or inability to protect our intellectual property rights could diminish the value of our brand and weaken our competitive position.

We currently rely on a combination of patent, copyright, trademark, trade dress , trade secret, and unfair competition laws, as  wel l  as  confidentia l i ty
procedures  and l icens ing arrangements , to establ ish and protect our intel lectual  property rights . The steps  we take to protect our intel lectual  property rights
may not be adequate to prevent infringement of these rights  by others , including imitation of our products  and misappropriation of our brand. In addition, any
of our intel lectual
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property rights  may be chal lenged, which could result in them being narrowed in scope or declared inval id or unenforceable, or our intel lectual  property
protection may be unavai lable or l imited in some international  countries  where laws or law enforcement practices  may not protect our intel lectual  property
rights  as  ful ly as  in the United States  or Canada, and i t may be more di fficult for us  to successful ly chal lenge the use of our intel lectual  property rights  by other
parties  in these countries . If we fa i l  to protect and maintain our intel lectual  property rights , the value of our brand could be diminished, and our competitive
position may suffer.

Our trademarks, patents, and other proprietary rights could potentially conflict with the rights of others and we may be prevented from selling some of our
products.

Our success  depends in large part on our brand image. We bel ieve that our trademarks, patents , and other proprietary rights  have s igni ficant value and
are important to identi fying and di fferentiating our products  from those of our competitors  and creating and sustaining demand for our products . We have
appl ied for and obtained some United States , Canada, and international  trademark registrations  and patents , and wi l l  continue to evaluate additional
trademarks  and patents  as  appropriate. However, some or a l l  of these pending trademark or patent appl ications  may not be approved by the appl icable
governmental  authori ties . Moreover, even i f the appl ications  are approved, third parties  may seek to oppose or otherwise chal lenge these appl ications  or
registrations. Additional ly, we may face obstacles  as  we expand our product l ine and the geographic scope of our sales  and marketing. Third parties  may assert
intel lectual  property cla ims against us , particularly as  we expand our bus iness  and the number of products  we offer. Our defense of any cla im, regardless  of i ts
merit, could be expensive and time consuming and could divert management resources. Successful  infringement cla ims against us  could result in s igni ficant
monetary l iabi l i ty or prevent us  from sel l ing some of our products . In addition, resolution of cla ims may require us  to redes ign our products , l icense rights  from
third parties , or cease us ing those rights  a l together. Any of these events  could harm our bus iness  and cause our results  of operations, l iquidity, and financial
condition to suffer.

We have been, and in the future may be, sued by third parties for alleged infringement of their proprietary rights.

There is  cons iderable patent and other intel lectual  property development activi ty in our market, and l i tigation, based on al legations  of infringement or
other violations  of intel lectual  property, i s  frequent in the fi tness  and technology industries . Furthermore, i t i s  common for individuals  and groups to purchase
patents  and other intel lectual  property assets  for the purpose of making cla ims of infringement to extract settlements  from companies  l ike ours . Our use of
third-party content, including music content, software, and other intel lectual  property rights  may be subject to cla ims of infringement or misappropriation. We
cannot guarantee that our internal ly developed or acquired technologies  and content do not or wi l l  not infringe the intel lectual  property rights  of others . From
time to time, our competitors  or other third parties  may cla im that we are infringing upon or misappropriating their intel lectual  property rights , and we may be
found to be infringing upon such rights . Any cla ims or l i tigation could cause us  to incur s igni ficant expenses  and, i f successful ly asserted against us , could
require that we pay substantia l  damages or ongoing royalty payments , prevent us  from offering our platform or services  or us ing certain technologies , force us
to implement expensive work-arounds, or impose other unfavorable terms. We expect that the occurrence of infringement cla ims is  l ikely to grow as  the market
for fi tness  products  and services  grows and as  we introduce new and updated products  and offerings . Accordingly, our exposure to damages resulting from
infringement cla ims could increase and this  could further exhaust our financial  and management resources. Any of the foregoing could prevent us  from
competing effectively and could have an adverse effect on our bus iness , financial  condition, and operating results .

Risks related to legal and governance matters

We are subject to periodic claims and litigation that could result in unexpected expenses and could ultimately be resolved against us.

From time to time, we are involved in l i tigation and other proceedings, including matters  related to product l iabi l i ty cla ims, stockholder class  action and
derivative cla ims, commercial  disputes  and intel lectual  property, as  wel l  as  trade, regulatory, employment, and other cla ims related to our bus iness . Any of
these proceedings  could result in s igni ficant settlement amounts , damages, fines , or other penalties , divert financial  and management resources, and result in
s igni ficant legal  fees . An unfavorable outcome of any particular proceeding could exceed the l imits  of our insurance pol icies  or the carriers  may decl ine to fund
such final  settlements  and/or judgments  and could have an adverse impact on our bus iness , financial  condition, and results  of operations. In addition, any
proceeding could negatively impact our reputation among our guests  and our brand image.

Our business could be negatively affected as a result of actions of activist stockholders or others.

We may be subject to actions  or proposals  from stockholders  or others  that may not a l ign with our bus iness  strategies  or the interests  of our other
stockholders . Responding to such actions  can be costly and time-consuming, disrupt our bus iness
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and operations, and divert the attention of our board of directors , management, and employees  from the pursuit of our bus iness  strategies . Such activi ties  could
interfere with our abi l i ty to execute our strategic plan. Activist s tockholders  or others  may create perceived uncertainties  as  to the future direction of our
bus iness  or strategy which may be exploited by our competitors  and may make i t more di fficult to attract and retain qual i fied personnel  and potentia l  guests ,
and may affect our relationships  with current guests , vendors , investors , and other third parties . In addition, a  proxy contest for the election of directors  at our
annual  meeting would require us  to incur s igni ficant legal  fees  and proxy sol ici tation expenses  and require s igni ficant time and attention by management and
our board of directors . The perceived uncertainties  as  to our future direction also could affect the market price and volati l i ty of our securi ties .

Anti-takeover provisions of Delaware law and our certificate of incorporation and bylaws could delay and discourage takeover attempts that stockholders may
consider to be favorable.

Certain provis ions  of our certi ficate of incorporation and bylaws and appl icable provis ions  of the Delaware General  Corporation Law may make i t more
difficult or imposs ible for a  third-party to acquire control  of us  or effect a  change in our board of directors  and management. These provis ions  include:

• the class i fication of our board of directors  into three classes , with one class  elected each year;

• prohibiting cumulative voting in the election of directors ;

• the abi l i ty of our board of directors  to issue preferred stock without stockholder approval ;

• the abi l i ty to remove a director only for cause and only with the vote of the holders  of at least 66 2/3% of our voting stock;

• a special  meeting of stockholders  may only be cal led by our chairman or Chief Executive Officer, or upon a resolution adopted by an affi rmative vote
of a  majori ty of the board of directors , and not by our stockholders ;

• prohibiting stockholder action by written consent; and

• our stockholders  must comply with advance notice procedures  in order to nominate candidates  for election to our board of directors  or to place
stockholder proposals  on the agenda for cons ideration at any meeting of our stockholders .

In addition, we are governed by Section 203 of the Delaware General  Corporation Law which, subject to some speci fied exceptions, prohibits  "bus iness
combinations" between a Delaware corporation and an "interested stockholder," which is  general ly defined as  a  stockholder who becomes a beneficia l  owner of
15% or more of a  Delaware corporation's  voting stock, for a  three-year period fol lowing the date that the stockholder became an interested stockholder.
Section 203 could have the effect of delaying, deferring, or preventing a  change in control  that our stockholders  might cons ider to be in their best interests .

ITEM 1C. CYBERSECURITY

Risk Management and Strategy

Our bus iness  operations  and relationships  with customers  and suppl iers  are heavi ly rel iant on technology. We operate a  cybersecuri ty program des igned
to assess  our securi ty risks  and threats , to manage those risks  and protect our technology systems and data, and to detect and respond to cybersecuri ty
incidents .

We manage strategic risks , including cybersecuri ty risk, through our Enterprise Risk Management program which has  direct involvement from the board of
directors , the audit committee, and senior management. Through this  process , we have identi fied cybersecuri ty as  a  risk management priori ty.

Governance

Our board of directors  provides  overs ight of cybersecuri ty risks  and has  delegated primary responsibi l i ty to the audit committee, which is  responsible for
overseeing our enterprise risk assessments  and management pol icies , procedures, and practices  (including regarding those risks  related to information
securi ty, cybersecuri ty, and data protection).

The audit committee maintains  a  cybersecuri ty sub-committee that i s  comprised of our Chief Information Officer ("CIO"), our Chief Information Securi ty
Officer ("CISO"), and representatives  from the audit committee and board of directors  that have knowledge and experience in cybersecuri ty matters . The
cybersecuri ty sub-committee reviews our cybersecuri ty
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risk assessments  and the steps  being taken to monitor, control , and report on those risks  as  wel l  as  discusses  regulatory and market developments . They also
review our process  for identi fying and responding to cybersecuri ty incidents  in a  timely manner, and detai ls  of cybersecuri ty attacks  or incidents  which have
occurred.

Management general ly meets  with, and provides  reports  to, the cybersecuri ty sub-committee on a quarterly bas is . Our CIO and CISO also meet with and
provide reports  to the audit committee at least quarterly. The board of directors  receives  periodic reports  regarding the activi ties  of the cybersecuri ty sub-
committee. These reports  and meetings  are des igned to inform the board of directors  and committees  about the current state of our information securi ty
program including cybersecuri ty risks , the nature, timing, and extent of cybersecuri ty incidents , i f any, and the resolution of such matters .

Cybersecurity Program and Incident Response

Our CISO is  responsible for our cybersecuri ty program, including risk assessments , information securi ty activi ties , and controls . The CISO is  responsible
for establ ishing and maintaining corporate information securi ty pol icies  and overseeing our risk management activi ties , which priori tize vulnerabi l i ty
management, risk reduction, and prevention. Our CISO also leads  our Cyber Defense and Incident Response (“CDIR”) team which identi fies , assesses , escalates ,
and remediates  cybersecuri ty incidents . Our current CISO has  over 25 years  of experience in information securi ty across  di fferent industries  in the US, Europe,
and South and Central  America. Our current CISO is  a  member of the Information Systems Audit and Control  Association and brings  extens ive experience and
knowledge of cybersecuri ty risk management.

The CDIR team identi fies , tracks , reviews, assesses , and takes  actions  over key cybersecuri ty risks  including but not l imited to: (i ) third parties/vendors ,
(i i ) cloud securi ty, (i i i ) mal icious  code, (iv) our digi ta l  e-commerce channels  and systems, and (v) our store technology. The CDIR team also undertakes
enterprise architecture reviews, cons iders  cyber defense and incident response findings , performs vulnerabi l i ty scans, and assesses  threats  and performs
landscape intel l igence analys is .

As  part of our cybersecuri ty program, we conduct cybersecuri ty awareness  training including phishing s imulations  and supplemental  campaigns  as  wel l
as  mandatory e-learning for a l l  our employees. Our employees  have multiple mechanisms for reporting cybersecuri ty and data privacy concerns. We work with
third-party cybersecuri ty advisors  to undertake assessments  of our cri tical  systems and to remediate any high-risk vulnerabi l i ties  identi fied. We also engage
third parties  to perform penetration testing on our key systems to identi fy potentia l  weaknesses.

As  part of our cyber incident response plan, we uti l i ze an establ ished framework to assess  the severi ty of cybersecuri ty incidents . Under the plan,
incidents  are escalated to relevant senior management, and the board of directors , as  appropriate, based on their severi ty. Our disclosure committee assesses
the materia l i ty of severe incidents  including both quanti tative and qual i tative factors .

Third Parties

We uti l i ze third-party service providers  as  a  normal  part of our bus iness  operations. To address  cybersecuri ty risks  aris ing from our relationships  with
third-party service providers , we employ a  vendor risk program. We monitor risks  relating to potentia l  compromises  of sens itive information at our third-party
service providers  and re-evaluate the risks  associated with our partners  periodical ly. Prior to exchanging our data with third-party service providers , they are
required to go through a vendor risk assessment. We also conduct third-party securi ty reviews and evaluate their network, processes , and systems. In addition,
we obtain annual  attestation reports  related to data securi ty and privacy from certain third-party service providers  to further support compl iance with
industry-standard cybersecuri ty protocols .

Impact of Cybersecurity Risks on Strategy and Results

Based on the information avai lable as  of the date of this  Annual  Report, we have not been materia l ly affected by any previous  cybersecuri ty incidents .
However, we continue to experience cyber-attacks , including phishing, and other attempts  to break or gain unauthorized access  to our systems that could
materia l ly affect us  in the future. For further information, see “Risks  related to information securi ty and technology” included in Item 1A. Risk Factors  of this
Annual  Report.
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ITEM 2. PROPERTIES

Our principal  executive and administrative offices  are located at 1818 Cornwal l  Avenue, Vancouver, Bri tish Columbia, Canada, V6J 1C7.

The general  location, use and approximate s ize of our principal  owned properties  as  of January 28, 2024, are set forth below:

Location Use Approximate Square Feet
Grove port, OH, Uni te d Sta te s Di s tri buti on Ce nte r 310,000 
Va ncouve r, BC, Ca na da Exe cuti ve  a nd Admi ni s tra ti ve  Offi ce s 140,000 

We lease non-retai l  properties  in a  number of locations  global ly. The general  location, use, approximate s ize and lease renewal  date of our principal  non-
retai l  leased properties  as  of January 28, 2024, are set forth below:

Location Use Approximate Square Feet Lease Renewal Date
De l ta , BC, Ca na da Di s tri buti on Ce nte r 375,000 De ce mbe r 2037
Mi l ton, ON, Ca na da Di s tri buti on Ce nte r 255,000 Ma y 2031
Mi s s i s s a uga , ON, Ca na da Di s tri buti on Ce nte r 250,000 Se pte mbe r 2033
Ra ve nha l l , VIC, Aus tra l i a Di s tri buti on Ce nte r 250,000 Se pte mbe r 2033
De l ta , BC, Ca na da Di s tri buti on Ce nte r 155,000 Ja nua ry 2031
Sumne r, WA, Uni te d Sta te s Di s tri buti on Ce nte r 150,000 Jul y 2025
Va ncouve r, BC, Ca na da Exe cuti ve  a nd Admi ni s tra ti ve  Offi ce s 120,000 Octobe r 2032

During 2021, we entered into a  new lease for a  U.S. distribution center in Ontario, Cal i fornia  of approximately 1,255,000 square feet which expires  in
2039. We expect this  distribution center to be operational  in early fi scal  2024.

During 2022, we entered into a  new lease for a  Canadian distribution center in Brampton, Ontario of approximately 980,000 square feet which expires  in
2041. We expect this  distribution center to be operational  in fi scal  2026.

ITEM 3. LEGAL PROCEEDINGS

Please see the legal  proceedings  described in Note 21. Commitments  and Contingencies  included in Item 8 of Part II  of this  report.

ITEM 4. MINE SAFETY DISCLOSURES

Not appl icable.
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PART II

ITEM 5. MARKET FOR REGISTRANT'S COMMON EQUITY, RELATED STOCKHOLDER MATTERS AND ISSUER PURCHASES OF EQUITY SECURITIES

Market Information and Dividends
Our common stock is  quoted on the Nasdaq Global  Select Market under the symbol  "LULU."

As  of March 15, 2024, there were approximately 1,300 holders  of record of our common stock. This  does  not include persons  whose stock is  in nominee or
"street name" accounts  through brokers .

We do not anticipate paying any cash dividends on our common stock in the foreseeable future. Any future determination as  to the payment of cash
dividends wi l l  be at the discretion of our board of directors  and wi l l  depend on our financial  condition, operating results , current and anticipated cash needs,
plans  for expansion, and other factors  that our board of directors  cons iders  to be relevant. In addition, financial  and other covenants  in any instruments  or
agreements  that we enter into in the future may restrict our abi l i ty to pay cash dividends on our common stock.

Stock Performance Graph
The graph set forth below compares  the cumulative total  s tockholder return on our common stock between February 3, 2019 (the date of our fi scal  year

end five years  ago) and January 28, 2024, with the cumulative total  return of (i ) the S&P 500 Index and (i i ) S&P 500 Apparel , Accessories  & Luxury Goods Index,
over the same period. This  graph assumes the investment of $100 on February 3, 2019 at the clos ing sale price of our common stock, the S&P 500 Index and the
S&P Apparel , Accessories  & Luxury Goods Index and assumes the reinvestment of dividends, i f any.

The comparisons  shown in the graph below are based on historical  data. We caution that the stock price performance shown in the graph below is  not
necessari ly indicative of, nor is  i t intended to forecast, the potentia l  future performance of our common stock. Information used in the graph was obtained from
Bloomberg, a  source bel ieved to be rel iable, but we are not responsible for any errors  or omiss ions  in such information.

03-Feb-19 02-Feb-20 31-Jan-21 30-Jan-22 29-Jan-23 28-Jan-24
l ul ul e mon a thl e ti ca  i nc. $ 100.00 $ 163.83 $ 224.94 $ 216.20 $ 212.74 $ 327.15 
S&P 500 Inde x $ 100.00 $ 119.18 $ 137.23 $ 163.75 $ 150.40 $ 180.71 
S&P 500 Appa re l , Acce s s ori e s  & Luxury Goods  Inde x $ 100.00 $ 90.30 $ 86.51 $ 83.79 $ 59.05 $ 47.77 
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Issuer Purchase of Equity Securities
The fol lowing table provides  information regarding our purchases  of shares  of our common stock during the fourth quarter of 2023 related to our stock

repurchase programs:

Period
Total Number of Shares

Purchased
Average Price Paid per

Share

Total Number of
Shares Purchased

as Part of Publicly Announced
Plans or Programs

Maximum Dollar Value
of Shares that May Yet
Be Purchased Under the

Plans or Programs
Octobe r 30, 2023 - Nove mbe r 26, 2023 50,619 $ 400.10 50,619 $ 222,941,393 
Nove mbe r 27, 2023 - De ce mbe r 31, 2023 10,040 507.57 10,040 1,217,845,403 
Ja nua ry 1, 2024 - Ja nua ry 28, 2024 59,180 483.73 59,180 1,189,218,138 
Tota l 119,839 119,839 

__________
Monthly information is presented by reference to our fiscal periods during our fourth quarter of 2023.
On March 23, 2022 and November 29, 2023, our board of directors approved stock repurchase programs, each for up to $1.0 billion of our common shares on the open market or in
privately negotiated transactions. The repurchase plans have no time limit and do not require the repurchase of a minimum number of shares. Common shares repurchased on the
open market are at prevailing market prices, including under plans complying with the provisions of Rule 10b5-1 and Rule 10b-18 of the Securities Exchange Act of 1934. The timing
and actual number of common shares to be repurchased will depend upon market conditions, eligibility to trade, and other factors. The authorized value of shares available to be
repurchased under these programs excludes the cost of commissions and excise taxes.

The fol lowing table summarizes  purchases  of shares  of our common stock during the fourth quarter of 2023 related to our Employee Share Purchase Plan
(ESPP):

Period
Total Number of Shares

Purchased
Average Price Paid

per Share

Total Number of
Shares Purchased
as Part of Publicly

Announced Plans or
Programs

Maximum Number of Shares
that May Yet Be Purchased

Under the Plans or Programs
Octobe r 30, 2023 - Nove mbe r 26, 2023 7,367 $ 418.18 7,367 4,415,983 
Nove mbe r 27, 2023 - De ce mbe r 31, 2023 7,331 491.70 7,331 4,408,652 
Ja nua ry 1, 2024 - Ja nua ry 28, 2024 5,954 482.84 5,954 4,402,698 
Tota l 20,652 20,652 

___________ 
Monthly information is presented by reference to our fiscal periods during our fourth quarter of 2023.
The ESPP was approved by our board of directors and stockholders in September 2007. All shares purchased under the ESPP are purchased on the Nasdaq Global Select Market (or
such other stock exchange as we may designate). Unless our board terminates the ESPP earlier, it will continue until a ll shares authorized for purchase have been purchased. The
maximum number of shares authorized to be purchased under the ESPP was 6,000,000.

Excluded from this  disclosure are shares  repurchased to settle statutory employee tax withholding related to the vesting of stock-based compensation
awards.

ITEM 6. SELECTED CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL DATA

Not appl icable.

(1) (2) (2) (2)

(1)
(2)

(1) (2) (2) (2)

(1)

(2)

26



Table of Contents

ITEM 7. MANAGEMENT'S DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS OF FINANCIAL CONDITION AND RESULTS OF OPERATIONS

Management's  discuss ion and analys is  of financial  condition and results  of operations  is  provided as  a  supplement to, and should be read in
conjunction with, our consol idated financial  s tatements  and the related notes  included elsewhere in this  Annual  Report on Form 10-K. Components  of
management's  discuss ion and analys is  of financial  condition and results  of operations  include:

• Overview
• Financial  Highl ights  and Market Conditions  and Trends
• Results  of Operations
• Comparison of 2023 to 2022
• Comparison of 2022 to 2021
• Comparable Sales  and Sales  Per Square Foot
• Non-GAAP Financial  Measures
• Liquidity and Capital  Resources
• Liquidity Outlook
• Contractual  Obl igations  and Commitments
• Cri tical  Accounting Pol icies  and Estimates

Our fiscal  year ends  on the Sunday closest to January 31 of the fol lowing year, typical ly resulting in a  52-week year, but occas ional ly giving rise to an
additional  week, resulting in a  53-week year. Fiscal  2023, 2022, and 2021 were each 52-week years . Fiscal  2024 wi l l  be a  53-week year.

This  discuss ion and analys is  contains  forward-looking statements  based on current expectations  that involve risks , uncertainties  and assumptions, such
as  our plans, objectives , expectations, and intentions  included in the "Special  Note Regarding Forward-Looking Statements ." Our actual  results  and the timing of
events  may di ffer materia l ly from those anticipated in these forward-looking statements  as  a  result of various  factors , including those described in the "Item 1A.
Risk Factors" section and elsewhere in this  Annual  Report on Form 10-K.

We use comparable sales  as  a  metric to evaluate the performance of our bus iness . Refer to the Comparable Sales  and Sales  Per Square Foot section of this
management's  discuss ion and analys is  of financial  condition and results  of operations  for further information.

We provide constant dol lar changes  and adjusted financial  results , which are non-GAAP financial  measures, as  supplemental  information that enable
evaluation of the underlying trend in our operating performance, and enable a  comparison to our historical  financial  information. Refer to the Non-GAAP
Financial  Measures  section of this  management's  discuss ion and analys is  of financial  condition and results  of operations  for reconci l iations  between the
adjusted non-GAAP financial  measures  and the most directly comparable measures  calculated in accordance with GAAP.

We disclose materia l  non-publ ic information through one or more of the fol lowing channels : our investor relations  website
(http://corporate.lululemon.com/investors), the socia l  media channels  identi fied on our investor relations  website, press  releases, SEC fi l ings , publ ic
conference cal ls , and webcasts . Information contained on or access ible through our websites  is  not incorporated into, and does  not form a part of, this  Annual
Report or any other report or document we fi le with the SEC, and any references  to our websites  are intended to be inactive textual  references  only.

During the fourth quarter of 2023, we revised the financial  information which is  regularly reviewed and used by our CODM to evaluate performance and
al locate resources. Historical ly, our segments  were based on sel l ing channel . As  we have further executed on our omni-channel  retai l  s trategy, and with the
continued expansion of our international  operations, our resource al location decis ions  have evolved to focus  on regional  markets . We organize our operations
into four regional  markets : Americas , China Mainland, APAC, and EMEA. We report three segments , Americas , China Mainland, and Rest of World, which is
comprised of the APAC and EMEA regions  on a combined bas is . Our prior year segment results  have been recast to reflect our new segment reporting structure.

Overview

In 2023, lululemon celebrated i ts  25th anniversary and del ivered another strong year of financial  results . We continued to execute against our Power of
Three ×2 growth plan, growing net revenue 19% and di luted earnings  per share 83%, or 27% on an adjusted bas is , as  our teams were able to successful ly
navigate an uncertain macroeconomic environment.

Our growth continued across  regions, merchandise categories , and channels . We del ivered strong net revenue growth across  our regions  including 12% in
the Americas , 67% in China Mainland, and 43% in Rest of World. Net revenue from our women's  product range increased 17%, men's  increased 15%, and net
revenue from our other categories  increased 36%. We
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opened 56 net new company-operated stores , contributing to a  15% increase in square footage, whi le total  company-operated store net revenue increased 21%
and e-commerce net revenue increased 17%.

We bel ieve this  broad-based growth was underpinned by our abi l i ty to bring new innovations  into our product assortment, whi le a lso increas ing our
brand awareness  and bringing new guests  into our brand.

Product Innovation

By innovating through our Science of Feel  approach, we continue to seek to solve the unmet needs of our guests . Whi le continuing to see strength from our
key col lections  including Al ign, Scuba, Define, and Softstreme for women and our ABC col lection for men, we launched new innovations  as  wel l . For women, we
launched Wundermost, our new bodywear col lection, we expanded our dual  gender gol f and tennis  assortments . On the men’s  s ide, we launched Steady State
and Soft Jersey, to expand our lounge offering, whi le a lso enhancing our Pace Breaker short. In accessories , we continued to see strength across  our bag
assortment, and in footwear we updated our Bl iss feel  and Chargefeel  styles , and in early 2024, we launched our fi rst footwear styles  for men. We also
announced a new texti le-to-texti le recycl ing partnership with the goal  of enabl ing ci rculari ty in our supply chain by transforming apparel  waste into high
qual i ty nylon and polyester.

Brand Awareness

We bel ieve that increas ing our brand awareness  and introducing new guests  to the lululemon brand remains  one of our largest opportunities , both in the
Americas  and to an even greater degree in our international  markets .

In order to grow brand awareness  we combine our community-based, grass  roots  model  of guest engagement, with larger scale brand activations  and
global  brand campaigns. With connection points  across  both our phys ical  and digi ta l  channels , we aim to bring new guests  into our brand, engage with them in
ways  that are more than just transactional  and create deeper connections.

In 2023, we executed several  s trategies  des igned to connect with guests , bring new guests  into our brand, and grow awareness . Highl ights  include: hosting
our Dupe Swap event in Los  Angeles; testing our fi rst men's  focused TV campaign featuring our ABC pants ; taking over the West Bund in Shanghai  for one week to
host wel lness-centric events  and experiences  intended to bring awareness  to World Mental  Health Day; and continuing to grow our Essentia ls  membership
program.

In addition, in September 2023 we announced our new partnership with Peloton. Peloton is  now the exclus ive provider of content for our lululemon Studio
members , we have become their primary apparel  provider. We plan to jointly engage our global  communities  through special  programming, experiences, and
events .

Financial Highlights

The summary below compares  2023 to 2022 and provides  both GAAP and non-GAAP financial  measures. The adjusted financial  measures  for 2023 exclude
$72.1 mi l l ion of post-tax asset impairment and other charges  recognized in relation to lululemon Studio. The adjusted financial  measures  for 2022 exclude
$442.7 mi l l ion of post-tax goodwi l l  impairment and other charges  recognized in relation to lululemon Studio and the post-tax net gain on the sale of an
administrative bui lding of $8.5 mi l l ion.

• Net revenue increased 19% to $9.6 bi l l ion. On a constant dol lar bas is , net revenue increased 20%.

• Comparable sales  increased 13%, or 14% on a constant dol lar bas is .

– Americas  comparable sales  increased 8%, or 9% on a constant dol lar bas is .

– China Mainland comparable sales  increased 39%, or 46% on a constant dol lar bas is .

– Rest of World comparable sales  increased 32%, or 33% on a constant dol lar bas is .

• Gross  profi t increased 25% to $5.6 bi l l ion. Adjusted gross  profi t increased 24% to $5.6 bi l l ion.

• Gross  margin increased 290 bas is  points  to 58.3%. Adjusted gross  margin increased 240 bas is  points  to 58.6%.

• Income from operations  increased 61% to $2.1 bi l l ion. Adjusted income from operations  increased 25% to $2.2 bi l l ion.

• Operating margin increased 580 bas is  points  to 22.2% from 16.4% in 2022. Adjusted operating margin increased 110 bas is  points  to 23.2% from
22.1% in 2022.
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• Income tax expense increased 31% to $625.5 mi l l ion. Our effective tax rate for 2023 was 28.8% compared to 35.9% for 2022. The adjusted effective tax
rate was 28.7% and 28.1% for 2023 and 2022, respectively.

• Di luted earnings  per share were $12.20 for 2023 compared to $6.68 in 2022. Adjusted di luted earnings  per share were $12.77 for 2023 compared to
$10.07 in 2022.

Market Conditions and Trends

Macroeconomic conditions, supply chain disruption, and the COVID-19 pandemic have impacted our bus iness  and operating costs . Certain trends  are
expected to continue throughout 2024, with the impact varying by market.

Macroeconomic Conditions

Macroeconomic conditions, including foreign currency fluctuations, have impacted our financial  results . Foreign currency fluctuations  reduced the
growth of our net revenue by $89.8 mi l l ion when comparing 2023 to 2022, primari ly due to the overal l  appreciation of the US dol lar. We expect future exchange
rate volati l i ty to impact our results . We have also experienced increased wage rates  which increased our employee costs  when comparing 2023 to 2022.

Consumer purchas ing behaviors  and their propensity to spend in our sector have been impacted by uncertain economic conditions  including inflation,
higher interest rates , and other factors . Whi le we experienced traffic and net revenue growth in 2023 in a l l  markets , over the course of 2023 we saw moderation
in the year over year traffic and net revenue growth in the Americas . We continue to monitor macroeconomic conditions  and the trends  in consumer demand for
our products .

Supply Chain Disruption

In 2021 and 2022 we experienced supply chain disruption, including delays  in inbound del ivery of our products  as  wel l  as  in manufacturing. This  supply
chain disruption caused us  to use higher cost modes of transport, including increas ing our use of a i r freight. We saw an improvement in the supply chain
disruption during the second hal f of 2022 and during 2023, including reductions  in freight costs  and reductions  in our levels  of a i r freight usage.

COVID-19 Pandemic

Most of our retai l  locations  were open throughout 2023, 2022, and 2021, with certain locations  temporari ly closed due to COVID-19 resurgences  during
the fi rst quarter of 2022 and at various  times in 2021. The effect of COVID-19, including store closures , impacted our revenue and operating margins  in 2021
and the fi rst quarter of 2022 in China Mainland.

Results of Operations
The fol lowing table summarizes  key components  of our results  of operations  for the periods  indicated:

 2023 2022 2021 2023 2022 2021
 (In thousands) (Percentage of net revenue)

Ne t re ve nue $ 9,619,278 $ 8,110,518 $ 6,256,617 100.0 % 100.0 % 100.0 %
Cos t of goods  s ol d 4,009,873 3,618,178 2,648,052 41.7 44.6 42.3 
Gros s  profi t 5,609,405 4,492,340 3,608,565 58.3 55.4 57.7 
Se l l i ng, ge ne ra l  a nd a dmi ni s tra ti ve
e xpe ns e s 3,397,218 2,757,447 2,225,034 35.3 34.0 35.6 
Impa i rme nt of goodwi l l  a nd othe r a s s e ts ,
re s tructuri ng cos ts 74,501 407,913 — 0.8 5.0 — 
Amorti za ti on of i nta ngi bl e  a s s e ts 5,010 8,752 8,782 0.1 0.1 0.1 
Acqui s i ti on-re l a te d e xpe ns e s — — 41,394 — — 0.7 
Ga i n on di s pos a l  of a s s e ts — (10,180) — — (0.1) — 
Income  from ope ra ti ons 2,132,676 1,328,408 1,333,355 22.2 16.4 21.3 
Othe r i ncome  (e xpe ns e ), ne t 43,059 4,163 514 0.4 0.1 — 
Income  be fore  i ncome  ta x e xpe ns e 2,175,735 1,332,571 1,333,869 22.6 16.4 21.3 
Income  ta x e xpe ns e 625,545 477,771 358,547 6.5 5.9 5.7 
Ne t i ncome $ 1,550,190 $ 854,800 $ 975,322 16.1 % 10.5 % 15.6 %
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Comparison of 2023 to 2022

Net Revenue

Net revenue increased $1.5 bi l l ion, or 19%, to $9.6 bi l l ion in 2023 from $8.1 bi l l ion in 2022. On a constant dol lar bas is , net revenue increased 20%.
Comparable sales  increased 13%, or 14% on a constant dol lar bas is . The increase in net revenue was primari ly due to increased Americas  net revenue. China
Mainland and Rest of World net revenue also increased.

Net revenue for 2023 and 2022 is  summarized below, and reflects  our updated segments , including comparatives .

2023 2022 2023 2022 Year over year change

 (In thousands) (Percentage of net revenue) (In thousands) (Percentage) (Constant dollar
change)

Ame ri ca s $ 7,631,647 $ 6,817,454 79.3 % 84.1 % $ 814,193 11.9 % 12.0 %
Chi na  Ma i nl a nd 963,760 576,503 10.0 7.1 387,257 67.2 75.0 
Re s t of Worl d 1,023,871 716,561 10.6 8.8 307,310 42.9 44.0 
Ne t re ve nue $ 9,619,278 $ 8,110,518 100.0 % 100.0 % $ 1,508,760 18.6 % 20.0 %

Americas. The increase in Americas  net revenue was primari ly due to an increase in comparable sales , which increased 8%, or 9% on a constant dol lar
bas is . The increase in comparable sales  was  primari ly a  result of increased traffic, partia l ly offset by a  lower dol lar value per transaction and a decrease in
convers ion rates . The increase in Americas  net revenue was also driven by a  $327.6 mi l l ion increase in non-comparable sales , primari ly from our company-
operated stores  that were opened or s igni ficantly expanded s ince 2022 as  wel l  as  increased outlet, wholesale, and l icense and supply arrangement net revenue,
partia l ly offset by fewer temporary locations  and lower lululemon Studio net revenue.

China Mainland. The increase in China Mainland net revenue was primari ly due to an increase in comparable sales , which increased 39%, or 46% on a
constant dol lar bas is . The increase in comparable sales  was  primari ly a  result of increased traffic, partia l ly offset by a  decrease in convers ion rates  and a
lower dol lar value per transaction. The increase in China Mainland net revenue was also driven by a  $180.6 mi l l ion increase in non-comparable sales ,
primari ly from our company-operated stores  that were opened or s igni ficantly expanded s ince 2022 as  wel l  as  increased net revenue from outlets .

Rest of World. The increase in Rest of World net revenue was primari ly due to an increase in comparable sales , which increased 32%, or 33% on a
constant dol lar bas is . The increase in comparable sales  was  primari ly a  result of increased traffic, partia l ly offset by a  decrease in convers ion rates . The
increase in Rest of World net revenue was also driven by a  $118.9 mi l l ion increase in non-comparable sales , primari ly from our company-operated stores  that
were opened or s igni ficantly expanded s ince 2022 as  wel l  as  increased l icense and supply arrangements  and outlets  net revenue.

Gross Profit

2023 2022 Year over year change
(In thousands) (In thousands) (Percentage)

Gros s  profi t $ 5,609,405 $ 4,492,340 $ 1,117,065 24.9 %

Gros s  ma rgi n 58.3 % 55.4 % 290 ba s i s  poi nts

During 2022, we decided to shi ft our lululemon Studio strategy to focus  on providing digi ta l  app-based services . Whi le we continued to sel l  at-home
hardware in 2023, we reached the decis ion to cease sel l ing the lululemon Studio Mirror during the third quarter of 2023. These strategy shi fts  resulted in the
recognition of an inventory obsolescence provis ion of $62.9 mi l l ion in 2022 and a further provis ion of $23.7 mi l l ion in 2023. These provis ions  reduced gross
margin by 80 bas is  points  and 30 bas is  points  in 2022 and 2023 respectively. Please refer to Note 8. Impairment of Goodwi l l  and Other Assets , Restructuring
Costs  included in Item 8 of Part II  of this  report.
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Gross  margin increased 290 bas is  points , or excluding the impact of the lululemon Studio obsolescence provis ions  detai led above, increased 240 bas is
points . This  240 bas is  point net increase was primari ly a  result of:

• a net increase in product margin of 290 bas is  points , primari ly due to lower freight costs  from rate reductions  and reduced air freight, as  wel l  as
lower duty costs , modestly offset by higher inventory provis ions  and shrink in the current year;

• an unfavorable impact of foreign currency exchange rates  of 20 bas is  points ; and

• deleverage on occupancy costs  of 20 bas is  points  and an increase in costs  related to our distribution centers  as  a  percentage of net revenue of 10
bas is  points .

Selling, General and Administrative Expenses

2023 2022 Year over year change
(In thousands) (In thousands) (Percentage)

Se l l i ng, ge ne ra l  a nd a dmi ni s tra ti ve  e xpe ns e s $ 3,397,218 $ 2,757,447 $ 639,771 23.2 %

Se l l i ng, ge ne ra l  a nd a dmi ni s tra ti ve  e xpe ns e s  a s  a  pe rce nta ge  of ne t re ve nue 35.3 % 34.0 % 130 ba s i s  poi nts

The increase in sel l ing, general  and administrative expenses  was  primari ly due to:

• an increase in head office costs  of $327.7 mi l l ion, comprised of:

– an increase in employee costs  of $108.8 mi l l ion primari ly due to increased salaries  and wages  expense as  wel l  as  increased stock-based
compensation and incentive compensation, primari ly as  a  result of headcount growth and increased wage rates;

– an increase in brand and community costs  of $95.4 mi l l ion primari ly due to increased marketing expenses;

– an increase in depreciation of $46.0 mi l l ion;

– an increase in other head office costs  of $40.4 mi l l ion, primari ly due to increased profess ional  fees; and

– an increase in technology costs , including cloud computing amortization, of $37.1 mi l l ion.

• an increase in costs  related to our operating channels  of $319.1 mi l l ion, comprised of:

– an increase in employee costs  of $145.1 mi l l ion primari ly due to increased salaries  and wages  expense, incentive compensation, and benefi t
costs  for retai l  employees, primari ly from the growth in our bus iness  and increased wage rates;

– an increase in other operating costs  of $67.7 mi l l ion primari ly due to increased depreciation costs , technology costs , and repairs  and
maintenance costs ;

– an increase in variable costs  of $66.8 mi l l ion primari ly due to increased credit card fees , distribution costs , and packaging costs , primari ly as
a result of increased net revenue; and

– an increase in brand and community costs  of $39.5 mi l l ion primari ly due to increased digi ta l  marketing expenses.

The increase in sel l ing, general  and administrative expenses  was  partia l ly offset by a  decrease in net foreign currency exchange and derivative
revaluation losses  of $7.0 mi l l ion.
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Impairment of Goodwill and Other Assets, Restructuring Costs

2023 2022 Year over year change
(In thousands) (In thousands) (Percentage)

Impa i rme nt of goodwi l l  a nd othe r a s s e ts , re s tructuri ng cos ts $ 74,501 $ 407,913 $ (333,412) (81.7) %

During 2023, we recognized certain asset impairments  and restructuring costs , and during 2022, we recognized impairment of goodwi l l  and other assets ,
each in relation to lululemon Studio. Please refer to Note 8. Impairment of Goodwi l l  and Other Assets , Restructuring Costs  included in Item 8 of Part II  of this
report for further information.

Amortization of Intangible Assets

2023 2022 Year over year change
(In thousands) (In thousands) (Percentage)

Amorti za ti on of i nta ngi bl e  a s s e ts $ 5,010 $ 8,752 $ (3,742) (42.8) %

The amortization of intangible assets  was  primari ly the result of the amortization of intangible assets  recognized upon the acquis i tion of MIRROR, which
we rebranded as  lululemon Studio.

Gain on Disposal of Assets

2023 2022 Year over year change
(In thousands) (In thousands) (Percentage)

Ga i n on di s pos a l  of a s s e ts $ — $ (10,180) $ 10,180 (100.0) %

During the second quarter of 2022, we completed the sale of an administrative office bui lding, which resulted in a  pre-tax gain of $10.2 mi l l ion.

Income from Operations

On a segment bas is , we determine income from operations  without taking into account our general  corporate expenses  and certain other expenses.
Segmented income from operations  is  summarized below. Our prior year segment results  have been recast to reflect our new segment reporting structure.

2023 2022 2023 2022 Year over year change

(In thousands) (Percentage of net revenue of respective
operating segment)

(In thousands) (Percentage)

Se gme nte d i ncome  from ope ra ti ons :
Ame ri ca s $ 2,937,184 $ 2,503,740 38.5 % 36.7 % $ 433,444 17.3 %
Chi na  Ma i nl a nd 337,316 196,865 35.0 34.1 140,451 71.3 
Re s t of Worl d 201,832 103,204 19.7 14.4 98,628 95.6 

$ 3,476,332 $ 2,803,809 $ 672,523 24.0 %
Ge ne ra l  corpora te  e xpe ns e s 1,240,436 1,005,988 234,448 23.3 
l ul ul e mon Studi o obs ol e s ce nce  provi s i on 23,709 62,928 (39,219) (62.3)
Impa i rme nt of goodwi l l  a nd othe r a s s e ts ,
re s tructuri ng cos ts 74,501 407,913 (333,412) (81.7)
Amorti za ti on of i nta ngi bl e  a s s e ts 5,010 8,752 (3,742) (42.8)
Ga i n on di s pos a l  of a s s e ts — (10,180) 10,180 (100.0)
Income  from ope ra ti ons $ 2,132,676 $ 1,328,408 $ 804,268 60.5 %

Ope ra ti ng ma rgi n 22.2 % 16.4 % 580 ba s i s  poi nts

Americas. The increase in Americas  income from operations  was  primari ly the result of increased gross  profi t of $691.7 mi l l ion, driven by increased net
revenue and higher gross  margin. The increase in gross  margin was  primari ly due to higher product margin, partia l ly offset by deleverage on distribution center
costs . The increase in gross  profi t was  partia l ly offset by an increase in sel l ing, general  and administrative expenses, primari ly due to higher employee costs ,
increased digi ta l  marketing expenses, increased credit card fees , packaging costs , and distribution costs  driven by higher net revenue, and
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increased depreciation, and technology costs . Income from operations  as  a  percentage of Americas  net revenue increased due to higher gross  margin, partia l ly
offset by deleverage on sel l ing, general  and administrative expenses.

China Mainland. The increase in China Mainland income from operations  was  primari ly the result of increased gross  profi t of $228.1 mi l l ion, driven by
increased net revenue. Gross  margin was  cons istent year over year, primari ly due to leverage on occupancy and other costs , partia l ly offset by unfavorable
foreign currency exchange rates  and lower product margin. The increase in gross  profi t was  partia l ly offset by an increase in sel l ing, general  and administrative
expenses  primari ly due to higher employee costs , as  wel l  as  increased digi ta l  marketing expenses, increased packaging costs , distribution costs , and credit card
fees  driven by higher net revenue, and increased technology costs . Income from operations  as  a  percentage of China Mainland net revenue increased due to
leverage on sel l ing, general  and administrative expenses.

Rest of World. The increase in Rest of World income from operations  was  primari ly the result of increased gross  profi t of $190.2 mi l l ion, driven by
increased net revenue and higher gross  margin. The increase in gross  margin was  primari ly due to higher product margin as  wel l  as  leverage on occupancy and
other costs , partia l ly offset by unfavorable foreign currency exchange rates . The increase in gross  profi t was  partia l ly offset by an increase in sel l ing, general
and administrative expenses  primari ly due to higher employee costs , as  wel l  as  increased digi ta l  marketing expenses, increased distribution costs , credit card
fees, and packaging costs  driven by higher net revenue, and increased technology costs . Income from operations  as  a  percentage of Rest of World net revenue
increased due to higher gross  margin and leverage on sel l ing, general  and administrative expenses.

General Corporate Expenses. The increase in general  corporate expenses  was  primari ly due to increased employee costs , as  wel l  as  increased brand and
community costs , depreciation, technology costs , profess ional  fees , and product team costs . The increase in general  corporate expenses  was  partia l ly offset by
a decrease in net foreign currency exchange and derivative losses  of $7.0 mi l l ion.

Other Income (Expense), Net

2023 2022 Year over year change
(In thousands) (In thousands) (Percentage)

Othe r i ncome  (e xpe ns e ), ne t $ 43,059 $ 4,163 $ 38,896 934.3 %

The increase in other income, net was  primari ly due to an increase in interest income as  a  result of higher cash balances  and higher interest rates .

Income Tax Expense

2023 2022 Year over year change
(In thousands) (In thousands) (Percentage)

Income  ta x e xpe ns e $ 625,545 $ 477,771 $ 147,774 30.9 %

Effe cti ve  ta x ra te 28.8 % 35.9 % (710) ba s i s  poi nts

The decrease in the effective tax rate was  primari ly due the income tax impact of certain non-deductible impairment and other charges  recognized in 2022
and 2023 related to lululemon Studio, partia l ly offset by a  lower tax rate on the gain on the sale of an administrative bui lding in 2022. These i tems increased
the effective tax rate by 780 bas is  points  and 10 bas is  points  in 2022 and 2023, respectively.

Excluding the income tax effects  of the impairment and other charges  recognized in 2022 and 2023 in relation to lululemon Studio, and excluding the tax
effect of the gain on the sale of the administrative bui lding in 2022, the adjusted effective tax rate increased to 28.7% in 2023 from 28.1% in 2022.

The increase in the adjusted effective tax rate was  primari ly due to withholding taxes  on unremitted earnings  which are not cons idered to be permanently
reinvested, partia l ly offset by adjustments  upon the fi l ing of certain income tax returns, and a decrease in U.S. s tate taxes.

Net Income

2023 2022 Year over year change
(In thousands) (In thousands) (Percentage)

Ne t i ncome $ 1,550,190 $ 854,800 $ 695,390 81.4 %
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The increase in net income in 2023 was primari ly due to an increase in gross  profi t of $1.1 bi l l ion, an increase in other income (expense), net of $38.9
mi l l ion, and impairment and restructuring charges  recognized in 2023 of $74.5 mi l l ion compared to impairment charges  of $407.9 mi l l ion recognized in 2022,
partia l ly offset by an increase in sel l ing, general  and administrative expenses  of $639.8 mi l l ion, an increase in income tax expense of $147.8 mi l l ion, and a
gain on disposal  of assets  of $10.2 mi l l ion in the prior year.

Excluding certain inventory provis ions, goodwi l l  and other asset impairments , and restructuring costs  recognized in relation to lululemon Studio in 2023
and 2022 and the gain on sale of an administrative bui lding in 2022, and their tax effects , adjusted net income increased $333.4 mi l l ion or 26%.

Comparison of 2022 to 2021

Net Revenue

Net revenue increased $1.9 bi l l ion, or 30%, to $8.1 bi l l ion in 2022 from $6.3 bi l l ion in 2021. On a constant dol lar bas is , net revenue increased 32%.
Comparable sales  increased 25%, or 28% on a constant dol lar bas is . The increase in net revenue was primari ly due to increased Americas  net revenue. China
Mainland and Rest of World net revenue also increased.

Net revenue for 2022 and 2021 is  summarized below, and reflects  our updated segments , including comparatives .

2022 2021 2022 2021 Year over year change

 (In thousands) (Percentage of net revenue) (In thousands) (Percentage) (Constant dollar
change)

Ame ri ca s $ 6,817,454 $ 5,299,906 84.1 % 84.7 % $ 1,517,548 28.6 % 30.0 %
Chi na  Ma i nl a nd 576,503 434,261 7.1 6.9 142,242 32.8 40.0 
Re s t of Worl d 716,561 522,450 8.8 8.4 194,111 37.2 49.0 
Ne t re ve nue $ 8,110,518 $ 6,256,617 100.0 % 100.0 % $ 1,853,901 29.6 % 32.0 %

Americas. The increase in Americas  net revenue was primari ly due to an increase in comparable sales , which increased 28%, or 29% on a constant dol lar
bas is . The increase in comparable sales  was  primari ly a  result of increased traffic, partia l ly offset by a  decrease in convers ion rates . Americas  net revenue also
increased due to a  $296.9 mi l l ion increase in non-comparable sales , primari ly from our company-operated stores  that were opened or s igni ficantly expanded
since 2021 as  wel l  as  increased outlet, wholesale, and re-commerce net revenue, partia l ly offset by lower l icense and supply arrangement and lululemon Studio
net revenue.

China Mainland. The increase in China Mainland net revenue was primari ly due to an increase in comparable sales , which increased 17%, or 23% on a
constant dol lar bas is . The increase in comparable sales  was  primari ly a  result of increased traffic, partia l ly offset by a  decrease in convers ion rates . The
increase in China Mainland net revenue was also driven by a  $77.5 mi l l ion increase in non-comparable sales , primari ly from our company-operated stores  that
were opened or s igni ficantly expanded s ince 2021.

Rest of World. The increase in Rest of World net revenue was primari ly due to a  $151.5 mi l l ion increase in non-comparable sales , primari ly from our
company-operated stores  that were opened or s igni ficantly expanded s ince 2021 as  wel l  as  increased l icense and supply arrangements , outlets , and wholesale
net revenue. The increase in Rest of World net revenue was also driven by an increase in comparable sales , which increased 10%, or 19% on a constant dol lar
bas is . The increase in comparable sales  was  primari ly a  result of increased traffic, partia l ly offset by a  decrease in convers ion rates .

Gross Profit

2022 2021 Year over year change
(In thousands) (In thousands) (Percentage)

Gros s  profi t $ 4,492,340 $ 3,608,565 $ 883,775 24.5 %

Gros s  ma rgi n 55.4 % 57.7 % (230) ba s i s  poi nts
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During 2022, we updated our lululemon Studio strategy to focus  on digi ta l  app-based services , which meant we no longer expected to be able to sel l  a l l  of
the in-home hardware inventory above cost. We recognized a provis ion of $62.9 mi l l ion against hardware inventory during 2022. This  reduced 2022 gross
margin by 80 bas is  points . Please refer to Note 8. Impairment of Goodwi l l  and Other Assets , Restructuring Costs  included in Item 8 of Part II  of this  report.

The remaining 150 bas is  point decrease in gross  margin was  primari ly the result of:

• a decrease in product margin of 100 bas is  points  primari ly due to higher markdowns, sales  mix, and increased damages and shrink, partia l ly offset by
lower a ir freight costs ;

• an increase in costs  related to our product departments  and distribution centers  as  a  percentage of net revenue of 60 bas is  points ; and

• an unfavorable impact of foreign currency exchange rates  of 40 bas is  points .

The decrease in gross  margin was  partia l ly offset by leverage on occupancy and depreciation costs  of 50 bas is  points , driven primari ly by the increase in
net revenue.

Selling, General and Administrative Expenses

2022 2021 Year over year change
(In thousands) (In thousands) (Percentage)

Se l l i ng, ge ne ra l  a nd a dmi ni s tra ti ve  e xpe ns e s $ 2,757,447 $ 2,225,034 $ 532,413 23.9 %

Se l l i ng, ge ne ra l  a nd a dmi ni s tra ti ve  e xpe ns e s  a s  a  pe rce nta ge  of ne t re ve nue 34.0 % 35.6 % (160) ba s i s  poi nts

The increase in sel l ing, general  and administrative expenses  was  primari ly due to:

• an increase in head office costs  of $283.7 mi l l ion, comprised of:

– an increase in costs  of $142.2 mi l l ion primari ly due to increased depreciation of $43.5 mi l l ion and increased technology costs , including
cloud computing amortization, of $35.7 mi l l ion, as  wel l  as  increased brand and community costs  and profess ional  fees; and

– an increase in employee costs  of $141.5 mi l l ion primari ly due to an increase in salaries  and wages  expense of $76.5 mi l l ion and incentive
compensation of $34.8 mi l l ion, as  wel l  as  increased stock-based compensation expense and travel  costs , primari ly as  a  result of headcount
growth and increased wage rates .

• an increase in costs  related to our operating channels  of $249.5 mi l l ion, comprised of:

– an increase in variable costs  of $127.6 mi l l ion primari ly due to an increase in distribution costs  and credit card fees , primari ly as  a  result of
increased net revenue;

– an increase in employee costs  of $104.2 mi l l ion primari ly due to an increase in salaries  and wages  expense and incentive compensation in
our company-operated store and e-commerce channels , primari ly due to growth in our bus iness  and increased wage rates;

– an increase in other costs  of $15.3 mi l l ion primari ly due to an increase in repairs  and maintenance costs , depreciation, and technology costs ,
partia l ly offset by a  decrease in profess ional  fees; and

– an increase in brand and community costs  of $2.4 mi l l ion primari ly due to an increase in digi ta l  marketing expenses  related to our e-
commerce channel , partia l ly offset by a  decrease in marketing expenses  related to lululemon Studio.

The increase in sel l ing, general  and administrative expenses  was  partia l ly offset by a  decrease in net foreign exchange and derivative revaluation losses
of $0.8 mi l l ion.
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Impairment of Goodwill and Other Assets, Restructuring Costs

2022 2021 Year over year change
(In thousands) (In thousands) (Percentage)

Impa i rme nt of goodwi l l  a nd othe r a s s e ts , re s tructuri ng cos ts $ 407,913 $ — $ 407,913 n/a

During 2022, we recognized an impairment of goodwi l l  and other long-l ived assets  in relation to our lululemon Studio bus iness  unit. Please refer to Note
8. Impairment of Goodwi l l  and Other Assets , Restructuring Costs  included in Item 8 of Part II  of this  report.

Amortization of Intangible Assets

2022 2021 Year over year change
(In thousands) (In thousands) (Percentage)

Amorti za ti on of i nta ngi bl e  a s s e ts $ 8,752 $ 8,782 $ (30) (0.3) %

The amortization of intangible assets  was  primari ly the result of the amortization of intangible assets  recognized upon the acquis i tion of MIRROR, which
we rebranded as  lululemon Studio.

Acquisition-Related Expenses

2022 2021 Year over year change
(In thousands) (In thousands) (Percentage)

Acqui s i ti on-re l a te d e xpe ns e s $ — $ 41,394 $ (41,394) (100.0) %

In connection with our acquis i tion of MIRROR, we recognized acquis i tion-related compensation expenses  of $38.4 mi l l ion and transaction and
integration related costs  of $3.0 mi l l ion in 2021. There were no acquis i tion-related expenses  in 2022. Please refer to Note 9. Acquis i tion-Related Expenses
included in Item 8 of Part II  of this  report for further information.

Gain on Disposal of Assets

2022 2021 Year over year change
(In thousands) (In thousands) (Percentage)

Ga i n on di s pos a l  of a s s e ts $ (10,180) $ — $ (10,180) n/a

During the second quarter of 2022, we completed the sale of an administrative office bui lding, which resulted in a  pre-tax gain of $10.2 mi l l ion.
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Income from Operations

On a segment bas is , we determine income from operations  without taking into account our general  corporate expenses  and certain other expenses.
Segmented income from operations  is  summarized below. Our prior segment results  have been recast to reflect our new segment reporting structure.

2022 2021 2022 2021 Year over year change

(In thousands) (Percentage of net revenue of respective
operating segment)

(In thousands) (Percentage)

Se gme nte d i ncome  from ope ra ti ons :
Ame ri ca s $ 2,503,740 $ 1,867,016 36.7 % 35.2 % $ 636,724 34.1 %
Chi na  Ma i nl a nd 196,865 167,318 34.1 38.5 29,547 17.7 
Re s t of Worl d 103,204 67,674 14.4 13.0 35,530 52.5 

$ 2,803,809 $ 2,102,008 $ 701,801 33.4 %
Ge ne ra l  corpora te  e xpe ns e s 1,005,988 718,477 287,511 40.0 
l ul ul e mon Studi o obs ol e s ce nce  provi s i on 62,928 — 62,928 n/a
Impa i rme nt of goodwi l l  a nd othe r a s s e ts ,
re s tructuri ng cos ts 407,913 — 407,913 n/a
Amorti za ti on of i nta ngi bl e  a s s e ts 8,752 8,782 (30) (0.3)
Acqui s i ti on-re l a te d e xpe ns e s — 41,394 (41,394) (100.0)
Ga i n on di s pos a l  of a s s e ts (10,180) — (10,180) n/a
Income  from ope ra ti ons $ 1,328,408 $ 1,333,355 $ (4,947) (0.4) %

Ope ra ti ng ma rgi n 16.4 % 21.3 % (490) ba s i s  poi nts

Americas. The increase in Americas  income from operations  was  primari ly the result of increased gross  profi t of $855.2 mi l l ion, driven by increased net
revenue, partia l ly offset by lower gross  margin. The decrease in gross  margin was  primari ly due to lower product margin, partia l ly offset by leverage on
occupancy and other costs . The increase in gross  profi t was  partia l ly offset by an increase in sel l ing, general  and administrative expenses, primari ly due to
higher employee costs , as  wel l  as  increased distribution costs  and credit card fees  driven by higher net revenue, and increased technology costs . Income from
operations  as  a  percentage of Americas  net revenue increased due to leverage on sel l ing, general  and administrative expenses.

China Mainland. The increase in China Mainland income from operations  was  primari ly the result of increased gross  profi t of $70.4 mi l l ion, driven by
increased net revenue, partia l ly offset by lower gross  margin. The decrease in gross  margin was  primari ly due to unfavorable foreign currency exchange rates  as
wel l  as  deleverage on distribution center and other costs . The increase in gross  profi t was  partia l ly offset by an increase in sel l ing, general  and administrative
expenses  primari ly due to higher employee costs , as  wel l  as  increased digi ta l  marketing expenses, increased packaging and distribution costs  driven by higher
net revenue, and increased technology costs . Income from operations  as  a  percentage of China Mainland net revenue decreased primari ly due to lower gross
margin.

Rest of World. The increase in Rest of World income from operations  was  primari ly the result of increased gross  profi t of $80.9 mi l l ion, driven by
increased net revenue, partia l ly offset by lower gross  margin. The decrease in gross  margin was  primari ly due to unfavorable foreign currency exchange rates  as
wel l  as  lower product margin, partia l ly offset by leverage on occupancy and other costs . The increase in gross  profi t was  partia l ly offset by an increase in
sel l ing, general  and administrative expenses  primari ly due to higher employee costs , as  wel l  as  increased distribution costs , credit card fees , and packaging
costs  driven by higher net revenue, and increased digi ta l  marketing expenses. Income from operations  as  a  percentage of Rest of World net revenue increased
due to leverage on sel l ing, general  and administrative expenses.

General Corporate Expenses. The increase in general  corporate expenses  was  primari ly due to higher employee costs , as  wel l  as  increased depreciation,
brand and community costs , technology costs , profess ional  fees , and product team costs . The increase in general  corporate expenses  was  partia l ly offset by a
decrease in net foreign exchange and derivative losses  of $0.8 mi l l ion.
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Other Income (Expense), Net

2022 2021 Year over year change
(In thousands) (In thousands) (Percentage)

Other income (expense), net $ 4,163 $ 514 $ 3,649 709.9 %

The increase in other income, net was  primari ly due to an increase in interest income from higher interest rates , partia l ly offset by an increase in other
expenses.

Income Tax Expense

2022 2021 Year over year change
(In thousands) (In thousands) (Percentage)

Income  ta x e xpe ns e $ 477,771 $ 358,547 $ 119,224 33.3 %

Effe cti ve  ta x ra te 35.9 % 26.9 % 900 ba s i s  poi nts

The increase in the effective tax rate was  primari ly due to certain non-deductible expenses  related to the impairment of goodwi l l  and other assets
recognized in relation to our lululemon Studio bus iness  unit (formerly MIRROR) partia l ly offset by the gain on sale of an administrative bui lding in 2022 which
increased the effective tax rate by 780 bas is  points . Certain non-deductible expenses  related to the MIRROR acquis i tion increased the effective tax rate by 70
bas is  points  in 2021. The increase in the effective tax rate was  a lso due to the accrual  of U.S. s tate tax and Canadian withholding taxes  on unremitted earnings
which are not cons idered to be permanently reinvested, adjustments  upon fi l ing of certain income tax returns, and a decrease in deductions  for stock-based
compensation, partia l ly offset by a  decrease in non-deductible expenses  in international  jurisdictions.

Excluding the impairment of goodwi l l  and other assets  recognized in relation to our lululemon Studio bus iness  unit (formerly MIRROR) and the gain on
sale of an administrative bui lding in 2022, and the MIRROR acquis i tion-related expenses  in 2021, and their tax effects , our adjusted effective tax rates  were
28.1% and 26.2% for 2022 and 2021, respectively.

Net Income

2022 2021 Year over year change
(In thousands) (In thousands) (Percentage)

Ne t i ncome $ 854,800 $ 975,322 $ (120,522) (12.4) %

The decrease in net income in 2022 was primari ly due to an increase in sel l ing, general  and administrative expenses  of $532.4 mi l l ion, an impairment
charge recognized in 2022 of $407.9 mi l l ion, an increase in income tax expense of $119.2 mi l l ion, partia l ly offset by an increase in gross  profi t of $883.8
mi l l ion, a  decrease in acquis i tion-related expenses  of $41.4 mi l l ion, a  gain on disposal  of assets  of $10.2 mi l l ion, and an increase in other income (expense),
net of $3.6 mi l l ion. Excluding the impairment of goodwi l l  and other assets  recognized in relation to our lululemon Studio bus iness  unit (formerly MIRROR) and
the gain on sale of an administrative bui lding in 2022, and the MIRROR acquis i tion-related expenses  in 2021, and their tax effects , adjusted net income
increased $273.7 mi l l ion or 27.0%.

Comparable Sales and Sales Per Square Foot

Comparable Sales

We use comparable sales  to evaluate the performance of our company-operated store and e-commerce bus inesses  from an omni-channel  perspective. It
a l lows us  to monitor the performance of our bus iness  without the impact of recently opened or expanded stores . We bel ieve investors  would s imi larly find these
metrics  useful  in assess ing the performance of our bus iness .

Comparable sales  includes  comparable company-operated store and al l  e-commerce net revenue. E-commerce net revenue includes  our buy onl ine pick-up
in store, back-back room, and ship from store omni-channel  retai l ing capabi l i ties  in addition to our websites , other region-speci fic websites , digi ta l
marketplaces, and mobi le apps. Comparable company-operated stores  have been open, or open after being s igni ficantly expanded, for at least 12 ful l  fi scal
months. Net revenue from a company-operated store is  included in comparable sales  beginning with the fi rst fi scal  month for which the store has  a  ful l  fi scal
month of sales  in the prior year. Comparable sales  excludes  sales  from new stores  that have not been open for at least 12 ful l  fi scal  months, from stores  which
have not been in their s igni ficantly expanded space for at least 12 ful l  fi scal  months, from stores  which have been temporari ly relocated for renovations  or
temporari ly closed, and sales  from company-
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operated stores  that have closed. Comparable sales  a lso excludes  sales  from our sel l ing channels  other than company-operated stores  and e-commerce. The
comparable sales  measures  we report may not be equivalent to s imi larly ti tled measures  reported by other companies .

In fi scal  years  with 53 weeks, the 53rd week of net revenue is  excluded from the calculation of comparable sales . In the year fol lowing a 53-week year, the
prior year period is  shi fted by one week to compare s imi lar calendar weeks.

Non-comparable sales  includes  a l l  net revenue other than comparable sales .

Sales Per Square Foot

We use sales  per square foot to assess  the performance of our company-operated stores  relative to their square footage. We bel ieve that sales  per square
foot is  useful  in evaluating the performance of our company-operated stores . Sales  per square foot is  calculated us ing total  net revenue from al l  company-
operated stores  divided by the average ending square footage of the stores  for each period during the year. In fi scal  years  with 53 weeks, the 53rd week of net
revenue is  excluded from the calculation of sales  per square foot. The square footage of our company-operated stores  includes  a l l  retai l  related space,
including sel l ing space as  wel l  as  storage and back-office areas. The sales  per square foot metric we report may not be equivalent to s imi larly ti tled metrics
reported by other companies .

Non-GAAP Financial Measures
Constant dol lar changes  and adjusted financial  results  are non-GAAP financial  measures.

A constant dol lar bas is  assumes the average foreign currency exchange rates  for the period remained constant with the average foreign currency exchange
rates  for the same period of the prior year. We provide constant dol lar changes  in our results  to help investors  understand the underlying growth rate of net
revenue excluding the impact of changes  in foreign currency exchange rates .

Adjusted gross  profi t, gross  margin, income from operations, operating margin, income tax expense, effective tax rates , net income, and di luted earnings
per share exclude certain inventory provis ions, goodwi l l  and other asset impairments , and restructuring costs  recognized in relation to lululemon Studio, the
gain on disposal  of assets  for the sale of an administrative office bui lding, the MIRROR acquis i tion-related expenses, and the related income tax effects  of these
items.

We bel ieve these adjusted financial  measures  are useful  to investors  as  they provide supplemental  information that enable evaluation of the underlying
trend in our operating performance, and enable a  comparison to our historical  financial  information. Further, due to the fini te and discrete nature of these
items, we do not cons ider them to be normal  operating expenses  that are necessary to run our bus iness , or impairments  or disposal  gains  that are expected to
arise in the normal  course of our operations. Management uses  these adjusted financial  measures  and constant currency metrics  internal ly when reviewing and
assess ing financial  performance.

The presentation of this  financial  information is  not intended to be cons idered in isolation or as  a  substi tute for, or with greater prominence to, the
financial  information prepared and presented in accordance with GAAP. A reconci l iation of the non-GAAP financial  measures  fol lows, which includes  more
detai l  on the GAAP financial  measure that i s  most directly comparable to each non-GAAP financial  measure, and the related reconci l iations  between these
financial  measures. Our non-GAAP financial  measures  may be calculated di fferently from, and therefore may not be directly comparable to, s imi larly ti tled
measures  reported by other companies .
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Constant Dollar Changes

The below changes  in net revenue and comparable sales  show the change compared to the corresponding period in the prior year.

2023 Compared to 2022 2022 Compared to 2021

Change
Foreign exchange

changes
Change in constant

dollars Change
Foreign exchange

changes
Change in constant

dollars
Ne t Re ve nue

Ame ri ca s 12 % — % 12 % 29 % 1 % 30 %
Chi na  Ma i nl a nd 67 8 75 33 7 40 
Re s t of Worl d 43 1 44 37 12 49 

Tota l  ne t re ve nue 19 % 1 % 20 % 30 % 2 % 32 %

Compa ra bl e  s a l e s
Ame ri ca s 8 % 1 % 9 % 28 % 1 % 29 %
Chi na  Ma i nl a nd 39 7 46 17 6 23 
Re s t of Worl d 32 1 33 10 9 19 

Tota l  compa ra bl e  s a l e s 13 % 1 % 14 % 25 % 3 % 28 %

__________
Comparable sales includes comparable company-operated store and e-commerce net revenue.

Adjusted Financial Measures

The fol lowing tables  reconci le the most directly comparable measures  calculated in accordance with GAAP with the adjusted financial  measures. The
2023 and 2022 adjustments  relate to certain inventory provis ions, goodwi l l  and other asset impairments , and restructuring costs  recognized in relation to
lululemon Studio, and their related tax effects . The 2022 adjustments  a lso relate to the gain on sale of an administrative office bui lding, and their related tax
effects . The 2021 adjustments  relate to MIRROR acquis i tion-related expenses, and their related tax effects . Please refer to Note 5. Property and Equipment, Note
8. Impairment of Goodwi l l  and Other Assets , Restructuring Costs , and Note 9. Acquis i tion-Related Expenses  included in Item 8 of Part II  of this  report for further
information on the nature of these amounts .

2023

Gross Profit Gross Margin
Income from
Operations Operating Margin

Income Tax
Expense

Effective Tax
Rate Net Income

Diluted
Earnings Per

Share
(In thousands, except per share amounts)

GAAP re s ul ts $ 5,609,405 58.3 % $ 2,132,676 22.2 % $ 625,545 28.8 % $ 1,550,190 $ 12.20 
l ul ul e mon Studi o cha rge s :

l ul ul e mon Studi o obs ol e s ce nce
provi s i on 23,709 0.3 23,709 0.2 23,709 0.19 
Impa i rme nt of a s s e ts 44,186 0.5 44,186 0.35 
Re s tructuri ng cos ts 30,315 0.3 30,315 0.24 
Ta x e ffe ct of the  a bove 26,085 (0.1) (26,085) (0.21)

23,709 0.3 98,210 1.0 26,085 (0.1) 72,125 0.57 
Adjus te d re s ul ts  (non-GAAP) $ 5,633,114 58.6 % $ 2,230,886 23.2 % $ 651,630 28.7 % $ 1,622,315 $ 12.77 

(1)

(1)
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2022

Gross Profit Gross Margin
Income from
Operations Operating Margin

Income Tax
Expense

Effective Tax
Rate Net Income

Diluted
Earnings Per

Share
(In thousands, except per share amounts)

GAAP re s ul ts $ 4,492,340 55.4 % $ 1,328,408 16.4 % $ 477,771 35.9 % $ 854,800 $ 6.68 
l ul ul e mon Studi o cha rge s :

l ul ul e mon Studi o obs ol e s ce nce
provi s i on 62,928 0.8 62,928 0.8 62,928 0.49 
Impa i rme nt of goodwi l l  a nd
othe r a s s e ts 407,913 5.0 407,913 3.19 
Ta x e ffe ct of the  a bove 28,171 (7.8) (28,171) (0.22)

62,928 0.8 470,841 5.8 28,171 (7.8) 442,670 3.46 
Ga i n on di s pos a l  of a s s e ts (10,180) (0.1) (10,180) (0.08)
Ta x e ffe ct of the  a bove (1,661) — 1,661 0.01 
Adjus te d re s ul ts  (non-GAAP) $ 4,555,268 56.2 % $ 1,789,069 22.1 % $ 504,281 28.1 % $ 1,288,951 $ 10.07 

2021

Income from
Operations Operating Margin

Income Tax
Expense

Effective Tax
Rate Net Income

Diluted
Earnings Per

Share
(In thousands, except per share amounts)

GAAP re s ul ts $ 1,333,355 21.3 % $ 358,547 26.9 % $ 975,322 $ 7.49 
Tra ns a cti on a nd i nte gra ti on cos ts 2,989 — 2,989 0.02 
Acqui s i ti on-re l a te d compe ns a ti on 38,405 0.7 38,405 0.29 
Ta x e ffe ct of the  a bove 1,417 (0.7) (1,417) (0.01)
Adjus te d re s ul ts  (non-GAAP) $ 1,374,749 22.0 % $ 359,964 26.2 % $ 1,015,299 $ 7.79 

Liquidity and Capital Resources

Our primary sources  of l iquidity are our current balances  of cash and cash equivalents , cash flows from operations, and capacity under our committed
revolving credit faci l i ty, including to fund short-term working capital  requirements . Our primary cash needs are capital  expenditures  for opening new stores
and remodel ing or relocating existing stores , investing in our distribution centers , investing in technology and making system enhancements , funding working
capital  requirements , and making other strategic capital  investments . We may also use cash to repurchase shares  of our common stock. Cash and cash
equivalents  in excess  of our needs are held in interest bearing accounts  with financial  insti tutions, as  wel l  as  in money market funds  and term deposits .

The fol lowing table summarizes  our net cash flows provided by and used in operating, investing, and financing activi ties  for the periods  indicated:

 2023 2022
Year over year

change
 (In thousands)

Tota l  ca s h provi de d by (us e d i n):
Ope ra ti ng a cti vi ti e s $ 2,296,164 $ 966,463 $ 1,329,701 
Inve s ti ng a cti vi ti e s (654,132) (569,937) (84,195)
Fi na nci ng a cti vi ti e s (548,828) (467,487) (81,341)
Effe ct of fore i gn curre ncy e xcha nge  ra te  cha nge s  on ca s h a nd ca s h e qui va l e nts (4,100) (34,043) 29,943 

Incre a s e  (de cre a s e ) i n ca s h a nd ca s h e qui va l e nts $ 1,089,104 $ (105,004) $ 1,194,108 
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Operating Activities

The increase in cash provided by operating activi ties  was  primari ly as  a  result of:

• an increase in cash flows from changes  in operating assets  and l iabi l i ties  of $859.1 mi l l ion, primari ly driven by changes  in inventories , accounts
payable, and prepaid expenses  and other current assets , partia l ly offset by changes  in income taxes  and accrued l iabi l i ties ; and

• increased net income of $695.4 mi l l ion.

The increase in cash provided by operating activi ties  was  partia l ly offset by changes  in adjusting i tems of $224.8 mi l l ion, primari ly driven by goodwi l l
and other asset impairments  and restructuring costs  recognized in relation to lululemon Studio, as  wel l  as  increased depreciation and higher cash inflows
related to derivatives .

Investing Activities

The increase in cash used in investing activi ties  was  primari ly due to the settlement of net investment hedges  and increased capital  expenditures . The
increase in capital  expenditures  was  primari ly due to investment in our distribution centers  as  wel l  as  other technology infrastructure and system initiatives ,
partia l ly offset by a  decrease in company-operated store and corporate capital  expenditures .

Financing Activities

The increase in cash used in financing activi ties  was  primari ly the result of an increase in our stock repurchases. During 2023, 1.5 mi l l ion shares  were
repurchased at a  total  cost including commiss ions  and excise taxes  of $558.7 mi l l ion. During 2022, 1.4 mi l l ion shares  were repurchased at a  total  cost
including commiss ions  and excise taxes  of $444.0 mi l l ion. The common stock was repurchased in the open market at prevai l ing market prices , including under
plans  complying with the provis ions  of Rule 10b5-1 and Rule 10b-18 of the Securi ties  Exchange Act of 1934, with the timing and actual  number of shares
repurchased depending upon market conditions, el igibi l i ty to trade, and other factors .

Liquidity Outlook

We bel ieve our cash and cash equivalent balances, cash generated from operations, and borrowings  avai lable to us  under our committed revolving credit
faci l i ty wi l l  be adequate to meet our l iquidity needs and capital  expenditure requirements  for at least the next 12 months. Our cash from operations  may be
negatively impacted by a  decrease in demand for our products  as  wel l  as  the other factors  described in "Item 1A. Risk Factors". In addition, we may make
discretionary capital  improvements  with respect to our stores , distribution faci l i ties , headquarters , or systems, or we may repurchase shares  under an
approved stock repurchase program, which we would expect to fund through the use of cash, i ssuance of debt or equity securi ties  or other external  financing
sources  to the extent we were unable to fund such expenditures  out of our cash and cash equivalents  and cash generated from operations.

The fol lowing table includes  certain measures  of our l iquidity:

January 28, 2024
(In thousands)

Ca s h a nd ca s h e qui va l e nts $ 2,243,971 
Worki ng ca pi ta l  e xcl udi ng ca s h a nd ca s h e qui va l e nts 185,345 
Ca pa ci ty unde r commi tte d re vol vi ng cre di t fa ci l i ty 393,661 

__________
Working capital is calculated as current assets of $4.1 billion less current liabilities of $1.6 billion.

Capital  expenditures  are expected to range between $690.0 mi l l ion and $710.0 mi l l ion in 2024.

Our current commitments  with respect to inventory purchases  are included within our purchase obl igations  outl ined below. The timing and cost of our
inventory purchases  wi l l  vary depending on a variety of factors  such as  revenue growth, assortment and purchas ing decis ions, product costs  including freight
and duty, and the avai labi l i ty of production capacity and speed. Our inventory balance as  of January 28, 2024 was $1.3 bi l l ion, a  decrease of 9% from
January 29, 2023. We expect our inventories  to decrease during the fi rst hal f of 2024 compared to the fi rst hal f of 2023, and then increase in the second hal f of
2024 compared to the second hal f of 2023.

(1)

(1)
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Our existing Americas  credit faci l i ty provides  for $400.0 mi l l ion in commitments  under an unsecured five-year revolving credit faci l i ty. The credit faci l i ty
has  a  maturi ty date of December 14, 2026, subject to extens ion under certain ci rcumstances. As  of January 28, 2024, as ide from letters  of credit of $6.3 mi l l ion,
we had no other borrowings  outstanding under this  credit faci l i ty. Further information regarding our credit faci l i ties  and associated covenants  is  outl ined in
Note 12. Revolving Credit Faci l i ties  included in Item 8 of Part II  of this  report.

Contractual Obligations and Commitments

Leases. We lease certain store and other retai l  locations, distribution centers , offices , and equipment under non-cancel lable operating leases. Our leases
general ly have ini tia l  terms of between two and 15 years , and general ly can be extended in increments  between two and five years , i f at a l l . The fol lowing table
detai ls  our future minimum lease payments . Minimum lease commitments  exclude variable lease expenses  including contingent rent payments , common area
maintenance, property taxes, and landlord's  insurance.

Purchase obligations. The amounts  l i s ted for purchase obl igations  in the table below represent agreements  (including open purchase orders) to purchase
products  and for other expenditures  in the ordinary course of bus iness  that are enforceable and legal ly binding and that speci fy a l l  s igni ficant terms. In some
cases, values  are subject to change, such as  for product purchases  throughout the production process . The reported amounts  exclude l iabi l i ties  included in our
consol idated balance sheets  as  of January 28, 2024.

One-time transition tax payable. The U.S. tax reforms enacted in December 2017 imposed a mandatory trans ition tax on accumulated foreign subs idiary
earnings  which have not previous ly been subject to U.S. income tax. The one-time trans ition tax is  payable over eight years  beginning in fi scal  2018. The one-
time trans ition tax payable is  net of foreign tax credits , and the table below outl ines  the expected payments  due by fiscal  year.

The fol lowing table summarizes  our contractual  arrangements  due by fiscal  year as  of January 28, 2024, and the timing and effect that such commitments
are expected to have on our l iquidity and cash flows in future periods:

 Total 2024 2025 2026 2027 2028 Thereafter
 (In thousands)

Ope ra ti ng l e a s e s  (mi ni mum re nt) $ 1,645,318 $ 300,379 $ 287,224 $ 232,510 $ 214,519 $ 158,252 $ 452,434 
Purcha s e  obl i ga ti ons 688,934 656,376 5,566 10,506 2,899 13,587 — 
One -ti me  tra ns i ti on ta x pa ya bl e 28,555 12,691 15,864 — — — — 

As of January 28, 2024, our operating lease commitments  for distribution center operating leases  which have been committed to, but not yet commenced,
was $299.6 mi l l ion, which is  not reflected in the table above.

We enter into standby letters  of credit to secure certain of our obl igations, including leases, taxes, and duties . As  of January 28, 2024, letters  of credit and
letters  of guarantee total ing $10.2 mi l l ion had been issued, including $6.3 mi l l ion under our committed revolving credit faci l i ty.

Critical Accounting Policies and Estimates
The preparation of financial  s tatements  in conformity with U.S. general ly accepted accounting principles  requires  management to make estimates  and

assumptions. Predicting future events  is  inherently an imprecise activi ty and, as  such, requires  the use of s igni ficant judgment. Actual  results  may vary from our
estimates  in amounts  that may be materia l  to the financial  s tatements . An accounting pol icy is  deemed to be cri tical  i f i t requires  an accounting estimate to be
made based on assumptions  about matters  that are highly uncertain at the time the estimate is  made, and i f di fferent estimates  that reasonably could have been
used or changes  in the accounting estimates  that are reasonably l ikely to occur periodical ly, could materia l ly impact our consol idated financial  s tatements .

Our cri tical  accounting pol icies , estimates, and judgements  are as  fol lows, and see Note 2. Summary of Signi ficant Accounting Pol icies  included in Item 8
of Part II  for additional  information:

Inventory provision

Inventory is  valued at the lower of cost and net real izable value. We periodical ly review our inventories  and make a provis ion for obsolescence and goods
that have qual i ty i ssues  or that are damaged. We record a provis ion at an amount that i s  equal  to the di fference between the inventory cost and i ts  net
real izable value. As  of January 28, 2024 the net carrying value of our inventories  was  $1.3 bi l l ion, which included provis ions  for obsolete and damaged
inventory of $139.7 mi l l ion. The
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provis ion is  determined based upon assumptions  about product qual i ty, damages, future demand, sel l ing prices , and market conditions, and includes  a
provis ion of $63.0 mi l l ion against lululemon Studio Mirror inventory.

Deferred taxes on undistributed net investment of foreign subsidiaries.

We have not recognized U.S. s tate income taxes  and foreign withholding taxes  on the net investment in our subs idiaries  which we have determined to be
indefini tely reinvested. This  determination is  based on the cash flow projections  and operational  and fiscal  objectives  of each of our foreign subs idiaries . Such
estimates  are inherently imprecise s ince many assumptions  uti l i zed in the projections  are subject to revis ion in the future.

For the portion of our net investment in our Canadian subs idiaries  that i s  not indefini tely reinvested, we have recorded a deferred tax l iabi l i ty for the
taxes  which would be due upon repatriation. For distributions  made by our Canadian subs idiaries , the amount of tax payable is  partia l ly dependent on how the
repatriation transactions  are made. The deferred tax l iabi l i ty has  been recorded on the bas is  that we would choose to make the repatriation transactions  in the
most tax efficient manner. Speci fical ly, to the extent that the Canadian subs idiaries  have sufficient paid-up-capital , any such distributions  would be made as  a
return of capital , rather than as  a  dividend, and therefore would not be subject to Canadian withholding tax.

As  of January 28, 2024, the net investment in our Canadian subs idiaries  was  $2.5 bi l l ion, of which $1.6 bi l l ion was determined to be indefini tely
reinvested. The paid-up-capital  balance of the Canadian subs idiaries  was  approximately $140.0 mi l l ion.

We have recognized a deferred tax l iabi l i ty of $41.2 mi l l ion as  of January 28, 2024 which represents  the Canadian withholding taxes  payable on the
portion of our Canadian earnings  that are not indefini tely reinvested and cannot be repatriated as  a  return of capital , and U.S. s tate income taxes  payable upon
repatriation of the amounts  which are not indefini tely reinvested.

In future periods, i f the net investment in our Canadian subs idiaries  continues  to grow, whether due to the accumulation of profi ts  by these subs idiaries
or due to a  change in the amount that i s  indefini tely reinvested, we wi l l  record additional  deferred tax l iabi l i ties , including both Canadian withholding taxes  for
the amount in excess  of the paid-up capital  balance and U.S. s tate income taxes.

Contingencies

We are involved in legal  proceedings  regarding contractual  and employment relationships  and a variety of other matters . We record contingent l iabi l i ties
when a loss  i s  assessed to be probable and i ts  amount is  reasonably estimable. If i t i s  reasonably poss ible that a  materia l  loss  could occur through ongoing
l i tigation, we provide disclosure in the footnotes  to our financial  s tatements . Assess ing probabi l i ty of loss  and estimating the amount of probable losses
requires  analys is  of multiple factors , including in some cases  judgments  about the potentia l  actions  of third-party cla imants  and courts . Should we experience
adverse court judgments  or should negotiated outcomes di ffer to our expectations  with respect to such ongoing l i tigation i t could have a materia l  adverse effect
on our results  of operations, financial  pos ition, and cash flows.

ITEM 7A. QUANTITATIVE AND QUALITATIVE DISCLOSURES ABOUT MARKET RISK

Foreign Currency Exchange Risk

Translation Risk. The functional  currency of our international  subs idiaries  i s  general ly the appl icable local  currency. Our consol idated financial
statements  are presented in U.S. dol lars . Therefore, the net revenue, expenses, assets , and l iabi l i ties  of our international  subs idiaries  are trans lated from their
functional  currencies  into U.S. dol lars . Fluctuations  in the value of the U.S. dol lar affect the reported amounts  of net revenue, expenses, assets , and l iabi l i ties . As
a result of the fluctuation in exchange rates  compared to the U.S. dol lar our revenue was $89.8 mi l l ion lower in 2023 in comparison to 2022.

Foreign currency exchange di fferences  which arise on trans lation of our international  subs idiaries ' balance sheets  into U.S. dol lars  are recorded as  other
comprehensive income (loss), net of tax in accumulated other comprehensive income (loss) within stockholders ' equity. A s igni ficant portion of our net assets
are held by our Canadian dol lar subs idiary. We enter into forward currency contracts  in order to hedge a portion of the foreign currency exposure associated
with the trans lation of our net investment in our Canadian subs idiary. The impact to other comprehensive loss  of trans lation of our Canadian subs idiaries  was
an increase in the loss  of $9.0 mi l l ion, inclus ive of net investment hedge gains .

Transaction Risk. We also have exposure to changes  in foreign currency exchange rates  associated with transactions  which are undertaken by our
subs idiaries  in currencies  other than their functional  currency. Such transactions  include intercompany transactions  and inventory purchases  denominated in
currencies  other than the functional  currency of the
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purchas ing enti ty. We also hold cash and cash equivalents  and other monetary assets  in currencies  that are di fferent to the functional  currency of our
subs idiaries . As  of January 28, 2024, we had certain forward currency contracts  outstanding in order to economical ly hedge the foreign currency revaluation
gains  and losses  recognized by our foreign subs idiaries , including our Canadian and Chinese subs idiaries , on their monetary assets  and l iabi l i ties
denominated in currencies  other than their functional  currency.

We perform a sens itivi ty analys is  to determine the market risk exposure associated with the fa ir values  of our forward currency contracts . The net fa i r
value of outstanding derivatives  as  of January 28, 2024 was a  l iabi l i ty of $2.2 mi l l ion. As  of January 28, 2024, a  10% depreciation in the U.S. dol lar against the
hedged currencies  would have resulted in the net fa i r value of outstanding derivatives  depreciating by $29.8 mi l l ion. The hypothetical  change in the fa ir value of
the forward currency contracts  would have been substantia l ly offset by a  corresponding but directional ly opposite change in the underlying hedged i tems.

In the future, in an effort to reduce foreign currency exchange risks , we may enter into further derivative financial  instruments  including hedging
additional  currency pairs . We do not, and do not intend to, engage in the practice of trading derivative securi ties  for profi t.

Please refer to Note 17. Derivative Financial  Instruments  included in Item 8 of Part II  of this  report for further detai ls  on the nature of our financial
instruments .

Interest Rate Risk 

Our committed revolving credit faci l i ty provides  us  with avai lable borrowings  in an amount up to $400.0 mi l l ion. Because our revolving credit faci l i ties
bear interest at a  variable rate, we wi l l  be exposed to market risks  relating to changes  in interest rates , i f we have a meaningful  outstanding balance. As  of
January 28, 2024, as ide from letters  of credit of $6.3 mi l l ion, there were no borrowings  outstanding under these credit faci l i ties . We currently do not engage in
any interest rate hedging activi ty and currently have no intention to do so. However, in the future, i f we have a meaningful  outstanding balance under our
revolving faci l i ty, in an effort to mitigate losses  associated with these risks , we may at times enter into derivative financial  instruments , a l though we have not
historical ly done so. These may take the form of forward contracts , option contracts , or interest rate swaps. We do not, and do not intend to, engage in the
practice of trading derivative securi ties  for profi t.

Our cash and cash equivalent balances  are held in the form of cash on hand, bank balances, and short-term deposits  with original  maturi ties  of three
months  or less , and in money market funds. As  of January 28, 2024, we held cash and cash equivalents  of $2.2 bi l l ion. Interest generated on cash balances  is
subject to variabi l i ty as  interest rates  increase or decrease.

Credit Risk. We have cash on deposit with various  large, reputable financial  insti tutions  and have invested in AAA-rated money market funds. The amount
of cash and cash equivalents  held with certain financial  insti tutions  exceeds government-insured l imits . We are a lso exposed to credit-related losses  in the
event of nonperformance by the financial  insti tutions  that are counterparties  to our forward currency contracts . The credit risk amount is  our unreal ized gains
on our derivative instruments , based on foreign currency rates  at the time of nonperformance. We have not experienced any losses  related to these i tems, and
we bel ieve credit risk to be minimal . We seek to minimize our credit risk by entering into transactions  with investment grade credit worthy and reputable
financial  insti tutions  and by monitoring the credit standing of the financial  insti tutions  with whom we transact. We seek to l imit the amount of exposure with
any one counterparty.

Inflation
Inflationary factors  such as  increases  in the cost of our product, as  wel l  as  overhead costs  and capital  expenditures  may adversely affect our operating

results . During 2022 and 2023, our operating margin was  impacted by increased wage rates . During 2022, our gross  margin was  impacted by higher a ir freight
costs  as  a  result of global  supply chain disruption.

Sustained increases  in transportation costs , wages, and raw materia l  costs , or other inflationary pressures  in the future may have an adverse effect on
our abi l i ty to maintain current levels  of operating margin i f the sel l ing prices  of our products  do not increase with these increased costs , or we cannot identi fy
cost efficiencies .
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REPORT OF INDEPENDENT REGISTERED PUBLIC ACCOUNTING FIRM

To the Stockholders  and Board of Directors  of lululemon athletica inc.

Opinions on the Financial Statements and Internal Control over Financial Reporting

We have audited the accompanying consol idated balance sheets  of lululemon athletica inc. and i ts  subs idiaries  (together, the Company) as  of January 28,
2024 and January 29, 2023, and the related consol idated statements  of operations  and comprehensive income, of stockholders ' equity and of cash flows for
each of the 52-week years  ended January 28, 2024, January 29, 2023, and January 30, 2022, including the related notes  (col lectively referred to as  the
consol idated financial  s tatements). We also have audited the Company’s  internal  control  over financial  reporting as  of January 28, 2024, based on cri teria
establ ished in Internal  Control  – Integrated Framework (2013) issued by the Committee of Sponsoring Organizations  of the Treadway Commiss ion (COSO).

In our opinion, the consol idated financial  s tatements  referred to above present fa i rly, in a l l  materia l  respects , the financial  pos ition of the Company as  of
January 28, 2024 and January 29, 2023, and the results  of i ts  operations  and i ts  cash flows for each of the 52-week years  ended January 28, 2024, January 29,
2023, and January 30, 2022 in conformity with accounting principles  general ly accepted in the United States  of America. Also in our opinion, the Company
maintained, in a l l  materia l  respects , effective internal  control  over financial  reporting as  of January 28, 2024, based on cri teria  establ ished in Internal  Control
– Integrated Framework (2013) issued by the COSO.

Basis for Opinions

The Company’s  management is  responsible for these consol idated financial  s tatements , for maintaining effective internal  control  over financial  reporting,
and for i ts  assessment of the effectiveness  of internal  control  over financial  reporting, included in Management's  Annual  Report on Internal  Control  over
Financial  Reporting appearing under Item 9A of the Company’s  2023 Annual  Report on Form 10-K. Our responsibi l i ty i s  to express  opinions  on the Company’s
consol idated financial  s tatements  and on the Company’s  internal  control  over financial  reporting based on our audits . We are a  publ ic accounting fi rm
registered with the Publ ic Company Accounting Overs ight Board (United States) (PCAOB) and are required to be independent with respect to the Company in
accordance with the U.S. federal  securi ties  laws and the appl icable rules  and regulations  of the Securi ties  and Exchange Commiss ion and the PCAOB.

We conducted our audits  in accordance with the standards  of the PCAOB. Those standards  require that we plan and perform the audits  to obtain
reasonable assurance about whether the consol idated financial  s tatements  are free of materia l  misstatement, whether due to error or fraud, and whether
effective internal  control  over financial  reporting was maintained in a l l  materia l  respects .

Our audits  of the consol idated financial  s tatements  included performing procedures  to assess  the risks  of materia l  misstatement of the consol idated
financial  s tatements , whether due to error or fraud, and performing procedures  that respond to those risks . Such procedures  included examining, on a test
bas is , evidence regarding the amounts  and disclosures  in the consol idated financial  s tatements . Our audits  a lso included evaluating the accounting principles
used and s igni ficant estimates  made by management, as  wel l  as  evaluating the overal l  presentation of the consol idated financial  s tatements . Our audit of
internal  control  over financial  reporting included obtaining an understanding of internal  control  over financial  reporting, assess ing the risk that a  materia l
weakness  exists , and testing and evaluating the des ign and operating effectiveness  of internal  control  based on the assessed risk. Our audits  a lso included
performing such other procedures  as  we cons idered necessary in the ci rcumstances. We bel ieve that our audits  provide a reasonable bas is  for our opinions.

Definition and Limitations of Internal Control over Financial Reporting

A company’s  internal  control  over financial  reporting is  a  process  des igned to provide reasonable assurance regarding the rel iabi l i ty of financial
reporting and the preparation of financial  s tatements  for external  purposes  in accordance with general ly accepted accounting principles . A company’s  internal
control  over financial  reporting includes  those pol icies  and procedures  that (i ) pertain to the maintenance of records  that, in reasonable detai l , accurately and
fairly reflect the transactions  and dispos itions  of the assets  of the company; (i i ) provide reasonable assurance that transactions  are recorded as  necessary to
permit preparation of financial  s tatements  in accordance with general ly accepted accounting principles , and that receipts  and expenditures  of the company are
being made only in accordance with authorizations  of management and directors  of the company; and (i i i ) provide reasonable assurance regarding prevention
or timely detection of unauthorized acquis i tion, use, or dispos ition of the company’s  assets  that could have a materia l  effect on the financial  s tatements .
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Because of i ts  inherent l imitations, internal  control  over financial  reporting may not prevent or detect misstatements . Also, projections  of any evaluation
of effectiveness  to future periods  are subject to the risk that controls  may become inadequate because of changes  in conditions, or that the degree of
compl iance with the pol icies  or procedures  may deteriorate.

Critical Audit Matters

The cri tical  audit matter communicated below is  a  matter aris ing from the current period audit of the consol idated financial  s tatements  that was
communicated or required to be communicated to the audit committee and that (i ) relates  to accounts  or disclosures  that are materia l  to the consol idated
financial  s tatements  and (i i ) involved our especial ly chal lenging, subjective, or complex judgments . The communication of cri tical  audit matters  does  not a l ter
in any way our opinion on the consol idated financial  s tatements , taken as  a  whole, and we are not, by communicating the cri tical  audit matter below, providing
a separate opinion on the cri tical  audit matter or on the accounts  or disclosures  to which i t relates .

Inventory Provision

As described in Notes  2 and 3 to the consol idated financial  s tatements , inventories  are valued at the lower of cost and net real izable value, and
management records  a  provis ion as  necessary to appropriately value inventories  that are obsolete, have qual i ty i ssues, or are damaged. Provis ion expense is
recorded in cost of goods sold. As  of January 28, 2024, the Company’s  consol idated net inventories  balance was $1,323.6 mi l l ion inclus ive of the inventory
provis ion of $141.5 mi l l ion. The amount of the inventory provis ion is  equal  to the di fference between the cost of the inventory and i ts  estimated net real izable
value based on assumptions  about product qual i ty, damages, future demand, sel l ing prices , and market conditions.

The principal  cons iderations  for our determination that performing procedures  relating to the inventory provis ion is  a  cri tical  audit matter are the
s igni ficant judgment by management in determining the estimated net real izable value of inventories  that are obsolete, have qual i ty i ssues, or are damaged,
which in turn led to a  high degree of auditor judgment, subjectivi ty, and effort in performing procedures  and evaluating audit evidence relating to the inventory
provis ion.

Address ing the matter involved performing procedures  and evaluating audit evidence in connection with forming our overal l  opinion on the consol idated
financial  s tatements . These procedures  included testing the effectiveness  of controls  relating to the review of the inventory provis ion including the assumptions
used. These procedures  a lso included, among others , (i ) observing the phys ical  condition of inventories  during inventory counts; (i i ) evaluating the
appropriateness  of management’s  process  for developing the estimates  of net real izable value; (i i i ) testing the rel iabi l i ty of reports  used by management by
agreeing to underlying records; (iv) testing the reasonableness  of the assumptions  about qual i ty, damages, future demand, sel l ing prices  and market conditions
by cons idering historical  trends  and cons istency with evidence obtained in other areas  of the audit; and (v) corroborating the assumptions  with individuals
within the product team.

/s/ PricewaterhouseCoopers  LLP
Chartered Profess ional  Accountants
Vancouver, Canada
March 21, 2024

We have served as  the Company's  auditor s ince 2006.
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lululemon athletica inc.
CONSOLIDATED BALANCE SHEETS

(Amounts in thousands, except per share amounts)

January 28, 2024 January 29, 2023
ASSETS
Current assets

Cash and cash equivalents $ 2,243,971 $ 1,154,867 
Accounts receivable, net 124,769 132,906 
Inventories 1,323,602 1,447,367 
Prepaid and receivable income taxes 183,733 185,641 
Prepaid expenses and other current assets 184,502 238,672 

4,060,577 3,159,453 
Property and equipment, net 1,545,811 1,269,614 
Right-of-use lease assets 1,265,610 969,419 
Goodwill 24,083 24,144 
Intangible assets, net — 21,961 
Deferred income tax assets 9,176 6,402 
Other non-current assets 186,684 156,045 

$ 7,091,941 $ 5,607,038 
LIABILITIES AND STOCKHOLDERS' EQUITY
Current liabilities

Accounts payable $ 348,441 $ 172,732 
Accrued liabilities and other 348,555 399,223 
Accrued compensation and related expenses 326,110 248,167 
Current lease liabilities 249,270 207,972 
Current income taxes payable 12,098 174,221 
Unredeemed gift card liability 306,479 251,478 
Other current liabilities 40,308 38,405 

1,631,261 1,492,198 
Non-current lease liabilities 1,154,012 862,362 
Non-current income taxes payable 15,864 28,555 
Deferred income tax liabilities 29,522 55,084 
Other non-current liabilities 29,201 20,040 

2,859,860 2,458,239 
Commitments and contingencies
Stockholders' equity

Undesignated preferred stock, $0.01 par value: 5,000 shares authorized; none issued and outstanding — — 
Exchangeable stock, no par value: 60,000 shares authorized; 5,116 and 5,116 issued and outstanding — — 
Special voting stock, $0.000005 par value: 60,000 shares authorized; 5,116 and 5,116 issued and outstanding — — 
Common stock, $0.005 par value: 400,000 shares authorized; 121,106 and 122,205 issued and outstanding 606 611 
Additional paid-in capital 575,369 474,645 
Retained earnings 3,920,362 2,926,127 
Accumulated other comprehensive loss (264,256) (252,584)

4,232,081 3,148,799 
$ 7,091,941 $ 5,607,038 

See accompanying notes  to the consol idated financial  s tatements
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lululemon athletica inc.
CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF OPERATIONS AND COMPREHENSIVE INCOME

 (Amounts in thousands, except per share amounts)

 Fiscal Year Ended
January 28,

2024
January 29,

2023
January 30,

2022
Ne t re ve nue $ 9,619,278 $ 8,110,518 $ 6,256,617 
Cos t of goods  s ol d 4,009,873 3,618,178 2,648,052 
Gros s  profi t 5,609,405 4,492,340 3,608,565 
Se l l i ng, ge ne ra l  a nd a dmi ni s tra ti ve  e xpe ns e s 3,397,218 2,757,447 2,225,034 
Impa i rme nt of goodwi l l  a nd othe r a s s e ts , re s tructuri ng cos ts 74,501 407,913 — 
Amorti za ti on of i nta ngi bl e  a s s e ts 5,010 8,752 8,782 
Acqui s i ti on-re l a te d e xpe ns e s — — 41,394 
Ga i n on di s pos a l  of a s s e ts — (10,180) — 
Income  from ope ra ti ons 2,132,676 1,328,408 1,333,355 
Othe r i ncome  (e xpe ns e ), ne t 43,059 4,163 514 
Income  be fore  i ncome  ta x e xpe ns e 2,175,735 1,332,571 1,333,869 
Income  ta x e xpe ns e 625,545 477,771 358,547 
Ne t i ncome $ 1,550,190 $ 854,800 $ 975,322 

Othe r compre he ns i ve  i ncome  (l os s ), ne t of ta x:
Fore i gn curre ncy tra ns l a ti on a djus tme nt $ (23,077) $ (65,571) $ (28,494)
Ne t i nve s tme nt he dge  ga i ns  (l os s e s ) 11,405 8,904 9,732 

Othe r compre he ns i ve  i ncome  (l os s ), ne t of ta x (11,672) (56,667) (18,762)
Compre he ns i ve  i ncome $ 1,538,518 $ 798,133 $ 956,560 

Ba s i c e a rni ngs  pe r s ha re $ 12.23 $ 6.70 $ 7.52 
Di l ute d e a rni ngs  pe r s ha re $ 12.20 $ 6.68 $ 7.49 
Ba s i c we i ghte d-a ve ra ge  numbe r of s ha re s  outs ta ndi ng 126,726 127,666 129,768 
Di l ute d we i ghte d-a ve ra ge  numbe r of s ha re s  outs ta ndi ng 127,060 128,017 130,295 

See accompanying notes  to the consol idated financial  s tatements
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lululemon athletica inc.
CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF STOCKHOLDERS' EQUITY 

(Amounts in thousands)

 Exchangeable Stock Special Voting Stock Common Stock
Additional Paid-

in Capital
Retained
Earnings

Accumulated Other
Comprehensive

Loss

Total
Stockholders'

EquityShares Shares Par Value Shares Par Value
Balance as of January 31, 2021 5,203 5,203 $ — 125,150 $ 626 $ 388,667 $ 2,346,428 $ (177,155) $ 2,558,566 
Net income 975,322 975,322 
Other comprehensive income
(loss), net of tax (18,762) (18,762)
Stock-based compensation
expense 69,137 69,137 
Common stock issued upon
settlement of stock-based
compensation 502 2 18,192 18,194 
Shares withheld related to net
share settlement of stock-based
compensation (153) (1) (49,808) (49,809)
Repurchase of common stock (2,202) (11) (3,681) (808,910) (812,602)
Balance as of January 30, 2022 5,203 5,203 $ — 123,297 $ 616 $ 422,507 $ 2,512,840 $ (195,917) $ 2,740,046 
Net income 854,800 854,800 
Other comprehensive income
(loss), net of tax (56,667) (56,667)
Common stock issued upon
exchange of exchangeable
shares (87) (87) — 87 — — — 
Stock-based compensation
expense 78,075 78,075 
Common stock issued upon
settlement of stock-based
compensation 322 2 11,702 11,704 
Shares withheld related to net
share settlement of stock-based
compensation (105) — (35,158) (35,158)
Repurchase of common stock,
including excise tax (1,396) (7) (2,481) (441,513) (444,001)
Balance as of January 29, 2023 5,116 5,116 $ — 122,205 $ 611 $ 474,645 $ 2,926,127 $ (252,584) $ 3,148,799 
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 Exchangeable Stock Special Voting Stock Common Stock
Additional Paid-

in Capital
Retained
Earnings

Accumulated Other
Comprehensive

Loss

Total
Stockholders'

EquityShares Shares Par Value Shares Par Value
Net income 1,550,190 1,550,190 
Other comprehensive income
(loss), net of tax (11,672) (11,672)
Stock-based compensation
expense 93,560 93,560 
Common stock issued upon
settlement of stock-based
compensation 479 2 42,428 42,430 
Shares withheld related to net
share settlement of stock-based
compensation (96) — (32,574) (32,574)
Repurchase of common stock,
including excise tax (1,482) (7) (2,690) (555,955) (558,652)
Balance as of January 28, 2024 5,116 5,116 $ — 121,106 $ 606 $ 575,369 $ 3,920,362 $ (264,256) $ 4,232,081 

See accompanying notes  to the consol idated financial  s tatements
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lululemon athletica inc.
CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF CASH FLOWS

(Amounts in thousands)
 Fiscal Year Ended

 
January 28,
2024

January 29,
2023

January 30,
2022

Ca s h fl ows  from ope ra ti ng a cti vi ti e s
Ne t i ncome $ 1,550,190 $ 854,800 $ 975,322 
Adjus tme nts  to re conci l e  ne t i ncome  to ne t ca s h provi de d by ope ra ti ng

a cti vi ti e s :
De pre ci a ti on a nd a morti za ti on 379,384 291,791 224,206 
l ul ul e mon Studi o obs ol e s ce nce  provi s i on 23,709 62,928 — 
Impa i rme nt of goodwi l l  a nd othe r a s s e ts , re s tructuri ng cos ts 74,501 407,913 — 
Ga i n on di s pos a l  of a s s e ts — (10,180) — 
Stock-ba s e d compe ns a ti on e xpe ns e 93,560 78,075 69,137 
De re cogni ti on of unre de e me d gi ft ca rd l i a bi l i ty (28,547) (23,337) (18,699)
Se ttl e me nt of de ri va ti ve s  not de s i gna te d i n a  he dgi ng re l a ti ons hi p 32,527 (38,649) 15,191 
De fe rre d i ncome  ta xe s (28,383) 3,042 (5,180)
Cha nge s  i n ope ra ti ng a s s e ts  a nd l i a bi l i ti e s :

Inve ntori e s 66,584 (573,438) (323,609)
Pre pa i d a nd re ce i va bl e  i ncome  ta xe s 1,908 (66,714) 20,108 
Pre pa i d e xpe ns e s  a nd othe r curre nt a s s e ts 47,167 (113,820) (82,404)
Othe r non-curre nt a s s e ts (53,280) (36,518) (17,556)
Accounts  pa ya bl e 177,367 (107,280) 117,655 
Accrue d l i a bi l i ti e s  a nd othe r (71,734) 65,364 103,878 
Accrue d compe ns a ti on a nd re l a te d e xpe ns e s 70,327 47,254 75,273 
Curre nt a nd non-curre nt i ncome  ta xe s  pa ya bl e (173,196) 35,986 120,778 
Unre de e me d gi ft ca rd l i a bi l i ty 84,315 68,266 71,441 
Ri ght-of-us e  l e a s e  a s s e ts  a nd curre nt a nd non-curre nt l e a s e

l i a bi l i ti e s 37,535 23,905 13,494 
Othe r curre nt a nd non-curre nt l i a bi l i ti e s 12,230 (2,925) 30,073 

Ne t ca s h provi de d by ope ra ti ng a cti vi ti e s 2,296,164 966,463 1,389,108 
Ca s h fl ows  from i nve s ti ng a cti vi ti e s

Purcha s e  of prope rty a nd e qui pme nt (651,865) (638,657) (394,502)
Se ttl e me nt of ne t i nve s tme nt he dge s (1,609) 47,804 (23,389)
Othe r i nve s ti ng a cti vi ti e s (658) 20,916 (10,000)

Ne t ca s h us e d i n i nve s ti ng a cti vi ti e s (654,132) (569,937) (427,891)
Ca s h fl ows  from fi na nci ng a cti vi ti e s

Proce e ds  from s e ttl e me nt of s tock-ba s e d compe ns a ti on 42,430 11,704 18,194 
Sha re s  wi thhe l d re l a te d to ne t s ha re  s e ttl e me nt of s tock-ba s e d

compe ns a ti on (32,574) (35,158) (49,809)
Re purcha s e  of common s tock (558,652) (444,001) (812,602)
Othe r fi na nci ng a cti vi ti e s (32) (32) (770)

Ne t ca s h us e d i n fi na nci ng a cti vi ti e s (548,828) (467,487) (844,987)
Effe ct of fore i gn curre ncy e xcha nge  ra te  cha nge s  on ca s h a nd ca s h e qui va l e nts (4,100) (34,043) (6,876)
Incre a s e  (de cre a s e ) i n ca s h a nd ca s h e qui va l e nts 1,089,104 (105,004) 109,354 
Ca s h a nd ca s h e qui va l e nts , be gi nni ng of pe ri od $ 1,154,867 $ 1,259,871 $ 1,150,517 
Ca s h a nd ca s h e qui va l e nts , e nd of pe ri od $ 2,243,971 $ 1,154,867 $ 1,259,871 

See accompanying notes  to the consol idated financial  s tatements
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lululemon athletica inc.
NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

Note 1. Nature of Operations and Basis of Presentation

Nature of operations

lululemon athletica inc., a  Delaware corporation, ("lululemon" and, together with i ts  subs idiaries  unless  the context otherwise requires , the "Company") i s
engaged in the des ign, distribution, and retai l  of performance apparel , footwear, and accessories . The Company organizes  i ts  operations  into four regional
markets : Americas , China Mainland, As ia  Paci fic ("APAC"), and Europe and the Middle East ("EMEA"). It conducts  i ts  bus iness  through a number of di fferent
channels  in each market, including company-operated stores , e-commerce, temporary locations, wholesale, outlets , a  re-commerce program, and l icense and
supply arrangements . There were 711, 655, and 574 company-operated stores  in operation as  of January 28, 2024, January 29, 2023, and January 30, 2022,
respectively.

Basis of presentation

The consol idated financial  s tatements  have been presented in U.S. dol lars  and are prepared in accordance with United States  general ly accepted
accounting principles  ("GAAP").

The Company's  fi scal  year ends  on the Sunday closest to January 31 of the fol lowing year, typical ly resulting in a  52-week year, but occas ional ly giving
rise to an additional  week, resulting in a  53-week year. Fiscal  2023, fi scal  2022, and fiscal  2021 were each 52-week years . Fiscal  2023, 2022, and 2021 ended
on January 28, 2024, January 29, 2023, and January 30, 2022, respectively, and are referred to as  "2023," "2022," and "2021," respectively.

The Company's  bus iness  is  affected by the pattern of seasonal i ty common to most retai l  apparel  bus inesses. Historical ly, the Company has  recognized a
s igni ficant portion of i ts  operating profi t in the fourth fiscal  quarter of each year as  a  result of increased net revenue during the hol iday season.

Note 2. Summary of Significant Accounting Policies

Principles of consolidation

The consol idated financial  s tatements  include the accounts  of lululemon athletica inc. and i ts  whol ly-owned subs idiaries . Al l  intercompany balances  and
transactions  have been el iminated.

Cash and cash equivalents

Cash and cash equivalents  cons ist of cash on hand, bank balances, money market funds, and short-term deposits  with original  maturi ties  of three months
or less . The Company has  not experienced any losses  related to these balances, and management bel ieves  the Company's  credit risk to be minimal .

Accounts receivable

Accounts  receivable primari ly arise out of third party gi ft card sales , sa les  to wholesale accounts , onl ine marketplaces, duty receivables , and l icense and
supply arrangements . The al lowance for doubtful  accounts  represents  management's  best estimate of probable credit losses  in accounts  receivable. Receivables
are written off against the al lowance when management bel ieves  that the amount receivable wi l l  not be recovered. As  of January 28, 2024 and January 29, 2023,
the Company had an ins igni ficant a l lowance for doubtful  accounts .

Inventories

Inventories , cons isting of finished goods, inventories  in trans it, and raw materia ls , are stated at the lower of cost and net real izable value. Cost i s
determined us ing weighted-average costs , and includes  a l l  costs  incurred to del iver inventory to the Company's  distribution centers  including freight, non-
refundable taxes, duty, and other landing costs .

The Company periodical ly reviews i ts  inventories  and makes  a  provis ion as  necessary to appropriately value goods that are obsolete, have qual i ty i ssues,
or are damaged. The amount of the provis ion is  equal  to the di fference between the cost of the inventory and i ts  net real izable value based upon assumptions
about product qual i ty, damages, future demand, sel l ing prices , and market conditions. If changes  in market conditions  result in reductions  in the estimated net
real izable value of i ts  inventory below i ts  previous  estimate, the Company would increase i ts  provis ion in the period in which i t made such a determination.
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In addition, the Company provides  for inventory shrinkage based on historical  trends  from actual  phys ical  inventory counts . Inventory shrinkage
estimates  are made to reduce the inventory value for lost or stolen i tems. The Company performs phys ical  inventory counts  and cycle counts  throughout the year
and adjusts  the shrink provis ion accordingly.

Business combinations

The purchase price of an acquis i tion is  measured as  the aggregate of the fa ir value of the cons ideration transferred including the acquis i tion-date fa ir
value of the Company's  previous ly held equity interests . The purchase price is  a l located to the fa ir values  of the tangible and intangible assets  acquired and
l iabi l i ties  assumed, with any excess  recorded as  goodwi l l . These fa ir value determinations  require judgment and may involve the use of s igni ficant estimates
and assumptions. The purchase price a l location may be provis ional  during a  measurement period of up to one year to provide reasonable time to obtain the
information necessary to identi fy and measure the assets  acquired and l iabi l i ties  assumed. Any such measurement period adjustments  are recognized in the
period in which the adjustment amount is  determined. Transaction costs  associated with the acquis i tion are expensed as  incurred.

Goodwill

Goodwi l l  represents  the excess  of the aggregate of the cons ideration transferred, the fa ir value of any non-control l ing interest in the acquiree, and the
acquis i tion-date fa ir value of the Company's  previous ly held equity interest over the net assets  acquired and l iabi l i ties  assumed. Goodwi l l  i s  a l located to the
reporting unit which is  expected to receive the benefi t from the synergies  of the combination.

Goodwi l l  i s  tested annual ly for impairment or more frequently when an event or ci rcumstance indicates  that goodwi l l  might be impaired. General ly, the
Company fi rst performs a qual i tative assessment to determine whether i t i s  more l ikely than not that the fa ir value of a  reporting unit i s  less  than i ts  carrying
value. If factors  indicate that this  i s  the case, the Company then estimates  the fa ir value of the related reporting unit. If the fa ir value is  less  than the carrying
value, the goodwi l l  of the reporting unit i s  determined to be impaired and the Company wi l l  record an impairment equal  to the excess  of the carrying value over
i ts  fa i r value.

Intangible assets

Acquired fini te-l ived intangible assets  are amortized on a straight-l ine bas is  over their estimated useful  l ives , and are reviewed for impairment when
events  or ci rcumstances  indicate that the asset group to which the intangible assets  belong might be impaired. The Company revises  the estimated remaining
useful  l i fe of these assets  when events  or changes  in ci rcumstances  warrant a  revis ion. If the Company revises  the useful  l i fe, the unamortized balance is
amortized over the remaining useful  l i fe on a prospective bas is .

Property and equipment

Property and equipment are recorded at cost less  accumulated depreciation. Direct internal  and external  costs  related to software used for internal
purposes  which are incurred during the appl ication development stage or for upgrades  that add functional i ty are capital ized. Al l  other costs  related to internal
use software are expensed as  incurred. Property and equipment carrying values  are reviewed for impairment when events  or ci rcumstances  indicate that the
asset group to which the property and equipment belong might be impaired.

Depreciation commences  when an asset i s  ready for i ts  intended use. Bui ldings  are depreciated on a straight-l ine bas is  over the expected useful  l i fe of the
asset, which is  individual ly assessed, and estimated to be up to 40 years . Leasehold improvements  are depreciated on a straight-l ine bas is  over the lesser of the
expected lease term and the estimated useful  l i fe of the improvement, to a  maximum of 10 years  for stores  and 15 years  for corporate offices  and distribution
centers . Al l  other property and equipment are depreciated us ing the decl ining balance method as  fol lows:

Furni ture  a nd fi xture s 20%
Compute r ha rdwa re  a nd s oftwa re 20% - 50%
Equi pme nt a nd ve hi cl e s  20% - 30%
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Cloud Computing Arrangements

The Company incurs  costs  to implement cloud computing arrangements  hosted by third party vendors . Costs  incurred to implement cloud computing
service arrangements  are capital ized when incurred during the appl ication development phase, and recognized as  other non-current assets . Implementation
costs  are subsequently amortized over the expected term of the related cloud service. The carrying value of cloud computing implementation costs  are tested for
impairment when an event or ci rcumstance indicates  that the asset might be impaired. Changes  in cloud computing arrangement implementation costs  are
class i fied within operating activi ties  in the consol idated statements  of cash flows.

Impairment of long-lived assets

Long-l ived assets , held for use are evaluated for impairment when the occurrence of events  or a  change in ci rcumstances  indicates  that the carrying value
of the assets  may not be recoverable as  measured by comparing their carrying value to the estimated undiscounted future cash flows generated by their use and
eventual  dispos ition. Impaired assets  are recorded at fa i r value, determined principal ly by discounting the future cash flows expected from their use and
eventual  dispos ition. Reductions  in asset values  resulting from impairment valuations  are recognized in income in the period that the impairment is
determined.

Leased property and equipment

At lease commencement, which is  general ly when the Company takes  possess ion of the asset, the Company records  a  lease l iabi l i ty and corresponding
right-of-use asset. Lease l iabi l i ties  represent the present value of minimum lease payments  over the expected lease term, which includes  options  to extend or
terminate the lease when i t i s  reasonably certain those options  wi l l  be exercised. The present value of the lease l iabi l i ty i s  determined us ing the Company's
incremental  col lateral ized borrowing rate at the lease commencement.

Minimum lease payments  include base rent, fixed escalation of rental  payments , and rental  payments  that are adjusted periodical ly depending on a rate
or index. In determining minimum lease payments , the Company does  not separate non-lease components  for real  estate leases. Non-lease components  are
general ly services  that the lessor performs for the Company associated with the leased asset, such as  common area maintenance.

Right-of-use assets  represent the right to control  the use of the leased asset during the lease and are ini tia l ly recognized in an amount equal  to the lease
l iabi l i ty. In addition, prepaid rent, ini tia l  di rect costs , and adjustments  for lease incentives  are components  of the right-of-use asset. Over the lease term the
lease expense is  amortized on a straight-l ine bas is  beginning on the lease commencement date. Right-of-use assets  are assessed for impairment as  part of the
impairment of long-l ived assets , which is  performed whenever events  or changes  in ci rcumstances  indicate that the carrying amount of an asset or asset group
may not be recoverable.

Variable lease payments , including contingent rental  payments  based on sales  volume, are recognized when the achievement of the speci fic target i s
probable. A right-of-use asset and lease l iabi l i ty are not recognized for leases  with an ini tia l  term of 12 months  or less , and the lease expense is  recognized on a
straight-l ine bas is  over the lease term.

The Company recognizes  a  l iabi l i ty for the fa ir value of asset reti rement obl igations  ("AROs") when such obl igations  are incurred. The Company's  AROs are
primari ly associated with leasehold improvements  which, at the end of a  lease, the Company is  contractual ly obl igated to remove in order to comply with the
lease agreement. At the inception of a  lease with such conditions, the Company records  an ARO l iabi l i ty and a corresponding capital  asset in an amount equal
to the estimated fa ir value of the obl igation. The l iabi l i ty i s  estimated based on a number of assumptions  requiring management's  judgment, including store
clos ing costs , cost inflation rates  and discount rates , and is  accreted to i ts  projected future value over time. The capital ized asset i s  depreciated us ing the
convention for depreciation of leasehold improvement assets . Upon satis faction of the ARO conditions, any di fference between the recorded ARO l iabi l i ty and
the actual  reti rement costs  incurred is  recognized as  an operating gain or loss  in the consol idated statements  of operations.

The Company recognizes  a  l iabi l i ty for a  cost associated with a  lease exit or disposal  activi ty when such obl igation is  incurred. A lease exit or disposal
l iabi l i ty i s  measured ini tia l ly at i ts  fa i r value in the period in which the l iabi l i ty i s  incurred. The Company estimates  fa i r value at the cease-use date of i ts
operating leases  as  the remaining lease rentals , reduced by estimated sublease rentals  that could be reasonably obtained for the property, even where the
Company does  not intend to enter into a  sublease. Estimating the cost of certain lease exit costs  involves  subjective assumptions, including the time i t would
take to sublease the leased location and the related potentia l  sublease income. The estimated accruals  for these costs  could be s igni ficantly affected i f future
experience di ffers  from the assumptions  used in the ini tia l  estimate.
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Revenue recognition

Net revenue is  comprised of company-operated store net revenue, e-commerce net revenue through websites  and mobi le apps, including mobi le apps  on
in-store devices  that a l low demand to be ful fi l led via  the Company's  distribution centers , and other net revenue, which includes  revenue from outlets , sa les  to
wholesale accounts , l icense and supply arrangement net revenue, which cons ists  of royalties  as  wel l  as  sales  of the Company's  products  to l icensees, re-
commerce revenue, revenue from temporary locations, and lululemon Studio revenue. Al l  revenue is  reported net of markdowns, discounts , sa les  taxes  col lected
from customers  on behalf of taxing authori ties , and returns. lululemon Studio generates  gross  revenue from digi ta l  content subscriptions.

Revenue is  recognized when performance obl igations  are satis fied through the transfer of control  of promised goods or services  to the Company's
customers. Control  transfers  once a customer has  the abi l i ty to direct the use of, and obtain substantia l ly a l l  of the benefi ts  from, the product. This  includes  the
transfer of legal  ti tle, phys ical  possess ion, the risks  and rewards  of ownership, and customer acceptance. Revenue from company-operated stores  and other
retai l  locations  is  recognized at the point of sale. E-commerce revenue, sales  to wholesale accounts  and in-home fi tness  hardware sales  are recognized upon
receipt by the customer. In certain arrangements  the Company receives  payment before the customer receives  the promised good. These payments  are ini tia l ly
recorded as  deferred revenue, and recognized as  revenue in the period when control  i s  transferred to the customer.

Revenue is  presented net of an al lowance for estimated returns. The Company's  l iabi l i ty for sales  return refunds is  recognized within accrued l iabi l i ties
and other, and an asset for the value of inventory which is  expected to be returned is  recognized within other prepaid expenses  and other current assets  on the
consol idated balance sheets . As  of January 28, 2024 and January 29, 2023, the sales  return al lowance was $61.6 mi l l ion and $55.5 mi l l ion, respectively.

Shipping fees  bi l led to customers  are recorded as  revenue, and shipping costs  are recognized within sel l ing, general  and administrative expenses  in the
same period the related revenue is  recognized.

Proceeds from the sale of gi ft cards  are ini tia l ly deferred and recognized within unredeemed gi ft card l iabi l i ty on the consol idated balance sheets , and are
recognized as  revenue when tendered for payment. Whi le the Company wi l l  continue to honor a l l  gi ft cards  presented for payment, to the extent management
determines  there is  no requirement to remit unused card balances  to government agencies  under unclaimed property laws, the portion of card balances  not
expected to be redeemed are recognized in net revenue in proportion to the gi ft cards  which have been redeemed, under the redemption recognition method. For
2023, 2022, and 2021, net revenue recognized on unredeemed gi ft card balances  was  $28.5 mi l l ion, $23.3 mi l l ion, and $18.7 mi l l ion, respectively.

Cost of goods sold

Cost of goods sold includes:

• the cost of purchased merchandise, which includes  acquis i tion and production costs  including raw materia l  and labor, as  appl icable;

• the cost incurred to del iver inventory to the Company's  distribution centers  including freight, non-refundable taxes, duty, and other landing costs ;

• the cost of the Company's  distribution centers , such as  labor, rent, uti l i ties , and depreciation;

• the cost of the Company's  production, des ign, research and development, distribution, and merchandis ing departments  including salaries , s tock-
based compensation and benefi ts , and other expenses;

• occupancy costs  such as  minimum rent, contingent rent where appl icable, property taxes, uti l i ties , and depreciation expense for the Company's
company-operated store locations;

• hemming costs ;

• shrink and inventory provis ion expense; and

• the cost of digi ta l  content subscription services
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Selling, general and administrative expenses

Sel l ing, general  and administrative expenses  cons ist of a l l  operating costs  not otherwise included in cost of goods sold, intangible asset amortization, or
acquis i tion-related expenses. The Company's  sel l ing, general  and administrative expenses  include the costs  of corporate and retai l  employee wages  and
benefi ts , costs  to transport the Company's  products  from the distribution faci l i ties  to the Company's  retai l  locations  and e-commerce guests , profess ional  fees ,
marketing, technology, human resources, accounting, legal , corporate faci l i ty and occupancy costs , and depreciation and amortization expense other than in
cost of goods sold.

For 2023, 2022, and 2021, the Company incurred costs  to transport i ts  products  from i ts  distribution faci l i ties  to i ts  retai l  locations  and e-commerce
guests  of $374.2 mi l l ion, $353.7 mi l l ion, and $270.8 mi l l ion, respectively.

Advertising and Marketing Costs

Advertis ing costs , including the costs  to produce advertis ing, are expensed as  incurred. Advertis ing expenses  were $429.7 mi l l ion, $328.6 mi l l ion, and
$297.5 mi l l ion for 2023, 2022, and 2021, respectively, and are included within sel l ing, general  and administrative expenses.

Store pre-opening costs

Operating costs  incurred prior to the opening of new stores  are expensed as  incurred as  sel l ing, general  and administrative expenses.

Income taxes

The Company fol lows the l iabi l i ty method with respect to accounting for income taxes. Deferred income tax assets  and l iabi l i ties  are determined based on
the temporary di fferences  between the carrying amounts  and the tax bas is  of assets  and l iabi l i ties , and for tax losses , tax credit carryforwards, and other tax
attributes . Deferred income tax assets  and l iabi l i ties  are measured us ing enacted tax rates , for the appropriate tax jurisdiction, that are expected to be in effect
when these di fferences  are anticipated to reverse.

The Company has  not recognized U.S. s tate income taxes  and foreign withholding taxes  on undistributed earnings  of foreign subs idiaries  which the
Company has  determined to be indefini tely reinvested.

Deferred income tax assets  are reduced by a  valuation al lowance, i f based on the weight of avai lable evidence, i t i s  more l ikely than not that some portion
or a l l  of the deferred tax assets  wi l l  not be real ized. The evaluation as  to the l ikel ihood of real izing the benefi t of a  deferred income tax asset i s  based on the
timing of scheduled reversals  of deferred tax l iabi l i ties , taxable income forecasts , and tax-planning strategies . The recognition of a  deferred income tax asset i s
based upon several  assumptions  and forecasts , including current and anticipated taxable income, the uti l i zation of previous ly unreal ized non-operating loss
carryforwards, and regulatory reviews of tax fi l ings .

The Company evaluates  i ts  tax fi l ing pos itions  and recognizes  the largest amount of tax benefi t that i s  cons idered more l ikely than not to be sustained
upon examination by the relevant taxing authori ties  based on the technical  merits  of the pos ition. This  determination requires  the use of s igni ficant judgment.
Income tax expense is  adjusted in the period in which an uncertain tax pos ition is  effectively settled, the statute of l imitations  expires , facts  or ci rcumstances
change, tax laws change, or new information becomes avai lable. The Company's  pol icy is  to recognize interest expense and penalties  related to income tax
matters  as  part of income tax expense. Accrued interest and penalties  are included within the related tax l iabi l i ty on the Company's  consol idated balance
sheets .

The Company treats  the global  intangible low-taxed income ("GILTI") tax as  a  current period expense.

Fair value of financial instruments

Fair value is  defined as  the price that would be received to sel l  an asset or paid to transfer a  l iabi l i ty in an orderly transaction between market
participants  at the measurement date. Fair value measurements  are made us ing a  three-tier fa i r value hierarchy, which priori tizes  the inputs  used in measuring
fair value:

• Level  1 - defined as  observable inputs  such as  quoted prices  in active markets ;

• Level  2 - defined as  inputs  other than quoted prices  in active markets  that are ei ther directly or indirectly observable; and

• Level  3 - defined as  unobservable inputs  in which l i ttle or no market data exists , therefore requiring an enti ty to develop i ts  own assumptions.

The fa ir value measurement is  categorized in i ts  enti rety by reference to i ts  lowest level  of s igni ficant input.
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The Company records  cash, accounts  receivable, accounts  payable, and accrued l iabi l i ties  at cost. The carrying values  of these instruments  approximate
their fa i r value due to their short-term maturi ties .

The Company holds  certain assets  and l iabi l i ties  that are required to be measured at fa i r value on a recurring bas is , and performs certain valuations  on a
non-recurring bas is , which are outl ined in Note 16. Fair Value Measurement.

Foreign currency

The functional  currency for each enti ty included in these consol idated financial  s tatements  that i s  domici led outs ide of the United States  is  general ly the
appl icable local  currency. Assets  and l iabi l i ties  of each foreign enti ty are trans lated into U.S. dol lars  at the exchange rate in effect on the balance sheet date.
Net revenue and expenses  are trans lated at the average rate in effect during the period. Unreal ized trans lation gains  and losses  are recorded as  a  foreign
currency trans lation adjustment, which is  included in other comprehensive income (loss), net of tax, which is  a  component of accumulated other comprehensive
income or loss  included in stockholders ' equity.

Foreign currency transactions  denominated in a  currency other than an enti ty's  functional  currency are remeasured into the functional  currency with any
resulting gains  and losses  recognized in sel l ing, general  and administrative expenses, except for gains  and losses  aris ing on intercompany foreign currency
transactions  that are of a  long-term investment nature, which are recorded as  a  net investment hedge gains  (losses) in other comprehensive income (loss), net of
tax.

Derivative financial instruments

The Company uses  derivative financial  instruments  to manage i ts  exposure to certain foreign currency exchange rate risks .

Net investment hedges. The Company enters  into certain forward currency contracts  that are des ignated as  net investment hedges. The effective portions  of
the hedges  are reported in accumulated other comprehensive income or loss , net of tax, and wi l l  subsequently be reclass i fied to net earnings  in the period in
which the hedged investment is  ei ther sold or substantia l ly l iquidated. Hedge effectiveness  is  measured us ing a  method based on changes  in forward exchange
rates . The Company class i fies  the cash flows at settlement of i ts  net investment hedges  within investing activi ties  in the consol idated statements  of cash flows.

Derivatives not designated as hedging instruments. The Company also enters  into certain forward currency contracts  that are not des ignated as  net
investment hedges. They are des igned to economical ly hedge the foreign exchange revaluation gains  and losses  of certain monetary assets  and l iabi l i ties . The
Company has  not appl ied hedge accounting to these instruments  and the change in fa i r value of these derivatives  is  recorded within sel l ing, general  and
administrative expenses. The Company class i fies  the cash flows at settlement of i ts  forward currency contracts  which are not des ignated in hedging
relationships  within operating activi ties  in the consol idated statements  of cash flows.

The Company presents  i ts  derivative assets  and derivative l iabi l i ties  at their gross  fa i r values  within prepaid expenses  and other current assets  and other
current l iabi l i ties  on the consol idated balance sheets . However, the Company's  Master International  Swap Dealers  Association, Inc., Agreements  and other
s imi lar arrangements  a l low net settlements  under certain conditions.

The Company does  not enter into derivative contracts  for speculative or trading purposes. Additional  information on the Company's  derivative financial
instruments  is  included in Note 16. Fair Value Measurement and Note 17. Derivative Financial  Instruments .

Concentration of credit risk

Accounts  receivable primari ly arise out of third party gi ft card sales , sa les  to wholesale accounts , onl ine marketplaces, duty receivables , and l icense and
supply arrangements . The Company general ly does  not require col lateral  to support the accounts  receivable; however, in certain ci rcumstances, the Company
may require parties  to provide payment for goods prior to del ivery of the goods or to provide letters  of credit. The accounts  receivable are net of an al lowance
for doubtful  accounts , which is  establ ished based on management's  assessment of the credit risk of the underlying accounts .

Cash and cash equivalents  are held with high qual i ty financial  insti tutions. The amount of cash and cash equivalents  held with certain financial
insti tutions  exceeds government-insured l imits . The Company is  a lso exposed to credit-related losses  in the event of nonperformance by the counterparties  to
the forward currency contracts . The credit risk amount is  the Company's  unreal ized gains  on i ts  derivative instruments , based on foreign currency rates  at the
time of nonperformance. The Company has  not experienced any losses  related to these i tems, and i t bel ieves  credit risk to be minimal . The Company seeks  to
minimize i ts  credit risk by entering into transactions  with investment grade credit worthy and reputable financial  insti tutions  and by monitoring the credit
standing of the financial  insti tutions  with whom it transacts . It seeks  to l imit the amount of exposure with any one counterparty.

60



Table of Contents

The Company's  derivative contracts  contain certain credit risk-related contingent features. Under certain ci rcumstances, including an event of default,
bankruptcy, termination, and cross  default under the Company's  Americas  revolving credit faci l i ty, the Company may be required to make immediate payment
for outstanding l iabi l i ties  under i ts  derivative contracts .

Stock-based compensation

The Company accounts  for stock-based compensation us ing the fa ir value method. The fa ir value of awards  granted is  estimated at the date of grant.
Awards  settled in cash or common stock at the election of the employee are remeasured to fa ir value at the end of each reporting period unti l  settlement. The
employee compensation expense is  recognized on a straight-l ine bas is  over the requis i te service period with the offsetting credit to additional  paid-in capital
for awards  that are settled in common shares , and with the offsetting credit to accrued compensation and related expenses  for awards  that are settled in cash
or common stock at the election of the employee.

For awards  with service and/or performance conditions, the amount of compensation expense recognized is  based on the number of awards  expected to
vest, reflecting estimated expected forfei tures , and is  adjusted to reflect those awards  that do ultimately vest. The forfei ture rate is  based on management's  best
estimate of expected forfei tures , taking into cons ideration historical  trends  and expected future behavior. For awards  with performance conditions, the
Company recognizes  the compensation expense i f and when the Company concludes  that i t i s  probable that the performance condition wi l l  be achieved. The
Company reassesses  the probabi l i ty of achieving the performance condition at each reporting date.

The grant date fa ir value of each stock option granted is  estimated on the grant date us ing the Black-Scholes  model . The grant date fa ir value of restricted
shares, performance-based restricted stock units , and restricted stock units  i s  based on the clos ing price of the Company's  common stock on the grant date.
Restricted stock units  that were settled in cash or common stock at the election of the employee were remeasured to fa ir value at the end of each reporting
period unti l  settlement. This  fa i r value was based on the clos ing price of the Company's  common stock on the last bus iness  day before each period end.

Earnings per share

Earnings  per share is  calculated us ing the weighted-average number of common and exchangeable shares  outstanding during the period. Exchangeable
shares  are the economic equivalent of common shares  in a l l  materia l  respects . Al l  classes  of stock have in effect the same economic rights  and share equal ly in
undistributed net income. Di luted earnings  per share is  calculated by dividing net income avai lable to stockholders  for the period by the di luted weighted-
average number of shares  outstanding during the period. Di luted earnings  per share reflects  the potentia l  di lution from common shares  issuable through stock
options, performance-based restricted stock units  that have satis fied their performance factor, restricted shares , and restricted stock units  us ing the treasury
stock method.

Contingencies

In the ordinary course of bus iness , the Company is  involved in legal  proceedings  regarding contractual  and employment relationships  and a variety of
other matters . The Company records  contingent l iabi l i ties  resulting from cla ims against i t, when a loss  i s  assessed to be probable and the amount of the loss  i s
reasonably estimable.

Use of estimates

The preparation of financial  s tatements  in conformity with GAAP in the United States  requires  management to make estimates  and assumptions  that affect
the reported amounts  of assets  and l iabi l i ties  and the disclosure of contingent assets  and l iabi l i ties  at the date of the financial  s tatements  as  wel l  as  the
reported amounts  of net revenue and expenses  during the reporting period. Actual  results  could di ffer from those estimates.

Recently adopted accounting pronouncements

The Company cons iders  the appl icabi l i ty and impact of a l l  Accounting Standard Updates  ("ASUs"). ASUs adopted during 2023 not l i s ted below were
assessed, and determined to be ei ther not appl icable or are expected to have minimal  impact on i ts  consol idated financial  pos ition or results  of operations.

In September 2022, the FASB issued ASU 2022-04, Liabi l i ties  - Suppl ier Finance Programs (Subtopic 405-50): Disclosure of Suppl ier Finance Program
Obl igations, to require annual  and interim disclosures  about the key terms of suppl ier finance programs used in connection with the purchase of goods and
services  a long with information about the obl igations  under these programs, including the amount outstanding at the end of each reporting period and a rol l -
forward of those obl igations. The Company adopted this  update during the fi rst quarter of 2023 and the related disclosures  are included in Note 13. Supply
Chain Financing Program.
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Recently issued accounting pronouncements

ASUs recently i ssued not l i s ted below were assessed and determined to be ei ther not appl icable or are expected to have minimal  impact on the Company's
consol idated financial  pos ition or results  of operations.

In November 2023, the FASB issued ASU 2023-07, Segment Reporting (Topic 280): Improvements  to Reportable Segment Disclosures. Enti ties  wi l l  be required
to provide disclosures  of s igni ficant segmented expenses  and other categories  used by the Chief Operating Decis ion Maker ("CODM") in order to enhance
disclosure at the segment level . This  amendment is  effective for annual  periods  beginning after December 15, 2023, and interim periods  beginning after
December 15, 2024, and is  appl ied retrospectively for periods  presented in the financial  s tatements . The Company is  currently evaluating the impact that this
new guidance may have on i ts  financial  s tatement disclosures.

In December 2023, the FASB issued ASU 2023-09, Income Taxes  (Topic 740): Improvements  to Income Tax Disclosures. This  disclosure requires  expanded
disclosure within the rate reconci l iation as  wel l  as  disaggregation of annual  taxes  paid. This  amendment is  effective for annual  periods  beginning after
December 15, 2023, and is  appl ied prospectively. The Company is  currently evaluating the impact that this  new guidance may have on i ts  financial  s tatement
disclosures.

Note 3. Inventories

January 28, 2024 January 29, 2023
(In thousands)

Inve ntori e s , a t cos t $ 1,465,076 $ 1,571,981 
Provi s i on to re duce  i nve ntori e s  to ne t re a l i za bl e  va l ue :

l ul ul e mon Studi o Mi rror provi s i on (62,956) (65,328)
Obs ol e s ce nce  provi s i on (42,903) (18,903)
Da ma ge s  provi s i on (33,836) (38,996)
Shri nk provi s i on (1,779) (1,387)

(141,474) (124,614)
Inve ntori e s $ 1,323,602 $ 1,447,367 

Please refer to Note 8. Impairment of Goodwi l l  and Other Assets , Restructuring Costs  for further detai ls  on the lululemon Studio obsolescence provis ion.

Note 4. Prepaid Expenses and Other Current Assets

January 28, 2024 January 29, 2023
(In thousands)

Pre pa i d e xpe ns e s 137,203 142,003 
Forwa rd curre ncy contra ct a s s e ts 647 16,707 
Othe r curre nt a s s e ts 46,652 79,962 
Pre pa i d e xpe ns e s  a nd othe r curre nt a s s e ts $ 184,502 $ 238,672 
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Note 5. Property and Equipment

January 28, 2024 January 29, 2023
(In thousands)

La nd $ 79,498 $ 80,692 
Bui l di ngs 29,032 28,850 
Le a s e hol d i mprove me nts 1,006,926 818,071 
Furni ture  a nd fi xture s 156,656 144,572 
Compute r ha rdwa re 176,597 166,768 
Compute r s oftwa re 1,032,567 742,295 
Equi pme nt a nd ve hi cl e s 34,017 30,766 
Work i n progre s s 247,943 244,898 
Prope rty a nd e qui pme nt, gros s 2,763,236 2,256,912 
Accumul a te d de pre ci a ti on (1,217,425) (987,298)
Prope rty a nd e qui pme nt, ne t $ 1,545,811 $ 1,269,614 

Depreciation expense related to property and equipment was  $374.0 mi l l ion, $282.7 mi l l ion, and $215.3 mi l l ion for 2023, 2022, and 2021, respectively.

Gain on Disposal of Assets

During the second quarter of 2022, the Company completed the sale of an administrative office bui lding, which resulted in a  pre-tax gain of $10.2 mi l l ion.
The income tax effect of the gain on disposal  of assets  was  an expense of $1.7 mi l l ion.

Note 6. Goodwill

The changes  in the carrying amounts  of goodwi l l  were as  fol lows:

Goodwill
(In thousands)

Ba l a nce  a s  of Ja nua ry 30, 2022 $ 386,880 
Impa i rme nt of goodwi l l (362,492)
Effe ct of fore i gn curre ncy tra ns l a ti on (244)

Ba l a nce  a s  of Ja nua ry 29, 2023 $ 24,144 
Effe ct of fore i gn curre ncy tra ns l a ti on (61)

Ba l a nce  a s  of Ja nua ry 28, 2024 $ 24,083 

The Company recognized an impairment charge of $362.5 mi l l ion related to the lululemon Studio reporting unit as  of January 29, 2023 on the goodwi l l
that arose from the acquis i tion of MIRROR. Please refer to Note 8. Impairment of Goodwi l l  and Other Assets , Restructuring Costs  for further information.
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Note 7. Intangible Assets
A summary of the balances  of the Company's  intangible assets  as  of January 28, 2024, January 29, 2023, i s  presented below: 

January 28, 2024
Gross Carrying

Amount
Accumulated
Amortization

Accumulated
Impairment Net Carrying Amount

(In thousands)

MIRROR bra nd $ 26,500 $ (4,089) $ (22,411) $ — 
Cus tome r re l a ti ons hi ps 28,000 (7,492) (20,508) — 
Te chnol ogy 25,500 (12,632) (12,868) — 
Conte nt 5,000 (3,250) (1,750) — 
Othe r 270 (270) — — 
Inta ngi bl e  a s s e ts $ 85,270 $ (27,733) $ (57,537) $ — 

January 29, 2023
Gross Carrying

Amount
Accumulated
Amortization Impairment

Net Carrying
Amount

Remaining Useful Life
(Years)

(In thousands, except in years)

MIRROR bra nd $ 26,500 $ (3,423) $ (20,077) $ 3,000 3.0
Cus tome r re l a ti ons hi ps 28,000 (7,492) (20,508) — n/a
Te chnol ogy 25,500 (8,956) — 16,544 3.0
Conte nt 5,000 (2,583) — 2,417 2.4
Othe r 270 (270) — — n/a
Inta ngi bl e  a s s e ts $ 85,270 $ (22,724) $ (40,585) $ 21,961 2.9

Amortization of intangible assets  was  $5.0 mi l l ion, $8.8 mi l l ion, and $8.8 mi l l ion in 2023, 2022, and 2021, respectively.

During 2022 and 2023, the Company recognized intangible asset impairment charges  of $40.6 mi l l ion and $17.0 mi l l ion, respectively. These impairment
charges  related to the intangible assets  that were recognized on the acquis i tion of MIRROR. Please refer to Note 8. Impairment of Goodwi l l  and Other Assets ,
Restructuring Costs  for further information.

Note 8. Impairment of Goodwill and Other Assets, Restructuring Costs

During 2022, the Company decided to shi ft i ts  lululemon Studio strategy to focus  on providing digi ta l  app-based services . The Company continued to sel l
the lululemon Studio Mirror hardware in 2023, and reached the decis ion to cease sel l ing i t during the third quarter of 2023. It a lso contracted with Peloton
Interactive, Inc. to be the exclus ive digi ta l  fi tness  content provider to existing lululemon Studio subscribers , and stopped producing i ts  own digi ta l  fi tness
content. The Company ceased sel l ing the lululemon Studio Mirror and new digi ta l  content subscriptions  in December 2023.
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These strategy shi fts  resulted in impairment testing and the recognition of goodwi l l  impairment, inventory provis ions, asset impairments , and
restructuring costs  related to the lululemon Studio reporting unit. The fol lowing table summarizes  the amounts  recognized:

2023 2022
(In thousands)

Cos ts  re corde d i n cos t of goods  s ol d:
l ul ul e mon Studi o obs ol e s ce nce  provi s i on $ 23,709 $ 62,928 

Cos ts  re corde d i n ope ra ti ng e xpe ns e s :
Impa i rme nt of a s s e ts :

Impa i rme nt of goodwi l l $ — $ 362,492 
Impa i rme nt of i nta ngi bl e  a s s e ts 16,951 40,585 
Impa i rme nt of cl oud computi ng a rra nge me nt i mpl e me nta ti on cos ts 16,074 — 
Impa i rme nt of prope rty a nd e qui pme nt 11,161 4,836 

$ 44,186 $ 407,913 
Re s tructuri ng cos ts 30,315 — 
Impa i rme nt of goodwi l l  a nd othe r a s s e ts , re s tructuri ng cos ts $ 74,501 $ 407,913 

Tota l  pre -ta x cha rge s $ 98,210 $ 470,841 

Income  ta x e ffe cts  of cha rge s $ (26,085) $ (28,171)
Tota l  a fte r-ta x cha rge s $ 72,125 $ 442,670 

lululemon Studio obsolescence provision

During 2022, the change in strategy related to lululemon Studio to focus  on digi ta l  app-based services  meant the Company no longer expected to be able to
sel l  a l l  of the lululemon Studio hardware inventory above cost and i t recognized an obsolescence provis ion of $62.9 mi l l ion. The net real izable value was
determined based on hardware sales  forecasts  and assumptions  regarding l iquidation value.

As  a  result of the decis ion to cease sel l ing the lululemon Studio Mirror in the third quarter of 2023, the Company recognized a further inventory
obsolescence provis ion of $23.7 mi l l ion during 2023. The net real izable value of the lululemon Studio inventory was  based on assumptions  regarding
l iquidation value.

Impairment of goodwill and other assets

As a result of the strategy shi ft during 2022, i t was  concluded that the Company should conduct an impairment test for the goodwi l l , intangible assets , and
property and equipment related to lululemon Studio as  of January 29, 2023. The Company used a discounted cash flow model  to estimate the fa ir value of the
lululemon Studio reporting unit based on the updated strategic plans, supplemented by market comparable analys is , which indicated the fa ir value of
lululemon Studio was lower than i ts  carrying value, and led to a  recognition of an impairment of goodwi l l  of $362.5 mi l l ion. The key assumptions  used to
estimate the fa ir value of the lululemon Studio reporting unit were the revenue growth rates , operating profi t margins , and the discount rate. The fa ir value of the
lululemon Studio reporting unit was  a  Level  3 fa i r value measurement.

As  of January 29, 2023, the undiscounted cash flows of the lululemon Studio asset group to which the intangible assets  belonged were less  than their
carrying value, and therefore the Company calculated the fa ir value of the asset group, which was a lso less  than i ts  carrying value. This  resulted in impairment
of intangible assets  of $40.6 mi l l ion relating to the MIRROR brand, which was associated with in-home hardware, and to the customer relationship intangible
assets  that were recognized as  part of the acquis i tion.

During 2023, as  a  result of the Company's  decis ion to no longer produce digi ta l  fi tness  content and to cease the sale of the lululemon Studio Mirror, the
Company performed impairment testing for the lululemon Studio asset group as  of October 29, 2023. The undiscounted cash flows of the lululemon Studio asset
group were less  than their carrying value, and therefore the Company calculated the fa ir value of the asset group, which was a lso less  than i ts  carrying value.
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As a result of the impairment test, the Company recognized asset impairments  total ing $44.2 mi l l ion during 2023. The fa ir value of long-l ived assets  was
based on a discounted cash flow model , and is  a  Level  3 non-recurring fa ir value measurement. The key assumptions  used to estimate the fa ir value were
subscriber churn rates  and operating costs .

Restructuring costs

During 2023, the Company recognized restructuring costs  of $30.3 mi l l ion for lululemon Studio primari ly related to contract termination costs , employee
severance costs , and profess ional  fees .

Note 9. Acquisition-Related Expenses

In connection with the acquis i tion of MIRROR in fiscal  2020, the Company recognized certain expenses  which were included within acquis i tion-related
expenses  in the consol idated statements  of operations. These amounts  included acquis i tion-related compensation, transaction and integration costs , and a
gain on the Company's  existing investment in MIRROR. During 2021, $41.4 mi l l ion was recognized. There were no acquis i tion-related expenses  recognized in
2023 or 2022.

Note 10. Other Non-Current Assets

January 28, 2024 January 29, 2023
(In thousands)

Cl oud computi ng a rra nge me nt i mpl e me nta ti on cos ts $ 133,597 $ 114,700 
Se curi ty de pos i ts 31,825 28,447 
Othe r 21,262 12,898 
Othe r non-curre nt a s s e ts $ 186,684 $ 156,045 

As of January 28, 2024 and January 29, 2023, cloud computing arrangement implementation costs  cons isted of deferred costs  of $289.3 mi l l ion and
$212.4 mi l l ion, respectively, and associated accumulated amortization of $155.7 mi l l ion and $97.7 mi l l ion, respectively.

Note 11. Accrued Liabilities and Other

January 28, 2024 January 29, 2023
(In thousands)

Accrue d ope ra ti ng e xpe ns e s $ 147,215 $ 169,429 
Sa l e s  re turn a l l owa nce s 61,634 55,528 
Accrue d fre i ght 41,241 57,692 
Accrue d ca pi ta l  e xpe ndi ture s 31,936 19,365 
Accrue d duty 25,817 21,046 
Accrue d re nt 12,522 12,223 
Accrue d i nve ntory l i a bi l i ti e s 4,783 4,345 
Sa l e s  ta x col l e cte d 3,088 20,183 
Forwa rd curre ncy contra ct l i a bi l i ti e s 2,872 25,625 
Othe r 17,447 13,787 
Accrue d l i a bi l i ti e s  a nd othe r $ 348,555 $ 399,223 

Note 12. Revolving Credit Facilities

Americas revolving credit facility

On December 14, 2021, the Company entered into an amended and restated credit agreement extending i ts  existing credit faci l i ty, which provides  for
$400.0 mi l l ion in commitments  under an unsecured five-year revolving credit faci l i ty. The credit faci l i ty has  a  maturi ty date of December 14, 2026, subject to
extens ion under certain ci rcumstances. Borrowings  under the credit faci l i ty may be prepaid and commitments  may be reduced or terminated without premium
or penalty (other than customary breakage costs).
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As of January 28, 2024, as ide from letters  of credit of $6.3 mi l l ion, the Company had no other borrowings  outstanding under this  credit faci l i ty.

Borrowings  made under the credit faci l i ty bear interest at a  rate per annum equal  to, at the Company's  option, ei ther (a) a  rate based on the Secured
Overnight Financing Rate as  administered by the Federal  Reserve Bank of New York ("SOFR"), or (b) an al ternate base rate, plus , in each case, an appl icable
margin. The appl icable margin is  determined by reference to a  pricing grid, based on the ratio of indebtedness  to earnings  before interest, tax, depreciation,
amortization, and rent ("EBITDAR") and ranges  between 1.000%-1.375% for SOFR loans  and 0.000%-0.375% for a l ternate base rate or Canadian prime rate loans.
Additional ly, a  commitment fee of between 0.100%-0.200%, a lso determined by reference to the pricing grid, i s  payable on the average dai ly unused amounts
under the credit faci l i ty.

The appl icable interest rates  and commitment fees  are subject to adjustment based on certain sustainabi l i ty key performance indicators  ("KPIs"). The two
KPIs  are based on greenhouse gas  emiss ions  intens ity reduction and gender pay equity, and the Company's  performance against certain targets  measured on an
annual  bas is  could result in pos itive or negative sustainabi l i ty rate adjustments  of 2.50 bas is  points  to i ts  drawn pricing and pos itive or negative sustainabi l i ty
fee adjustments  of 0.50 bas is  points  to i ts  undrawn pricing.

The credit agreement contains  negative covenants  that, among other things  and subject to certain exceptions, l imit the abi l i ty of the Company's
subs idiaries  to incur indebtedness , incur l iens , undergo fundamental  changes, make dispos itions  of a l l  or substantia l ly a l l  of their assets , a l ter their
bus inesses  and enter into agreements  l imiting subs idiary dividends and distributions.

The Company's  financial  covenants  include maintaining an operating lease adjusted leverage ratio of not greater than 3.25:1.00 and the ratio of
consol idated EBITDAR to consol idated interest charges  (plus  rent) of not less  than 2.00:1.00. The credit agreement a lso contains  certain customary
representations, warranties , affi rmative covenants , and events  of default (including, among others , an event of default upon the occurrence of a  change of
control ). If an event of default occurs , the credit agreement may be terminated, and the maturi ty of any outstanding amounts  may be accelerated. As  of
January 28, 2024, the Company was in compl iance with the covenants  of the credit faci l i ty.

China Mainland revolving credit facility

In December 2019, the Company entered into an uncommitted and unsecured 130.0 mi l l ion Chinese Yuan ($18.1 mi l l ion) revolving credit faci l i ty with
terms that are reviewed on an annual  bas is . The credit faci l i ty was  increased to 230.0 mi l l ion Chinese Yuan ($32.0 mi l l ion) during 2020 and increased to 240.0
mi l l ion Chinese Yuan ($33.4 mi l l ion) during 2023. It i s  comprised of a  revolving loan of up to 200.0 mi l l ion Chinese Yuan ($27.9 mi l l ion) and a financial
guarantee faci l i ty of up to 40.0 mi l l ion Chinese Yuan ($5.6 mi l l ion), or i ts  equivalent in another currency. Loans  are avai lable for a  period not to exceed 12
months, at an interest rate equal  to the loan prime rate plus  a  spread of 0.5175%. The Company is  required to fol low certain covenants . As  of January 28, 2024,
the Company was in compl iance with the covenants  and, as ide from letters  of credit of 32.5 mi l l ion Chinese Yuan ($4.5 mi l l ion), there were no other borrowings
or guarantees  outstanding under this  credit faci l i ty.

Note 13. Supply Chain Financing Program

The Company faci l i tates  a  voluntary supply chain financing ("SCF") program that a l lows i ts  suppl iers  to elect to sel l  the receivables  owed to them by the
Company to a  third party financial  insti tution. Participating suppl iers  negotiate arrangements  directly with the financial  insti tution. If a  suppl ier chooses  to
participate in the SCF program i t may request an invoice be paid earl ier than i t would by the Company, and the financial  insti tution at i ts  sole and absolute
discretion, may elect to make an early payment to the suppl ier at a  discount. The Company's  obl igations  to i ts  suppl iers , including amounts  due and scheduled
payment terms, are not impacted by a  suppl ier's  participation in the arrangement and the Company provides  no guarantees  to any third parties  under the SCF
program.
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A rol l -forward of the amounts  outstanding under the SCF program, which are presented within accounts  payable, i s  presented below:

2023
(In thousands)

Suppl y cha i n fi na nci ng progra m ba l a nce , be gi nni ng of ye a r $ 17,578 
Amounts  a dde d duri ng the  ye a r $ 533,640 
Amounts  s e ttl e d duri ng the  ye a r $ (509,079)

Suppl y cha i n fi na nci ng progra m ba l a nce , e nd of ye a r $ 42,139 

Note 14. Stockholders' Equity

Special voting stock and exchangeable shares

The holders  of the special  voting stock are enti tled to one vote for each share held. The special  voting shares  are not enti tled to receive dividends or
distributions  or receive any cons ideration in the event of a  l iquidation, dissolution, or wind-up. To the extent that exchangeable shares  as  described below are
exchanged for common stock, a  corresponding number of specia l  voting shares  wi l l  be cancel led without cons ideration.

The holders  of the exchangeable shares  have dividend and l iquidation rights  equivalent to those of holders  of the common shares  of the Company. The
exchangeable shares  can be converted on a one for one bas is  by the holder at any time into common shares  of the Company plus  a  cash payment for any
accrued and unpaid dividends. Holders  of exchangeable shares  are enti tled to the same or economical ly equivalent dividend as  declared on the common stock
of the Company. The exchangeable shares  are non-voting. The Company has  the right to convert the exchangeable shares  into common shares  of the Company at
any time after the earl iest of July 26, 2047, the date on which fewer than 4.2 mi l l ion exchangeable shares  are outstanding, or in the event of certain events  such
as  a  change in control .

Note 15. Stock-Based Compensation and Benefit Plans

Stock-based compensation plans

The Company's  el igible employees  participate in various  stock-based compensation plans, provided directly by the Company.

In June 2023, the Company's  stockholders  approved the adoption of the lululemon athletica inc. 2023 Equity Incentive Plan. The 2023 Equity Incentive
Plan provides  for awards  in the form of stock options, s tock appreciation rights , restricted stock purchase rights , restricted stock bonuses, restricted stock
units , performance shares , performance-based restricted stock units , cash-based awards, other stock-based awards, and deferred compensation awards  to
employees  (including officers  and directors  who are a lso employees), consultants , and directors  of the Company.

The awards  granted under the 2014 Equity Incentive Plan remain outstanding and continue to vest under their original  conditions. No further awards  wi l l
be granted under the 2014 Equity Incentive Plan.

The Company has  granted stock options, performance-based restricted stock units , restricted stock units , and restricted shares. Stock options  granted to
date general ly have a four-year vesting period and vest at a  rate of 25% each year on the anniversary date of the grant. Stock options  general ly expire on the
earl ier of seven years  from the date of grant, or a  speci fied period of time fol lowing termination. Performance-based restricted stock units  i ssued general ly vest
three years  from the grant date and restricted shares  general ly vest one year from the grant date. Restricted stock units  granted general ly have a three-year
vesting period and vest at a  certain percentage each year on the anniversary date of the grant.

The Company issues  previous ly unissued shares  upon the exercise of Company options, vesting of performance-based restricted stock units  or restricted
stock units  that are settled in common stock, and granting of restricted shares.

Stock-based compensation expense charged to income for the plans  was  $92.7 mi l l ion, $77.2 mi l l ion, and $66.4 mi l l ion for 2023, 2022, and 2021,
respectively.

Total  unrecognized compensation cost for a l l  s tock-based compensation plans  was  $135.9 mi l l ion as  of January 28, 2024, which is  expected to be
recognized over a  weighted-average period of 2.0 years , and was $118.0 mi l l ion as  of January 29, 2023 over a  weighted-average period of 2.1 years .
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A summary of the balances  of the Company's  stock-based compensation plans  as  of January 28, 2024, January 29, 2023, and January 30, 2022, and
changes  during the fiscal  years  then ended is  presented below: 

Stock Options
Performance-Based

Restricted Stock Units Restricted Shares Restricted Stock Units
Restricted Stock Units 
(Liability Accounting)

Number

Weighted-
Average
Exercise

Price Number

Weighted-
Average

Grant Date
Fair Value Number

Weighted-
Average

Grant Date
Fair Value Number

Weighted-
Average

Grant Date
Fair Value Number

Weighted-
Average Fair

Value
(In thousands, except per share amounts)

Ba l a nce  a s  of Ja nua ry 31, 2021 804 $ 139.27 199 $ 149.20 4 $ 299.09 275 $ 166.50 15 $ 328.68 
Gra nte d 194 310.29 139 185.37 4 326.70 129 331.42 — — 
Exe rci s e d/ve s te d 174 104.85 165 100.89 4 299.09 144 139.33 15 397.83 
Forfe i te d/e xpi re d 35 199.76 6 216.62 — — 22 235.23 — — 
Ba l a nce  a s  of Ja nua ry 30, 2022 789 $ 186.10 167 $ 225.27 4 $ 326.70 238 $ 265.90 — $ — 
Gra nte d 192 371.04 117 274.90 5 308.66 120 364.51 — — 
Exe rci s e d/ve s te d 93 127.68 114 170.04 4 326.70 111 241.02 — — 
Forfe i te d/e xpi re d 22 286.56 4 307.76 — — 26 334.39 — — 
Ba l a nce  a s  of Ja nua ry 29, 2023 866 $ 230.78 166 $ 295.93 5 $ 308.66 221 $ 323.89 — $ — 
Gra nte d 213 360.00 121 296.27 4 370.59 132 364.63 — — 
Exe rci s e d/ve s te d 264 160.45 104 201.56 5 308.66 106 294.65 — — 
Forfe i te d/e xpi re d 32 332.26 8 351.14 — 368.36 24 350.38 — — 
Ba l a nce  a s  of Ja nua ry 28, 2024 783 $ 285.69 175 $ 349.84 4 $ 370.85 223 $ 359.12 — $ — 

A total  of 4.0 mi l l ion shares  of the Company's  common stock have been authorized for future issuance under the Company's  2023 Equity Incentive Plan.

The Company's  performance-based restricted stock units  are awarded to el igible employees  and enti tle the grantee to receive a  maximum of two shares  of
common stock per performance-based restricted stock unit i f the Company achieves  speci fied performance goals  and the grantee remains  employed during the
vesting period. The fa ir value of performance-based restricted stock units  i s  based on the clos ing price of the Company's  common stock on the grant date.
Expense for performance-based restricted stock units  i s  recognized when i t i s  probable that the performance goal  wi l l  be achieved.

The grant date fa ir value of the restricted shares  and restricted stock units  i s  based on the clos ing price of the Company's  common stock on the grant date.
Restricted stock units  that were settled in cash or common stock at the election of the employee were remeasured to fa ir value at the end of each reporting
period unti l  settlement. This  fa i r value was based on the clos ing price of the Company's  common stock on the last bus iness  day before each period end.

The grant date fa ir value of each stock option granted is  estimated on the date of grant us ing the Black-Scholes  model . The clos ing price of the Company's
common stock on the grant date is  used in the model . The assumptions  used to calculate the fa ir value of the options  granted are evaluated and revised, as
necessary, to reflect market conditions  and the Company's  historical  experience. The expected term of the options  is  based upon the historical  experience of
s imi lar awards, giving cons ideration to expectations  of future employee exercise behavior. Expected volati l i ty i s  based upon the historical  volati l i ty of the
Company's  common stock for the period corresponding with the expected term of the options. The risk-free interest rate is  based on the U.S. Treasury yield curve
for the period corresponding with the expected term of the options. The fol lowing are weighted averages  of the assumptions  that were used in calculating the
fair value of stock options  granted in 2023, 2022, and 2021:

 2023 2022 2021
Expe cte d te rm 3.75 ye a rs 3.75 ye a rs 3.75 ye a rs
Expe cte d vol a ti l i ty 42.35 % 40.00 % 39.32 %
Ri s k-fre e  i nte re s t ra te 3.49 % 2.51 % 0.50 %
Di vi de nd yi e l d — % — % — %
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The fol lowing table summarizes  information about stock options  outstanding and exercisable as  of January 28, 2024:

 Outstanding Exercisable

Range of Exercise Prices Number of Options
Weighted-Average

Exercise Price
Weighted-Average

Remaining Life (Years) Number of Options
Weighted-Average

Exercise Price
Weighted-Average

Remaining Life (Years)
(In thousands, except per share amounts and years)

$2.78-$174.52 151 $ 146.29 1.8 151 $ 146.29 1.8
$188.84-$296.36 121 189.43 3.1 79 189.43 3.1
$306.71-$356.93 157 309.16 4.3 63 309.07 4.2
$358.09-$358.09 192 358.09 6.1 1 358.09 6.2
$368.36-$502.74 162 378.96 5.2 33 378.71 5.0

783 $ 285.69 4.3 327 $ 212.01 2.9
Intri ns i c va l ue $ 150,645 $ 86,874 

As of January 28, 2024, the unrecognized compensation cost related to these options  was  $35.8 mi l l ion, which is  expected to be recognized over a
weighted-average period of 2.6 years . The weighted-average grant date fa ir value of options  granted during 2023, 2022, and 2021 was $130.75, $124.17, and
$94.09, respectively.

The fol lowing table summarizes  the intrins ic value of options  exercised and awards  that vested during 2023, 2022, and 2021:

2023 2022 2021
(In thousands)

Stock opti ons $ 69,316 $ 19,906 $ 46,761 
Pe rforma nce -ba s e d re s tri cte d s tock uni ts 33,198 37,672 52,495 
Re s tri cte d s ha re s 1,661 1,152 1,364 
Re s tri cte d s tock uni ts 38,016 37,275 47,042 
Re s tri cte d s tock uni ts  (l i a bi l i ty a ccounti ng) — — 5,938 

$ 142,191 $ 96,005 $ 153,600 

Employee share purchase plan

The Company's  board of directors  and stockholders  approved the Company's  Employee Share Purchase Plan ("ESPP") in September 2007. Contributions  are
made by el igible employees, subject to certain l imits  defined in the ESPP, and the Company matches  one-third of the contribution. The maximum number of
shares  authorized to be purchased under the ESPP is  6.0 mi l l ion shares. Al l  shares  purchased under the ESPP are purchased in the open market. During each of
2023, 2022, and 2021, there were 0.1 mi l l ion shares  purchased. As  of January 28, 2024, 4.4 mi l l ion shares  remain authorized to be purchased under the ESPP.

Defined contribution pension plans

The Company offers  defined contribution pension plans  to i ts  el igible employees. Participating employees  may elect to defer and contribute a  portion of
their el igible compensation to a  plan up to l imits  stated in the plan documents , not to exceed the dol lar amounts  set by appl icable laws. The Company matches
50% to 75% of the contribution depending on the participant's  length of service, and the contribution is  subject to a  two-year vesting period. The Company's  net
expense for the defined contribution plans  was  $19.8 mi l l ion, $14.0 mi l l ion, and $11.8 mi l l ion during 2023, 2022, and 2021, respectively.
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Note 16. Fair Value Measurement

Assets and liabilities measured at fair value on a recurring basis

As of January 28, 2024 and January 29, 2023, the Company held certain assets  and l iabi l i ties  that are required to be measured at fa i r value on a recurring
bas is :

January 28, 2024 Level 1 Level 2 Level 3 Balance Sheet Classification
(In thousands)

Mone y ma rke t funds $ 1,102,119 $ 1,102,119 $ — $ — Ca s h a nd ca s h e qui va l e nts
Te rm de pos i ts 8 — 8 — Ca s h a nd ca s h e qui va l e nts

Forwa rd curre ncy contra ct a s s e ts 647 — 647 — 
Pre pa i d e xpe ns e s  a nd othe r curre nt
a s s e ts

Forwa rd curre ncy contra ct l i a bi l i ti e s 2,872 — 2,872 — Othe r curre nt l i a bi l i ti e s

January 29, 2023 Level 1 Level 2 Level 3 Balance Sheet Classification
(In thousands)

Mone y ma rke t funds $ 568,000 $ 568,000 $ — $ — Ca s h a nd ca s h e qui va l e nts
Te rm de pos i ts 8 — 8 — Ca s h a nd ca s h e qui va l e nts

Forwa rd curre ncy contra ct a s s e ts 16,707 — 16,707 — 
Pre pa i d e xpe ns e s  a nd othe r curre nt
a s s e ts

Forwa rd curre ncy contra ct l i a bi l i ti e s 25,625 — 25,625 — Othe r curre nt l i a bi l i ti e s

The Company has  short-term, highly l iquid investments  class i fied as  cash equivalents , which are invested in money market funds  and short-term deposits
with original  maturi ties  of three months  or less . The Company records  cash equivalents  at their original  purchase prices  plus  interest that has  accrued at the
stated rate.

The fa ir values  of the forward currency contract assets  and l iabi l i ties  are determined us ing observable Level  2 inputs , including foreign currency spot
exchange rates , forward pricing curves, and interest rates . The fa ir values  cons ider the credit risk of the Company and i ts  counterparties . The Company's  Master
International  Swap Dealers  Association, Inc., Agreements  and other s imi lar arrangements  a l low net settlements  under certain conditions. However, the Company
records  a l l  derivatives  on i ts  consol idated balance sheets  at fa i r value and does  not offset derivative assets  and l iabi l i ties .

Assets and liabilities measured at fair value on a non-recurring basis

The Company has  a lso recorded lease termination l iabi l i ties  at fa i r value on a non-recurring bas is , determined us ing Level  3 inputs  based on remaining
lease rentals  and reduced by estimated sublease income.

During 2023 and 2022, the Company recorded impairment charges  for goodwi l l , intangible assets , cloud computing arrangement implementation costs ,
and property and equipment, as  disclosed in Note 8. Impairment of Goodwi l l  and Other Assets , Restructuring Costs . That note includes  detai ls  on the discounted
cash flow model  used to estimate fa ir value, which is  a  Level  3 valuation technique.

Note 17. Derivative Financial Instruments

The Company currently hedges  against changes  in the Canadian dol lar and Chinese Yuan to the U.S. dol lar exchange rate and changes  in the Euro and
Austral ian dol lar to the Canadian dol lar exchange rate us ing forward currency contracts .

Net investment hedges

The Company is  exposed to foreign currency exchange gains  and losses  which arise on trans lation of i ts  international  subs idiaries ' balance sheets  into
U.S. dol lars . These gains  and losses  are recorded as  other comprehensive income (loss), net of tax in accumulated other comprehensive income or loss  within
stockholders ' equity.

The Company holds  a  s igni ficant portion of i ts  assets  in Canada and enters  into forward currency contracts  des igned to hedge a portion of the foreign
currency exposure that arises  on trans lation of a  Canadian subs idiary into U.S. dol lars . These
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forward currency contracts  are des ignated as  net investment hedges. The Company assesses  hedge effectiveness  based on changes  in forward rates . The
Company recorded no ineffectiveness  from net investment hedges  during 2023.

Derivatives not designated as hedging instruments

During 2023, the Company entered into certain forward currency contracts  des igned to economical ly hedge the foreign currency exchange revaluation
gains  and losses  that are recognized by i ts  Canadian and Chinese subs idiaries  on speci fic monetary assets  and l iabi l i ties  denominated in currencies  other than
the functional  currency of the enti ty. The Company has  not appl ied hedge accounting to these instruments  and the change in fa i r value of these derivatives  is
recorded within sel l ing, general  and administrative expenses.

Quantitative disclosures about derivative financial instruments

The notional  amounts  and fa ir values  of forward currency contracts  were as  fol lows:

January 28, 2024 January 29, 2023
Gross Notional Assets Liabilities Gross Notional Assets Liabilities

(In thousands)

De ri va ti ve s  de s i gna te d a s  ne t i nve s tme nt
he dge s :
Forwa rd curre ncy contra cts $ 1,242,000 $ — $ 258 $ 1,070,000 $ — $ 17,211 
De ri va ti ve s  not de s i gna te d i n a  he dgi ng
re l a ti ons hi p:
Forwa rd curre ncy contra cts 1,543,351 647 2,614 1,605,284 16,707 8,414 
Ne t de ri va ti ve s  re cogni ze d on cons ol i da te d
ba l a nce  s he e ts :
Forwa rd curre ncy contra cts $ 647 $ 2,872 $ 16,707 $ 25,625 

As of January 28, 2024, there were derivative assets  of $0.6 mi l l ion and derivative l iabi l i ties  of $2.9 mi l l ion subject to enforceable netting arrangements .

The forward currency contracts  des ignated as  net investment hedges  outstanding as  of January 28, 2024 mature on di fferent dates  between February 2024
and September 2024.

The forward currency contracts  not des ignated in a  hedging relationship outstanding as  of January 28, 2024 mature on di fferent dates  between February
2024 and October 2024.

The pre-tax gains  and losses  on foreign currency exchange forward contracts  recorded in accumulated other comprehensive income or loss  were as
fol lows:

 2023 2022 2021
(In thousands)

Ga i ns  (l os s e s ) re cogni ze d i n ne t i nve s tme nt he dge  ga i ns  (l os s e s ):
De ri va ti ve s  de s i gna te d a s  ne t i nve s tme nt he dge s $ 15,344 $ 12,125 $ 13,177 

No gains  or losses  have been reclass i fied from accumulated other comprehensive income or loss  into net income for derivative financial  instruments  in a
net investment hedging relationship, as  the Company has  not sold or l iquidated (or substantia l ly l iquidated) i ts  hedged subs idiary.

The pre-tax net foreign currency exchange and derivative gains  and losses  recorded in the consol idated statement of operations  were as  fol lows:
 2023 2022 2021

(In thousands)
Ga i ns  (l os s e s ) re cogni ze d i n s e l l i ng, ge ne ra l  a nd a dmi ni s tra ti ve  e xpe ns e s :

Fore i gn e xcha nge  ga i ns  (l os s e s ) $ (23,232) $ 4,410 $ 11,511 
De ri va ti ve s  not de s i gna te d i n a  he dgi ng re l a ti ons hi p 22,765 (11,945) (19,874)

Ne t fore i gn e xcha nge  a nd de ri va ti ve  l os s e s $ (467) $ (7,535) $ (8,363)
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Note 18. Leases
The Company has  obl igations  under operating leases  for i ts  store and other retai l  locations, distribution centers , offices , and equipment. As  of January 28,

2024, the ini tia l  lease terms of the various  leases  general ly range from two to 15 years . The majori ty of the Company's  leases  include renewal  options  at the
sole discretion of the Company. The lease term includes  options  to extend or terminate the lease when i t i s  reasonably certain those options  wi l l  be exercised.

The fol lowing table detai ls  the Company's  net lease expense. Certain of the Company's  leases  include rent escalation clauses, rent hol idays , and leasehold
rental  incentives . The majori ty of the Company's  leases  for store premises  a lso include contingent rental  payments  based on sales  volume. The variable lease
expenses  disclosed below include contingent rent payments  and other non-fixed lease related costs , including common area maintenance, property taxes, and
landlord's  insurance.

2023 2022 2021
(In thousands)

Ne t l e a s e  e xpe ns e :
Ope ra ti ng l e a s e  e xpe ns e $ 282,888 $ 245,767 $ 215,549 
Short-te rm l e a s e  e xpe ns e 15,289 16,790 12,366 
Va ri a bl e  l e a s e  e xpe ns e 152,791 114,441 90,852 

$ 450,968 $ 376,998 $ 318,767 

The fol lowing table presents  future minimum lease payments  by fiscal  year and the impact of discounting.

January 28, 2024
(In thousands)

2024 $ 300,379 
2025 287,224 
2026 232,510 
2027 214,519 
2028 158,252 
The re a fte r 452,434 
Future  mi ni mum l e a s e  pa yme nts $ 1,645,318 
Impa ct of di s counti ng (242,036)
Pre s e nt va l ue  of l e a s e  l i a bi l i ti e s $ 1,403,282 

Ba l a nce  s he e t cl a s s i fi ca ti on:
Curre nt l e a s e  l i a bi l i ti e s $ 249,270 
Non-curre nt l e a s e  l i a bi l i ti e s 1,154,012 

$ 1,403,282 

As of January 28, 2024, the Company's  minimum lease commitment for distribution center operating leases  which have been committed to, but not yet
commenced, was  $299.6 mi l l ion, which is  not reflected in the table above.

The weighted-average remaining lease terms and weighted-average discount rates  were as  fol lows:

January 28, 2024 January 29, 2023
We i ghte d-a ve ra ge  re ma i ni ng l e a s e  te rm 6.95 ye a rs 5.64 ye a rs
We i ghte d-a ve ra ge  di s count ra te 4.0 % 3.1 %
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Note 19. Income Taxes

The Company's  domestic and foreign income before income tax expense and current and deferred income taxes  from federal , s tate, and foreign sources  are
as  fol lows: 

2023 2022 2021
(In thousands)

Income  (l os s ) be fore  i ncome  ta x e xpe ns e
Dome s ti c $ 458,041 $ (98,764) $ 204,350 
Fore i gn 1,717,694 1,431,335 1,129,519 

$ 2,175,735 $ 1,332,571 $ 1,333,869 
Curre nt i ncome  ta x e xpe ns e

Fe de ra l $ 140,726 $ 34,752 $ 25,701 
Sta te 42,476 33,369 17,608 
Fore i gn 469,090 400,250 322,105 

$ 652,292 $ 468,371 $ 365,414 
De fe rre d i ncome  ta x e xpe ns e  (re cove ry)

Fe de ra l $ (14,741) $ 8,932 $ 5,858 
Sta te (3,097) 2,363 1,045 
Fore i gn (8,909) (1,895) (13,770)

$ (26,747) $ 9,400 $ (6,867)
Income  ta x e xpe ns e $ 625,545 $ 477,771 $ 358,547 

The Company's  income tax expense for 2023, 2022, and 2021 include certain discrete tax amounts , as  fol lows:

2023 2022 2021
(In thousands)

Impa i rme nt of goodwi l l  a nd othe r a s s e ts , re s tructuri ng cos ts $ (26,085) $ (28,171) $ — 
Ga i n on di s pos a l  of a s s e ts — 1,661 — 
Acqui s i ti on-re l a te d e xpe ns e s — — (1,417)
Tota l  di s cre te  i ncome  ta x e xpe ns e  (re cove ry) $ (26,085) $ (26,510) $ (1,417)

Please refer to Note 5. Property and Equipment, Note 8. Impairment of Goodwi l l  and Other Assets , Restructuring Costs , and Note 9. Acquis i tion-Related
Expenses  for further information.

As  of January 28, 2024, the Company's  net investment in i ts  Canadian subs idiaries  was  $2.5 bi l l ion, of which $1.6 bi l l ion was determined to be
indefini tely reinvested. A deferred income tax l iabi l i ty of $41.2 mi l l ion has  been recognized in relation to the portion of the Company's  net investment in i ts
Canadian subs idiaries  that i s  not indefini tely reinvested, representing the Canadian withholding taxes  and U.S. s tate income taxes  which would be due upon
repatriation. This  deferred tax l iabi l i ty has  been recorded on the bas is  that the Company would choose to make the repatriation transactions  in the most tax
efficient manner. Speci fical ly, to the extent that the Canadian subs idiaries  have paid-up-capital , any such distributions  would be structured as  a  return of
capital , and therefore not subject to Canadian withholding tax. The unrecognized deferred tax l iabi l i ty on the indefini tely reinvested amount is  approximately
$89.7 mi l l ion. No deferred income tax l iabi l i ties  have been recognized on any of the undistributed earnings  of the Company's  other foreign subs idiaries  as  these
earnings  are permanently reinvested outs ide of the United States . Excluding i ts  Canadian subs idiaries , cumulative undistributed earnings  of the Company's
foreign subs idiaries  as  of January 28, 2024 were $466.5 mi l l ion.

As  of January 28, 2024, the Company had cash and cash equivalents  of $822.5 mi l l ion outs ide of the United States .
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A summary reconci l iation of the effective tax rate is  as  fol lows:

2023 2022 2021
(Percentage)

Fe de ra l  i ncome  ta x a t s ta tutory ra te 21.0 % 21.0 % 21.0 %
Fore i gn ta x ra te  di ffe re nti a l s 4.1 6.8 5.0 
U.S. s ta te  ta xe s 1.0 (0.4) 0.8 
Non-de ducti bl e  compe ns a ti on e xpe ns e 0.6 0.7 0.7 
Exce s s  ta x be ne fi ts  from s tock-ba s e d compe ns a ti on (0.4) (0.5) (0.9)
Ta x on unre mi tte d fore i gn e a rni ngs 2.6 1.4 — 
Impa i rme nt of goodwi l l  a nd othe r a s s e ts , ga i n on di s pos a l  of a s s e ts — 7.8 — 
Pe rma ne nt a nd othe r (0.1) (0.9) 0.3 
Effe cti ve  ta x ra te 28.8 % 35.9 % 26.9 %

The tax effects  of temporary di fferences  that give rise to s igni ficant portions  of the deferred income tax assets  and deferred income tax l iabi l i ties  as  of
January 28, 2024 and January 29, 2023 are presented below: 

January 28, 2024 January 29, 2023
(In thousands)

De fe rre d i ncome  ta x a s s e ts :
Ne t ope ra ti ng l os s  ca rryforwa rds $ 2,385 $ 2,312 
Inve ntori e s 43,157 43,471 
Accrue d bonus e s 19,075 13,647 
Unre de e me d gi ft ca rd l i a bi l i ty 15,580 12,877 
Non-curre nt l e a s e  l i a bi l i ti e s 286,528 216,495 
Re s e a rch a nd e xpe ri me nta l  e xpe ndi ture s 48,922 — 
Stock-ba s e d compe ns a ti on 20,057 16,093 
Othe r 16,802 9,645 

De fe rre d i ncome  ta x a s s e ts 452,506 314,540 
Va l ua ti on a l l owa nce (2,334) (743)
De fe rre d i ncome  ta x a s s e ts , ne t of va l ua ti on a l l owa nce $ 450,172 $ 313,797 
De fe rre d i ncome  ta x l i a bi l i ti e s :

Prope rty a nd e qui pme nt, ne t $ (162,312) $ (142,516)
Inta ngi bl e  a s s e ts , ne t — (5,224)
Ri ght-of-us e  l e a s e  a s s e ts (265,157) (192,221)
Othe r (43,049) (22,518)

De fe rre d i ncome  ta x l i a bi l i ti e s (470,518) (362,479)
Ne t de fe rre d i ncome  ta x l i a bi l i ti e s $ (20,346) $ (48,682)

Ba l a nce  s he e t cl a s s i fi ca ti on:
De fe rre d i ncome  ta x a s s e ts $ 9,176 $ 6,402 
De fe rre d i ncome  ta x l i a bi l i ti e s (29,522) (55,084)

Ne t de fe rre d i ncome  ta x l i a bi l i ti e s $ (20,346) $ (48,682)

As of January 28, 2024, the Company had net operating loss  carryforwards  of $20.0 mi l l ion. The majori ty of the net operating loss  carryforwards  expire, i f
unused, between fiscal  2030 and fiscal  2040.

There was a  $1.6 mi l l ion net increase in the valuation al lowance in 2023, compared to a  $2.1 mi l l ion net decrease in 2022, and a $3.7 mi l l ion net
decrease in 2021.

The Company fi les  income tax returns  in the U.S., Canada, and various  foreign and state jurisdictions. The 2017 to 2022 tax years  remain subject to
examination by the U.S. federal  and state tax authori ties . The 2013 tax year is  s ti l l  open for certain state tax authori ties . The 2017 to 2022 tax years  remain
subject to examination by Canadian tax authori ties . The 2016 to 2022
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tax years  remain subject to examination by tax authori ties  in certain foreign jurisdictions. The Company does  not have any s igni ficant unrecognized tax benefi ts
aris ing from uncertain tax pos itions  taken, or expected to be taken, in the Company's  tax returns.

Note 20. Earnings Per Share
The detai ls  of the computation of bas ic and di luted earnings  per share are as  fol lows: 

 2023 2022 2021
(In thousands, except per share amounts)

Ne t i ncome $ 1,550,190 $ 854,800 $ 975,322 
Ba s i c we i ghte d-a ve ra ge  numbe r of s ha re s  outs ta ndi ng 126,726 127,666 129,768 
As s ume d conve rs i on of di l uti ve  s tock opti ons  a nd a wa rds 334 351 527 
Di l ute d we i ghte d-a ve ra ge  numbe r of s ha re s  outs ta ndi ng 127,060 128,017 130,295 
Ba s i c e a rni ngs  pe r s ha re $ 12.23 $ 6.70 $ 7.52 
Di l ute d e a rni ngs  pe r s ha re $ 12.20 $ 6.68 $ 7.49 

The Company's  calculation of weighted-average shares  includes  the common stock of the Company as  wel l  as  the exchangeable shares. Exchangeable
shares  are the economic equivalent of common shares  in a l l  materia l  respects . Al l  classes  of stock have in effect the same economic rights  and share equal ly in
undistributed net income. For 2023, 2022, and 2021, 62.7 thousand, 43.5 thousand, and 36.0 thousand stock options  and awards, respectively, were anti -
di lutive to earnings  per share and therefore have been excluded from the computation of di luted earnings  per share.

On January 31, 2019, the Company's  board of directors  approved a stock repurchase program for up to $500.0 mi l l ion of the Company's  common shares.
On December 1, 2020, i t approved an increase in the remaining authorization from $263.6 mi l l ion to $500.0 mi l l ion, and on October 1, 2021, i t approved an
increase in the remaining authorization from $141.2 mi l l ion to $641.2 mi l l ion. During the fi rst quarter of 2022, the Company completed the remaining stock
repurchases  under this  program.

On March 23, 2022 and November 29, 2023, the Company's  board of directors  approved stock repurchase programs, each for up to $1.0 bi l l ion of the
Company's  common shares  on the open market or in privately negotiated transactions. The repurchase plans  have no time l imit and do not require the
repurchase of a  minimum number of shares. Common shares  repurchased on the open market are at prevai l ing market prices , including under plans  complying
with the provis ions  of Rule 10b5-1 and Rule 10b-18 of the Securi ties  Exchange Act of 1934. The timing and actual  number of common shares  to be repurchased
wi l l  depend upon market conditions, el igibi l i ty to trade, and other factors , in accordance with Securi ties  and Exchange Commiss ion requirements . The
authorized value of shares  avai lable to be repurchased under these programs excludes  the cost of commiss ions  and excise taxes  and as  of January 28, 2024, the
remaining authorized value was $1.2 bi l l ion.

During 2023, 2022, and 2021, 1.5 mi l l ion, 1.4 mi l l ion, and 2.2 mi l l ion shares , respectively, were repurchased under the programs at a  total  cost including
commiss ions  and excise taxes  of $558.7 mi l l ion, $444.0 mi l l ion, and $812.6 mi l l ion, respectively.

Subsequent to January 28, 2024, and up to March 15, 2024, 0.2 mi l l ion shares  were repurchased at a  total  cost including commiss ions  and excise taxes  of
$99.2 mi l l ion.

Note 21. Commitments and Contingencies

Commitments

Leases. The Company has  obl igations  under operating leases  for i ts  store and other retai l  locations, distribution centers , offices , and equipment. Please
refer to Note 18. Leases  for further detai ls  regarding lease commitments  and the timing of future minimum lease payments .
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License and supply arrangements. The Company has  entered into l icense and supply arrangements  with partners  in the Middle East and Mexico which grant
them the right to operate lululemon branded retai l  locations  and sel l  lululemon products  on websites  in speci fic countries . Under these arrangements , the
Company suppl ies  the partners  with lululemon products , tra ining, and other support. As  of January 28, 2024, there were 39 l icensed locations, including 15 in
Mexico, eight in the United Arab Emirates , s ix in Saudi  Arabia, three in Qatar, three in Kuwait, three in Israel , and one in Bahrain.

One-time transition tax payable. The U.S. tax reforms enacted in December 2017 imposed a mandatory trans ition tax on accumulated foreign subs idiary
earnings  which have not previous ly been subject to U.S. income tax at a  rate of 15.5% on cash and cash equivalents  and 8% on the remaining earnings , net of
foreign tax credits . The one-time trans ition tax is  payable over eight years  beginning in fi scal  2018. The table below outl ines  the remaining expected payments
due by fiscal  year.

 Payments Due by Fiscal Year
 Total 2024 2025 2026 2027 2028 Thereafter

(In thousands)

One -ti me  tra ns i ti on ta x pa ya bl e $ 28,555 $ 12,691 $ 15,864 $ — $ — $ — $ — 

Contingencies

Legal proceedings. The Company is , from time to time, involved in routine legal  matters , and audits  and inspections  by governmental  agencies  and other
third parties  which are incidental  to the conduct of i ts  bus iness . This  includes  legal  matters  such as  ini tiation and defense of proceedings  to protect intel lectual
property rights , employment cla ims, product l iabi l i ty cla ims, personal  injury cla ims, and s imi lar matters . The Company bel ieves  the ultimate resolution of any
such legal  proceedings, audits , and inspections  wi l l  not have a materia l  adverse effect on i ts  consol idated balance sheets , results  of operations  or cash flows.
The Company has  recognized immateria l  provis ions  related to the expected outcome of legal  proceedings.

Note 22. Supplemental Cash Flow Information

2023 2022 2021
(In thousands)

Ca s h pa i d for i ncome  ta xe s $ 824,213 $ 502,136 $ 245,213 
Ca s h pa i d for a mounts  i ncl ude d i n the  me a s ure me nt of l e a s e  l i a bi l i ti e s 288,934 242,758 215,157 
Le a s e d a s s e ts  obta i ne d i n e xcha nge  for ne w ope ra ti ng l e a s e  l i a bi l i ti e s 586,926 450,787 287,008 
Inte re s t pa i d 234 116 12 
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Note 23. Segmented Information
The Company's  segments  are based on the financial  information the CODM, who is  the Chief Executive Officer, uses  to evaluate performance and al locate

resources.

During the fourth quarter of 2023, the financial  information the CODM regularly uses  to evaluate performance and al locate resources  was  revised. As  the
Company has  further executed on i ts  omni-channel  retai l  s trategy, and with the continued expansion of i ts  international  operations, the CODM has  shi fted
resource al location decis ions  to be focused by regional  market, rather than by sel l ing channel . This  resulted in a  change in the Company's  operating segments .

As  of January 28, 2024, the Company reports  three segments , Americas , China Mainland, and Rest of World, which is  APAC and EMEA on a combined bas is .
The Company does  not report capital  expenditures  and assets  by segment as  that information is  not reviewed by the CODM.

Previous ly, the Company's  segments  were comprised of company-operated stores , direct to consumer (or "e-commerce"), and other. The Company has
restated the prior period information to reflect i ts  new segments .

 2023 2022 2021
(In thousands)

Ne t re ve nue :
Ame ri ca s $ 7,631,647 $ 6,817,454 $ 5,299,906 
Chi na  Ma i nl a nd 963,760 576,503 434,261 
Re s t of Worl d 1,023,871 716,561 522,450 

$ 9,619,278 $ 8,110,518 $ 6,256,617 
Se gme nte d i ncome  from ope ra ti ons :

Ame ri ca s $ 2,937,184 $ 2,503,740 $ 1,867,016 
Chi na  Ma i nl a nd 337,316 196,865 167,318 
Re s t of Worl d 201,832 103,204 67,674 

3,476,332 2,803,809 2,102,008 
Ge ne ra l  corpora te  e xpe ns e s 1,240,436 1,005,988 718,477 
l ul ul e mon Studi o obs ol e s ce nce  provi s i on 23,709 62,928 — 
Impa i rme nt of goodwi l l  a nd othe r a s s e ts , re s tructuri ng cos ts 74,501 407,913 — 
Amorti za ti on of i nta ngi bl e  a s s e ts 5,010 8,752 8,782 
Acqui s i ti on-re l a te d e xpe ns e s — — 41,394 
Ga i n on di s pos a l  of a s s e ts — (10,180) — 
Income  from ope ra ti ons 2,132,676 1,328,408 1,333,355 
Othe r i ncome  (e xpe ns e ), ne t 43,059 4,163 514 
Income  be fore  i ncome  ta x e xpe ns e $ 2,175,735 $ 1,332,571 $ 1,333,869 

De pre ci a ti on a nd a morti za ti on:
Ame ri ca s $ 170,417 $ 137,260 $ 121,278 
Chi na  Ma i nl a nd 25,746 17,842 12,208 
Re s t of Worl d 23,644 19,346 16,829 
Corpora te 159,577 117,343 73,891 

$ 379,384 $ 291,791 $ 224,206 
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Long-l ived assets , including property and equipment, net and right-of-use lease assets , by geographic area as  of January 28, 2024 and January 29, 2023
were as  fol lows: 

January 28, 2024 January 29, 2023
(In thousands)

Uni te d Sta te s $ 1,597,318 $ 1,175,317 
Ca na da 671,622 601,756 
Pe opl e 's  Re publ i c of Chi na 284,575 233,590 
Othe r ge ogra phi c a re a s 257,906 228,370 

$ 2,811,421 $ 2,239,033 

Note 24. Disaggregated Net Revenue

In addition to the disaggregation of net revenue by reportable segment in Note 23. Segmented Information, the fol lowing table disaggregates  the
Company's  net revenue by geographic area.

2023 2022 2021
(In thousands)

Uni te d Sta te s $ 6,346,392 $ 5,654,343 $ 4,345,687 
Ca na da 1,285,255 1,163,111 954,219 

Chi na  Ma i nl a nd 963,760 576,503 434,261 

Hong Kong SAR, Ta i wa n, a nd Ma ca u SAR 170,533 105,130 86,111 
Pe opl e 's  Re publ i c of Chi na 1,134,293 681,633 520,372 

Othe r ge ogra phi c a re a s 853,338 611,431 436,339 
$ 9,619,278 $ 8,110,518 $ 6,256,617 

The fol lowing table disaggregates  the Company's  net revenue by category. Other categories  is  primari ly composed of accessories , lululemon Studio, and
footwear.

2023 2022 2021
(In thousands)

Wome n's  product $ 6,147,372 $ 5,259,803 $ 4,171,762 
Me n's  product 2,252,753 1,956,602 1,535,850 
Othe r ca te gori e s 1,219,153 894,113 549,005 

$ 9,619,278 $ 8,110,518 $ 6,256,617 

The fol lowing table disaggregates  the Company's  net revenue by channel .

2023 2022 2021
(In thousands)

Compa ny-ope ra te d s tore s $ 4,410,956 $ 3,648,127 $ 2,821,497 
E-comme rce 4,311,110 3,699,791 2,777,944 
Othe r cha nne l s 897,212 762,600 657,176 

$ 9,619,278 $ 8,110,518 $ 6,256,617 

ITEM 9A. CONTROLS AND PROCEDURES

Evaluation of Disclosure Controls and Procedures

Under the supervis ion and with the participation of our management, including our principal  executive officer and principal  financial  and accounting
officer, we conducted an evaluation of the effectiveness  of the des ign and operation of our
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disclosure controls  and procedures, as  defined in Rules  13a-15(e) and 15d-15(e) under the Securi ties  Exchange Act of 1934, as  amended, or the Exchange Act, as
of the end of the period covered by this  report, or the Evaluation Date. Based upon the evaluation, our principal  executive officer and principal  financial  and
accounting officer concluded that our disclosure controls  and procedures  were effective as  of the Evaluation Date. Disclosure controls  and procedures  are
controls  and procedures  des igned to reasonably ensure that information required to be disclosed in our reports  fi led under the Exchange Act, such as  this
report, i s  recorded, processed, summarized, and reported within the time periods  speci fied in the SEC's  rules  and forms. Disclosure controls  and procedures
include controls  and procedures  des igned to reasonably ensure that such information is  accumulated and communicated to our management, including our
principal  executive officer and principal  financial  and accounting officer, as  appropriate to a l low timely decis ions  regarding required disclosure.

Inherent Limitations over Internal Controls

Our internal  control  over financial  reporting is  des igned to provide reasonable assurances  regarding the rel iabi l i ty of financial  reporting and the
preparation of financial  s tatements  for external  purposes  in accordance with general ly accepted accounting principles . Our internal  control  over financial
reporting includes  those pol icies  and procedures  that (i ) pertain to the maintenance of records  that, in reasonable detai l , accurately and fa irly reflect the
transactions  and dispos itions  of our assets ; (i i ) provide reasonable assurance that transactions  are recorded as  necessary to permit preparation of financial
statements  in accordance with general ly accepted accounting principles , and that our receipts  and expenditures  are being made only in accordance with
authorizations  of our management and directors ; and (i i i ) provide reasonable assurance regarding prevention or timely detection of unauthorized acquis i tion,
use, or dispos ition of our assets  that could have a materia l  effect on the financial  s tatements . Management, including our principal  executive officer and
principal  financial  and accounting officer, does  not expect that our internal  controls  wi l l  prevent or detect a l l  errors  and al l  fraud. A control  system, no matter
how wel l  des igned and operated, can provide only reasonable, not absolute, assurance that the objectives  of the control  system are met. Further, the des ign of a
control  system must reflect the fact that there are resource l imitations  on al l  control  systems; no evaluation of internal  controls  can provide absolute
assurance that a l l  control  i ssues  and instances  of fraud, i f any, have been detected. Also, any evaluation of the effectiveness  of controls  in future periods  are
subject to the risk that those internal  controls  may become inadequate because of changes  in bus iness  conditions, or that the degree of compl iance with the
pol icies  and procedures  may deteriorate.

Management's Annual Report on Internal Control over Financial Reporting

Management is  responsible for establ ishing and maintaining adequate internal  control  over financial  reporting (as  defined in Rule 13a-15(f) under the
Securi ties  Exchange Act of 1934, as  amended). Management conducted an evaluation of the effectiveness  of our internal  control  over financial  reporting based
on the cri teria  set forth in Internal  Control—Integrated Framework (2013) issued by the Committee of Sponsoring Organizations  of the Treadway Commiss ion, or
COSO. Based on this  evaluation, management concluded that we maintained effective internal  control  over financial  reporting as  of January 28, 2024.

The effectiveness  of our internal  control  over financial  reporting as  of January 28, 2024 has  been audited by PricewaterhouseCoopers  LLP, our
independent registered publ ic accounting fi rm, as  stated in their report, which appears  in Item 8 of Part II  of this  Form 10-K.

Changes in Internal Control over Financial Reporting

There were no changes  in our internal  control  over financial  reporting during the fourth quarter of 2023 that have materia l ly affected, or are reasonably
l ikely to materia l ly affect, our internal  control  over financial  reporting.

ITEM 9B. OTHER INFORMATION

Trading Arrangements

During the fourth quarter of 2023, no director or officer of lululemon (as  defined in Rule 16a-1(f) under the Exchange Act) adopted or terminated a Rule
10b5-1 trading arrangement or non-Rule 10b5-1 trading arrangement (in each case, as  defined in Item 408(a) of Regulation S-K).

Appointment of Director

On March 15, 2024, the board of directors  of lululemon appointed Teri  L. List as  a  member of the board of directors . Ms. List served as  executive vice
pres ident and chief financial  officer of Gap Inc, a  global  clothing retai ler, from January 2017
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unti l  her reti rement in June 2020. Prior to joining the Gap, she served as  chief financial  officer at DICK’s  Sporting Goods and Kraft Food Group. Prior to those
roles , Ms. List spent nearly 20 years  with Procter & Gamble culminating in the role of SVP and Treasurer. She began her career in publ ic accounting at Deloitte
LLP, an auditing, consulting, tax and advisory services  fi rm. She currently serves  on the Boards  of Visa, Microsoft and Danaher Corporation. Ms. List received her
Bachelor’s  degree in accounting from Northern Michigan Univers i ty and is  a  certi fied publ ic accountant.

The board of directors  increased the s ize of the board from ten to eleven members  and appointed Ms. List as  a  Class  I di rector to fi l l  the newly created
vacancy. Although Ms. List wi l l  serve as  a  member of the class  of directors  whose terms expire at the 2026 annual  meeting of stockholders , our stockholders  wi l l
have the opportunity to vote on her nomination as  a  continuing Class  I di rector at the next annual  meeting of stockholders .

Ms. List wi l l  serve on the Audit Committee and wi l l  receive compensation for her service as  a  director cons istent with that of our other non-employee
directors . A description of our standard compensation arrangements  for non-employee directors  i s  included as  an exhibit to this  annual  report on Form 10-K.
We expect Ms. List to enter into our standard form indemnification agreement for non-employee directors , the form of which is  fi led with the SEC as  Exhibit
10.16 to our registration statement on Form S-1, dated July 9, 2007.

ITEM 9C. DISCLOSURE REGARDING FOREIGN JURISDICTIONS THAT PREVENT INSPECTIONS

Not appl icable.
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PART III 

ITEM 10. DIRECTORS, EXECUTIVE OFFICERS AND CORPORATE GOVERNANCE

The information required by this  i tem concerning our directors , director nominees  and Section 16 beneficia l  ownership reporting compl iance is
incorporated by reference to our defini tive Proxy Statement for our 2024 Annual  Meeting of Stockholders  under the captions  "Election of Directors ," "Executive
Officers ," and "Corporate Governance," and, to the extent necessary, under the caption "Del inquent Section 16(a) Reports ."

We have adopted a written code of bus iness  conduct and ethics , which appl ies  to a l l  of our directors , officers , and employees, including our principal
executive officer and our principal  financial  and accounting officer. Our Global  Code of Bus iness  Conduct and Ethics  i s  avai lable on our website,
www.lululemon.com, and can be obtained by writing to Investor Relations, lululemon athletica inc., 1818 Cornwal l  Avenue, Vancouver, Bri tish Columbia,
Canada V6J 1C7 or by sending an emai l  to investors@lululemon.com. Information contained on or access ible through our websites  is  not incorporated into, and
does not form a part of, this  Annual  Report or any other report or document we fi le with the SEC, and any references  to our websites  are intended to be inactive
textual  references  only. Any amendments , other than technical , administrative, or other non-substantive amendments , to our Global  Code of Bus iness  Conduct
and Ethics  or waivers  from the provis ions  of the Global  Code of Bus iness  Conduct and Ethics  for our principal  executive officer and our principal  financial  and
accounting officer wi l l  be promptly disclosed on our website fol lowing the effective date of such amendment or waiver.

ITEM 11. EXECUTIVE COMPENSATION

The information required by this  i tem is  incorporated by reference to our 2024 Proxy Statement under the captions  "Executive Compensation" and
"Executive Compensation Tables ."

ITEM 12. SECURITY OWNERSHIP OF CERTAIN BENEFICIAL OWNERS AND MANAGEMENT AND RELATED STOCKHOLDER MATTERS

The information required by this  i tem is  incorporated by reference to our 2024 Proxy Statement under the caption "Principal  Shareholders  and Share
Ownership by Management."

Equity Compensation Plan Information (as of January 28, 2024)

Plan Category

Number of Securities to be
Issued Upon Exercise of

Outstanding Options, Warrants
and Rights

(A)

Weighted-Average Exercise
Price of Outstanding Options,

Warrants and Rights

(B)

Number of Securities Remaining
Available for Future Issuance Under

Equity Compensation Plans
(Excluding Securities Reflected in

Column (A))

(C)
Equi ty compe ns a ti on pl a ns  a pprove d by s tockhol de rs 1,181,031 $ 285.69 8,428,503 
Equi ty compe ns a ti on pl a ns  not a pprove d by s tockhol de rs — — — 
Tota l 1,181,031 $ 285.69 8,428,503 

__________
This amount represents the following: (a) 783,036 shares subject to outstanding options, (b) 175,365 shares subject to outstanding performance-based restricted stock units, and (c)
222,630 shares subject to outstanding restricted stock units. The options, performance-based restricted stock units, and restricted stock units are all under our 2023 Equity
Incentive Plan. Restricted shares outstanding under our 2023 Equity Incentive Plan have already been reflected in our total outstanding common stock balance.
The weighted-average exercise price is calculated solely on the exercise prices of the outstanding options and does not reflect the shares that will be issued upon the vesting of
outstanding awards of performance-based restricted stock units and restricted stock units, which have no exercise price.
This includes (a) 4,025,805 shares of our common stock available for future issuance under our 2023 Equity Incentive Plan and (b) 4,402,698 shares of our common stock available for
future issuance under our Employee Share Purchase Plan. The number of shares remaining available for future issuance under our 2023 Equity Incentive Plan is reduced by 1.7 shares
for each award other than stock options granted and by one share for each stock option award granted. Outstanding awards that expire or are canceled without having been
exercised or settled in full are available for issuance again under our 2023 Equity Incentive Plan but shares that are withheld in satisfaction of tax withholding obligations for full
value awards are not again available for issuance. No further awards may be issued under the predecessor plan, our 2014 Equity Incentive Plan.

(1) (2) (3)

(1)

(2)

(3)
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ITEM 13. CERTAIN RELATIONSHIPS AND RELATED TRANSACTIONS, AND DIRECTOR INDEPENDENCE

The information required by this  i tem is  incorporated by reference to our 2024 Proxy Statement under the captions  "Certain Relationships  and Related
Party Transactions" and "Corporate Governance."

ITEM 14. PRINCIPAL ACCOUNTANT FEES AND SERVICES

The information required by this  i tem is  incorporated by reference to our 2024 Proxy Statement under the caption "Fees  for Profess ional  Services ."
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PART IV  

ITEM 15. EXHIBITS AND FINANCIAL STATEMENT SCHEDULE

(a) Documents  fi led as  part of this  report:

1. Financial Statements. The financial  s tatements  as  set forth under Item 8 of this  Annual  Report on Form 10-K are incorporated herein.

2. Financial Statement Schedule. Separate financial  s tatement schedules  have been omitted ei ther because they are not appl icable or because the required
information is  included in the consol idated financial  s tatements  or notes  described in Item 15(a)(1) above.
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3. Exhibits

Exhibit Index 

  Incorporated by Reference
Exhibit

No. Exhibit Title
Filed

Herewith Form Exhibit No. File No. Filing Date

3.1 Re s ta te d Ce rti fi ca te  of Incorpora ti on of l ul ul e mon a thl e ti ca  i nc. X

3.2 Byl a ws  of l ul ul e mon a thl e ti ca  i nc. 10-K 3.5 001-33608 3/28/2023

4.1 Form of Spe ci me n Stock Ce rti fi ca te  of l ul ul e mon a thl e ti ca  i nc. S-3 4.1 333-185899 1/7/2013

4.2 De s cri pti on of Se curi ti e s  Re gi s te re d Unde r Se cti on 12 of the
Se curi ti e s  Excha nge  Act of 1934

10-K 4.2 001-33608 3/26/2020

10.1* l ul ul e mon a thl e ti ca  i nc. 2023 Equi ty Ince nti ve  Pl a n X

10.2* Form of Non-Qua l i fi e d Stock Opti on Agre e me nt 8-K 10.2 001-33608 6/13/2023

10.3* Form of Noti ce  of Gra nt of Pe rforma nce  Sha re s  a nd Pe rforma nce
Sha re s  Agre e me nt

8-K 10.3 001-33608 6/13/2023

10.4* Form of Noti ce  of Gra nt of Re s tri cte d Stock Uni ts  a nd Re s tri cte d
Stock Uni ts  Agre e me nt

8-K 10.4 001-33608 6/13/2023

10.5* Form of Re s tri cte d Stock Awa rd Agre e me nt 8-K 10.5 001-33608 6/13/2023

10.6* Ame nde d a nd Re s ta te d LIPO Inve s tme nts  (USA), Inc. Opti on Pl a n
a nd form of Awa rd Agre e me nt

S-1 10.3 333-142477 5/1/2007

10.7 Excha nge  Trus t Agre e me nt da te d Jul y 26, 2007 be twe e n
l ul ul e mon a thl e ti ca  i nc., Lul u Ca na di a n Hol di ng, Inc. a nd
Compute rs ha re  Trus t Compa ny of Ca na da

10-Q 10.5 001-33608 9/10/2007

10.8 Excha nge a bl e  Sha re  Support Agre e me nt da te d Jul y 26, 2007
be twe e n l ul ul e mon a thl e ti ca  i nc., Lul ul e mon Ca l l co ULC a nd
Lul u Ca na di a n Hol di ng, Inc.

10-Q 10.6 001-33608 9/10/2007

10.9 Ame nde d a nd Re s ta te d De cl a ra ti on of Trus t for Forfe i ta bl e
Excha nge a bl e  Sha re s  da te d Jul y 26, 2007, by a nd a mong the
pa rti e s  na me d the re i n

10-Q 10.7 001-33608 9/10/2007

10.10 Ame nde d a nd Re s ta te d Arra nge me nt Agre e me nt da te d a s  of
June  18, 2007, by a nd a mong the  pa rti e s  na me d the re i n
(i ncl udi ng Pl a n of Arra nge me nt a nd Excha nge a bl e  Sha re
Provi s i ons )

S-1/A 10.14 333-142477 7/9/2007

10.11 Form of Inde mni fi ca ti on Agre e me nt be twe e n l ul ul e mon
a thl e ti ca  i nc. a nd i ts  di re ctors  a nd ce rta i n offi ce rs

S-1/A 10.16 333-142477 7/9/2007

10.12* Outs i de  Di re ctor Compe ns a ti on Pl a n X

10.13* Exe cuti ve  Bonus  Pl a n 8-K 10.1 001-33608 3/29/2022

10.14* l ul ul e mon a thl e ti ca  i nc. Empl oye e  Sha re  Purcha s e  Pl a n 10-Q 10.3 001-33608 11/29/2007

10.15* Exe cuti ve  Empl oyme nt Agre e me nt, e ffe cti ve  a s  of De ce mbe r 5,
2016, be twe e n l ul ul e mon a thl e ti ca  ca na da  i nc. a nd Ce l e s te
Burgoyne

10-K 10.23 001-33608 3/29/2017

10.16* Ame ndme nt to Exe cuti ve  Empl oyme nt Agre e me nt, e ffe cti ve
Octobe r 27, 2020, be twe e n l ul ul e mon a thl e ti ca  ca na da  i nc. a nd
Ce l e s te  Burgoyne

10-Q 10.1 001-33608 12/10/2020

10.17* Exe cuti ve  Empl oyme nt Agre e me nt, e ffe cti ve  a s  of Augus t 20, 2018,
be twe e n l ul ul e mon a thl e ti ca  ca na da  i nc. a nd Ca l vi n McDona l d

8-K 10.1 001-33608 7/24/2018

10.18* Exe cuti ve  Empl oyme nt Agre e me nt, e ffe cti ve  a s  of Nove mbe r 23,
2020, be twe e n l ul ul e mon a thl e ti ca  i nc. a nd Me gha n Fra nk

10-Q 10.2 001-33608 12/10/2020
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  Incorporated by Reference
Exhibit

No. Exhibit Title
Filed

Herewith Form Exhibit No. File No. Filing Date
10.19* Exe cuti ve  Empl oyme nt Agre e me nt, e ffe cti ve  a s  of Se pte mbe r 20,

2018, be twe e n l ul ul e mon a thl e ti ca  i nc. a nd Mi che l l e  Choe
10-Q 10.1 001-33608 12/06/2018

10.20* Exe cuti ve  Empl oyme nt Agre e me nt, e ffe cti ve  Se pte mbe r 20, 2021,
be twe e n l ul ul e mon a thl e ti ca  i nc. a nd Ni col e  Ne uburge r

10-Q 10.1  001-33608 12/09/2021

10.21* Exe cuti ve  Empl oyme nt Agre e me nt, e ffe cti ve  a s  of Ja nua ry 4, 2021,
be twe e n l ul ul e mon a thl e ti ca  UK l td. a nd Andre  Ma e s tri ni

10-K 10.22 001-33608 3/30/2021

10.22 Cre di t Agre e me nt, da te d De ce mbe r 14, 2021, a mong l ul ul e mon
a thl e ti ca  i nc., l ul ul e mon a thl e ti ca  ca na da  i nc., Lul u Ca na di a n
Hol di ng, Inc. a nd l ul ul e mon us a  i nc., a s  borrowe rs , Ba nk of Ame ri ca ,
N.A., a s  a dmi ni s tra ti ve  a ge nt, s wi ng l i ne  l e nde r a nd l e tte r of cre di t
i s s ue r, HSBC Ba nk Ca na da , a s  s yndi ca ti on a ge nt a nd l e tte r of cre di t
i s s ue r, BOFA Se curi ti e s , Inc., a s  s us ta i na bi l i ty coordi na tor, a nd the
othe r l e nde rs  pa rty the re to.

8-K 10.1 001-33608 12/17/2021

21.1 Si gni fi ca nt s ubs i di a ri e s  of l ul ul e mon a thl e ti ca  i nc. 10-K 21.1 001-33608 3/28/2023

23.1 Cons e nt of Pri ce wa te rhous e Coope rs  LLP X

31.1 Ce rti fi ca ti on of pri nci pa l  e xe cuti ve  offi ce r purs ua nt to Excha nge  Act
Rul e s  13a -14(a ) a nd 15d-14(a ), a s  a dopte d purs ua nt to Se cti on 302
of the  Sa rba ne s -Oxl e y Act of 2002

X

31.2 Ce rti fi ca ti on of pri nci pa l  fi na nci a l  a nd a ccounti ng offi ce r purs ua nt
to Excha nge  Act Rul e s  13a -14(a ) a nd 15d-14(a ), a s  a dopte d purs ua nt
to Se cti on 302 of the  Sa rba ne s -Oxl e y Act of 2002

X

32.1** Ce rti fi ca ti on of pri nci pa l  e xe cuti ve  offi ce r a nd pri nci pa l  fi na nci a l
a nd a ccounti ng offi ce r purs ua nt to 18 U.S.C. Se cti on 1350, a s
a dopte d purs ua nt to Se cti on 906 of the  Sa rba ne s -Oxl e y Act of 2002

X

97 Pol i cy for Re cove ry of Errone ous l y Awa rde d Ince nti ve -Ba s e d
Compe ns a ti on

8-K 10.1 001-33608 6/13/2023

101 The  fol l owi ng fi na nci a l  s ta te me nts  from the  Compa ny's  10-K for the
fi s ca l  ye a r e nde d Ja nua ry 28, 2024, forma tte d i n i XBRL: (i )
Cons ol i da te d Ba l a nce  She e ts , (i i ) Cons ol i da te d Sta te me nts  of
Ope ra ti ons  a nd Compre he ns i ve  Income , (i i i ) Cons ol i da te d
Sta te me nts  of Stockhol de rs ' Equi ty, (i v) Cons ol i da te d Sta te me nts  of
Ca s h Fl ows  (v) Note s  to the  Cons ol i da te d Fi na nci a l  Sta te me nts

X

104 Cove r Pa ge  Inte ra cti ve  Da ta  Fi l e  (forma tte d i n i XBRL a nd conta i ne d
i n Exhi bi t 101)

X

* De note s  a  compe ns a tory pl a n, contra ct or a rra nge me nt, i n whi ch our di re ctors  or e xe cuti ve  offi ce rs  ma y pa rti ci pa te .
** Furni s he d he re wi th.

ITEM 16. FORM 10-K SUMMARY

None.
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SIGNATURES

Pursuant to the requirements  of Section 13 or 15(d) of the Securi ties  Exchange Act of 1934, as  amended, the registrant has  duly caused this  report to be
s igned on i ts  behal f by the unders igned, thereunto duly authorized.

LULULEMON ATHLETICA INC.

By:  /s/    CALVIN MCDONALD
  Calvin McDonald

 Chief Executive Officer
(principal  executive officer)

Date: March 21, 2024

KNOW ALL PERSONS BY THESE PRESENTS, that each person whose s ignature appears  below consti tutes  and appoints  Calvin McDonald and Meghan Frank
and each of them, with ful l  power of substi tution and resubsti tution and ful l  power to act without the other, as  his  or her true and lawful  attorney-in-fact and
agent to act in his  or her name, place and stead and to execute in the name and on behalf of each person, individual ly and in each capacity stated below, and to
fi le, any and al l  documents  in connection therewith, with the Securi ties  and Exchange Commiss ion, granting unto said attorneys-in-fact and agents , and each of
them, ful l  power and authori ty to do and perform each and every act and thing, rati fying and confirming al l  that said attorneys-in-fact and agents  or any of them
or their and his  or her substi tute or substi tutes , may lawful ly do or cause to be done by vi rtue thereof.
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Pursuant to the requirements  of the Securi ties  Exchange Act of 1934, as  amended, this  report has  been s igned below by the fol lowing persons  on behalf of
the registrant and in the capacities  and on the dates  indicated:

Signature Title Date

/s /    CALVIN MCDONALD Chi e f Exe cuti ve  Offi ce r a nd Di re ctor Ma rch 21, 2024
Calvin McDonald (pri nci pa l  e xe cuti ve  offi ce r)

/s /    MEGHAN FRANK Chi e f Fi na nci a l  Offi ce r Ma rch 21, 2024
Meghan Frank (pri nci pa l  fi na nci a l  a nd a ccounti ng offi ce r)

/s /    MARTHA A.M. MORFITT Di re ctor, Boa rd Cha i r Ma rch 21, 2024
Martha A.M. Morfitt

/s /    MICHAEL CASEY Di re ctor Ma rch 21, 2024
Michael Casey

/s /    SHANE GRANT Di re ctor Ma rch 21, 2024
Shane Grant

/s /    KATHRYN HENRY Di re ctor Ma rch 21, 2024
Kathryn Henry

/s /    TERI  LIST Di re ctor Ma rch 21, 2024
Teri List

/s /    ALISON LOEHNIS Di re ctor Ma rch 21, 2024
Alison Loehnis

/s /    ISABEL MAHE Di re ctor Ma rch 21, 2024
Isabel Mahe

/s /    JON MCNEILL Di re ctor Ma rch 21, 2024
Jon McNeill

/s /    DAVID M. MUSSAFER Di re ctor Ma rch 21, 2024
David M. Mussafer

/s /    EMILY WHITE Di re ctor Ma rch 21, 2024
Emily White
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